
 

 
Contact: Samantha Schanzer, Scrutiny Adviser 
Tel: 01633 656656 
E-mail: Scrutiny@newport.gov.uk 
Date of Issue: Friday, 20 October 2023 
  

 
This document is available in welsh / Mae’s ffurflen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg 

 

Agenda 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 
 
Date: Friday, 27 October 2023 
 
Time: 10.00 am 
 
Venue: Hybrid Meeting / Committee Room 1  
 
To: Councillors P Hourahine (Chair), M Al-Nuaimi, B Davies, G Horton, P Bright, C Baker-

Westhead, S Cocks, M Evans and L James 
 
 
 
Item  Wards Affected 

  
1   Apologies   

 
 

 
2   Declarations of Interest   

 
 

 
3   Minutes of the Previous Meeting  (Pages 3 - 10) 

 
 

 
4   Air Quality Action Plan  (Pages 11 - 132) 

 
 

 
5   Budget and Engagement Update  (Pages 133 - 140) 

 
 

 
6   Conclusion of Committee Reports   

Following the completion of the Committee reports, the Committee will 
be asked to formalise its conclusions, recommendations and 
comments on previous items for actioning.  
 

 

 
7   Scrutiny Adviser Reports  (Pages 141 - 150) 

a)      Actions Arising (Appendix 1) 

b)      Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 2) 

c)      Scrutiny Topic Referral (Appendix 3) 

  
 

 

 
8   Live Event   

Click here to watch the Live Event. 
 

Public Document Pack

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NTE4ZTlkNWUtYTYyOS00MDU2LWFkMWMtNDU1ZGRjY2IyYzQ3%40thread.v2/0?context=%7B%22Tid%22%3A%222c4d0079-c52c-4bb3-b3ca-d8eaf1b6b7d5%22%2C%22Oid%22%3A%22cb68c5c2-cd73-45bf-a699-6b46bfa43e3c%22%2C%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3Atrue%2C%22role%22%3A%22a%22%7D&btype=a&role=a


 

 

 
 
 



This document is available in welsh / Mae’s ffurflen hon ar gael yn Gymraeg

Minutes
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

Date: 9 October 2023

Time: 2.00 pm

Present: Councillors P Hourahine (Chair), P Bright, S Cocks and M Evans
  

In Attendance: Beverly Owen (Chief Executive), Cllr Jane Mudd (Leader of the Council), Rhys 
Cornwall (Strategic Director - Transformation and Corporate Centre), Sally Ann 
Jenkins (Strategic Director - Social Services), Paul Jones (Strategic Director - 
Environment and Sustainability), Tracy McKim (Head of People, Policy and 
Transformation), Janice Dent (Policy and Partnership Manager), Donald Mutale 
(Senior Equalities Officer), and Amanda Bouadana (Senior HR & OD Business 
Partner) 

Samantha Schanzer (Scrutiny Adviser), Simon Richards (Governance Support 
Officer), Taylor Strange (Governance Support Officer)

Apologies: Councillors M Al-Nuaimi, B Davies, G Horton, C Baker-Westhead and L James

1 Declarations of Interest 

None.

2 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 8th September 2023 

The Committee asked whether a response had been received following the letter that was 
sent to the University of South Wales.

•                The Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate informed Committee that he 
had received an immediate response from USW which advised there would be an internal 
discussion and agreed to ask for a follow up. 

The minutes of the previous meeting held on the 8th September 2023 were agreed as a 
true and accurate record

3 Annual Corporate Plan Self-Assessment Report 2022/23 

Invitees:         Councillor Jane Mudd (Leader of the Council), 
Beverly Owen (Chief Executive), 
Rhys Cornwall (Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate),
Sally Ann Jenkins (Strategic Director for Social Services), 
Paul Jones (Strategic Director for Environment and Sustainability)

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



The Leader of the Council introduced the report, and the Chief Executive gave a summary of 
the report. 

Well-being Objective 1

The Chief Executive (CE) gave a summary of this objective.           

Questions:

The Committee queried how visitor numbers were calculated.

•   The CE informed Committee that these numbers were based on a national indicator. 
The CE agreed to provide an answer outside of the meeting for Committee. 

The Committee stated that they had been unable to find an update for the Economic Strategy 
and City Centre Masterplan and felt that it was difficult to compare without this. The 
Committee highlighted that the report covered the regeneration of the central library and 
Mercure Hotel but no major development in the City Centre. The Committee felt that 
collaboration with the Celtic Manor and ICC should be explored to entice businesses into the 
area. The Committee felt that there were no examples of successes or areas for 
improvement within the report.

•   The Leader noted that the Economic Growth Strategy and City Centre Masterplan 
were separate reports. The Leader agreed that the Committee’s point regarding no 
overarching update was fair but noted that progress against the objectives within the 
plan were reported regularly to Scrutiny and were publicly available. The Leader 
noted that the Local Development Plan had recently been agreed at full Council and 
highlighted the importance of the Cardiff Capital Region, which must be considered 
as a whole, not just in relation to Newport. The Leader also highlighted that Microsoft 
were coming to Newport after making significant investment in the region and that 
Keep Looking Ahead (KLA) are expanding in Newport. This includes moving sites to 
focus on their European activities which demonstrated the working relationship with 
Newport City Council, major international companies, and Welsh Government. 

•   The Leader noted that there had been a significant shift in retail across the UK and 
Newport with an expansion of small, independent businesses. The Leader noted that 
the Business Support Team provided support and had recently launched a Business 
Support Grant which was funded through the Shared Prosperity Fund. The Leader 
highlighted the Cabinet decision to provide rate relief for city centre businesses which, 
when combined with the Welsh Government rates relief, would mean that eligible 
businesses would not have to pay any business rates. The Leader felt that in addition 
to providing support and access to funding, the best possible financial environment 
for businesses was provided. The Leader noted that a significant portion of the city 
centre has been turned into residential spaces and that they were making progress 
against the placemaking plan. 

•   The CE highlighted the feedback received from KLA was positive and noted that the 
report aimed to balance both successes and challenges. The CE informed Committee 
of the Business Community Forum, which is led by businesses and assured 
Committee that Officers met regularly with key city centre businesses and investors. 
The CE considered the complexity of city centre regeneration and provided 
assurance to the Committee that the Council is engaged in conversations regarding 
empty buildings. The CE reiterated that retail is changing, and it is important to look at 
repurposing the city centre to include leisure, learning, and working. 

The Committee agreed with the points raised and felt that attracting more students to live in 
the city centre should be prioritised in future. The Committee were also interested in 
attracting more office-based organisations into the City Centre. The Committee felt that the 

Page 4



Mercure was a successful development, and asked what was being done to attract more 
major hotels into Newport, and to address some of the challenges these may bring. 

•   The Leader informed Committee that they were engaged in discussions with different 
companies at various levels of progress but couldn’t share more information at this 
stage due to the of the confidential commercial nature of these talks. 

The Committee felt that Newport’s heritage offer had potential and needed more prominence 
in the report.

•   The CE agreed that this should be highlighted and would discuss including heritage in 
the report. 

The Committee asked how red areas were prioritized when reviewed on a quarterly basis.
            

•   The CE noted that it was discussed as part of the budget setting process and was 
about finding balance between delivering ambition and setting a balance budget. 

Well-being Objective 2

The Strategic Director for Environment and Sustainability gave a summary of this objective. 

Questions:

The Committee noted that potholes were a major issue and asked what the main factor for 
this was.

•   The Strategic Director for Environment and Sustainability noted that highways are the 
largest single asset and required over £100 million of maintenance. The Strategic 
Director noted that the Highways Asset Management Plan supports the choices made 
about investments. The Strategic Director explained that there is a natural 
deterioration of highways but the regime for inspection was done to legislative 
standards to ensure that the asset is safe. 

•   The Leader recognised the challenges around highway management and noted that 
there had been a significant allocation of underspend from other service areas to 
Highways in the previous year to mitigate this. 

The Committee queried why the condition of pavements had not been included in the report.

•   The Strategic Director for Environment and Sustainability confirmed the information 
was a national indicator and the system for scoring could now be used for footways. 
The Strategic Director noted that was something to consider in future and agreed that 
footways were important in encouraging active travel. 

The Committee queried whether there had been any cross-border discussions regarding the 
canal.

       The Strategic Director for Environment and Sustainability assured Committee that 
there was frequent communication with neighbouring authorities. The Strategic 
Director noted that new lining had been fitted to allow for better water retention. The 
Strategic Director noted that there was more active involvement with the Canal and 
River Trust and that there needed to be greater investment into the canal system 
which would start to be delivered next year. 

Page 5



Well-being Objective 3

The Strategic Director for Social Services gave a summary of this objective.

Questions: 

The Committee asked if Eliminate could be explained in more detail. 

       The Strategic Director for Social Services noted that it was a part of the Welsh 
Government’s program to end profit within social care. The Strategic Director 
explained that it impacted on residential care and fostering for children. The Strategic 
Director noted that there were currently 18-20 children who are placed with private 
residential providers and from 2026-2027 those providers would no longer be able to 
register to deliver services. The Strategic Director noted that there were currently 44 
children placed with independent fostering agencies which were private businesses 
delivering fostering services and the legislation being drafted would end the ability of 
these organisations to operate in Wales. The Strategic Director highlighted Eliminate 
would mean that Welsh local authorities cannot purchase placements with profit-
making organisations in England and Wales. The Strategic Director noted that 
significant grants had been received to improve other service provision, but it was a 
challenging circumstance due to the removal of these placements. 

The Committee noted that the overall assessment measures were green and amber, but the 
individual measures were red which seemed contradictory. The Committee noted the 
pressure on social services and thanked social services staff for their hard work. 

       The Strategic Director for Social Services noted that there had been discussion 
regarding reporting and performance indicators. The Strategic Director informed 
Committee that there had been discussions around including more local indicators to 
highlight detail and make information more accessible. The Strategic Director noted 
that balance was important as staff were in a challenging environment but were not 
failing. The Strategic Director noted that performance was also about collaboration 
with partnerships across the city and agencies.

       The CE noted that it was difficult to make an overall assessment only using 
performance indicators in the report and felt that it was not only about indicators, but 
how projects are progressing. The CE noted the Committee’s comment and agreed to 
reflect on it going forward. 

The Strategic Director for Environment and Sustainability gave a summary of homelessness 
within this objective. 

The Committee queried progress in bringing empty properties into use to support endeavors 
in this area. The Committee felt that empty properties could be used for temporary/short 
accommodation.

       The Strategic Director for Environment and Sustainability agreed that looking at 
empty properties is critical. 

       The Strategic Director for Environment and Sustainability noted that there are 
challenges with using empty properties as they needed to be brought up to the 
required standards for habitation. The Strategic Director felt that the previous years 
had been very challenging, and demand for services had been greater than ever, with 
work being undertaken on programmes including additional funding to move these 
forward. 

       The Leader acknowledged the challenges that empty properties present but felt that 
assumptions should not be made that all empty properties are disadvantageous to 

Page 6



communities. The Leader noted that the impact of Covid and the Cost of Living Crisis 
and the challenge of affordability cannot be ignored. The Leader agreed that there 
had been an increase in service demand post-pandemic and that the local housing 
allowance had not kept up with inflation. The Leader informed Committee that there 
was now more statutory support, but that the pool of accommodation was smaller. 
This was noted as a particular issue for Newport as a dispersal area when combined 
with additional pressures on housing stock. The Leader commended the new Head of 
Service as doing an outstanding job. 

The Committee asked for clarification on the Leader’s comment that not all empty properties 
are disadvantageous to communities.

       The Leader stated that was it correct not to assume that all empty properties present 
a disadvantage to a community simply because they are empty as not all are in 
decline or have deteriorated beyond repair.

       The Chair noted that if the Committee had specific issues about empty properties it 
needed to be raised in the correct forum. 

Well-being Objective 4

The Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate gave a summary of the objective.

Questions: 

The Committee noted that the Digital Strategy was impressive and wanted clarification on the 
percentage of managers who are not completing check-ins with staff. 

       The Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate noted that the previous 
system for managing check-ins had been replaced with the current HR system and 
incorporated into iTrent. The Strategic Director noted that this had been completed 
pre-pandemic but there was insufficient space to embed this as until recently it had 
not met the needs of the users. The Strategic Director noted that work had been 
undertaken with developers and managers to improve the system and that the figure 
was reflective of managers logging their check-in on the system, not the total amount 
of check-ins being carried out. 

       The Head of People, Policy and Transformation (PPT) noted that figure had increased 
to over 60% for the first quarter of the year and that the target figure had likely been 
set too high when returning from Covid. 

       The Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate noted that whilst there was 
room to improve in the recording on the system, it was unfair to presume that 
managers do not have check-ins as these could be recorded differently. The Strategic 
Director noted that staff wellbeing is being considered, especially hybrid workers. The 
Strategic Director highlighted that this was a critically important piece of work and 
engagement needs to be increased to develop and retain staff. The Strategic Director 
noted that part of the reason for the report is due to change in regulations, but it was 
good practice to be able to use data to identify issues and offer training and support.

The Committee noted that the figure reported for turnover of staff as being almost 20% and 
asked for more context, and queried whether manager check-ins could in-part address this. 

       The Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate noted that they did not 
recognise that figure, but the usual turnover estimate would be 10-15%. A level of 
turnover should be expected, but unplanned or unexpected turnover raised concern. 
The Strategic Director noted that there are many factors in turnover numbers 
including grant funding ending, temporary contracts and staff leaving for other 
opportunities. 

Page 7



The Committee felt that progress in procurement was impressive and should be highlighted 
in the report. 

The CEO noted that the report was not sufficiently emphasising some positive aspects but 
reiterated that to the overall aim was to balance the challenges and successes.

Conclusions: 

       The Committee asked for clarification on how the number of visitors to Newport is 
calculated. 

       The Committee recommended considering grouping the RAG ratings by objective 
rather than rating as this may make the assessment easier to understand. 

       The Committee recommended the inclusion of scoring for footways in future reports, 
as highways assessments are already included.

       The Committee was pleased to see successes in the report such as progressive 
procurement and the heritage offer. The Committee felt that these successes could 
be highlighted more in the report to reflect the positive outcomes.  

       The Committee recommended that the Key Decisions and Achievements table be 
revised so that the colours used are not the same as those used in the RAG system 
to ensure clear separation from this performance measurement.

4 Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report 2022-23 

Invitees:         Rhys Cornwall (Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate) 
Tracy McKim (Head of People, Policy and Transformation) 
Janice Dent (Policy and Partnership Manager) 
Donald Mutale (Senior Equalities Officer)
Amanda Bouadana (Senior HR & OD Business Partner)

The Head of People, Policy and Transformation (PPT) introduced the report and the Policy 
and Partnership Manager and Senior Equalities Officer gave a summary of the report.

Questions:

The Committee noted that there had been significant improvement since last year. 

The Committee queried why the section on Education focuses on exclusion and attendance 
but not on attainment. 

       The Policy and Partnership Manager was unsure attainment had not been included in 
this report, but assured the Committee that it would be included in the next plan. The 
Policy and Partnership Manager highlighted that information would be available in 
other education reports and that the Welsh Government had paused mandatory 
reporting of these standards during Covid. 

       The Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate highlighted that Education 
attainment would be monitored in the Performance Scrutiny Committee - People. The 
Committee noted that the report demonstrated how the authority collected data on 
attendance and accepted that the results of the process are reported elsewhere but 
the process regarding attainment was not mentioned. 

       The Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate noted the feedback of the 
Committee and suggested that the Committee could recommend that it is included in 
the next report. 

Page 8



       The Senior Equalities Officer noted that when setting objectives, they worked closely 
with the Equalities Human Rights Commission and attendance and exclusion are 
included within these objectives.

The Committee noted that not all residents are IT literate and questioned what more could be 
done to support this demographic. The Committee also noted that the Pride March was 
successful and wanted to thank everyone involved. 

       The Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate stated that people who are 
able to use IT to access services opens up more capacity for non-digital access 
availability for those who need support. The Strategic Director noted that there would 
be an end-to-end customer services review and one of the aims would address fair 
access which included people getting the appropriate access to services. 

The Committee queried whether the amount of people who are unable to use the online 
services and then subsequently call the Contact Centre was recorded. 

       The Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate assured Committee that they 
could obtain that data and there was evidence that more people used online services. 

The Committee noted that the report outlines how the Council gathers lots of data, but the 
only data provided in any detail relates to the council workforce. 

       The People and Partnership Manager noted that the workforce data was a statutory 
requirement for reporting.

       The Senior Equalities Officer explained that there are some areas where data has 
been included as it informs strategic decision making and was reported in other plans 
including the Corporate Plan and Service Area Plans. 

The Committee noted that high staff turnover put pressure on all officers.

       The Strategic Director for Transformation and Corporate highlighted the overall aim of 
recruiting and retaining talent; two thirds of the workforce are in schools with the rest 
delivering varied services and turnover would be different throughout each service. 

       The Senior HR and OD Business Manager assured Committee that they would be 
able to obtain and analyse that data to understand why people were moving on and 
this can be fed back to service areas. The Senior HR & OD Business Manager noted 
that some people are leaving for development opportunities where there is not a post 
available within the Council but were leaving with a positive experience of their 
employment at the Council. 

The Committee noted that the statutory data did not include redundancies.

       The Senior HR & OD Business Manager assured the Committee that redeployment 
was always the first option for staff at risk of redundancy. The Senior HR & OD 
Business Manager noted that they collaborated with staff and trade unions but in 
challenging budget situations, there were regrettably redundancies. 

Conclusions:

Page 9



       The Committee asked to be provided with further information regarding the number of 
people who contact the City Contact Centre via phone as they were unable to use 
digital services. 

       The Committee highlighted the importance of ensuring that Newport City Council 
offers accessible and usable services that fulfil residents requirements when 
interacting with the Council. The Committee highlighted that this was not exclusive to 
this report but was a wider theme across the Council. 

       The Committee recommended that pupil attainment be included in the next Strategic 
Equalities Plan. 

       The Committee recommended that more information about the data used to evidence 
the need for changes or improvements, and to measure the outcomes, be included in 
reports. 

5 Scrutiny Adviser Reports 

a) Forward Work Programme 

The Scrutiny Advisor Informed Committee that there were no changes to the Forward Work 

Programme. The Scrutiny Advisor noted the date of the next meeting as the 27th October 
2023. 

b) Actions Arising 

The Scrutiny Advisor noted that there were actions still outstanding, but they had been 
chased. 

The Committee asked for the Chairperson to write to Officers to expedite the response. 

       The Chair agreed to do this.

6 Live Event 

The recording of the meeting can be viewed here.

The meeting terminated at 16:05.

Page 10



Scrutiny Report 
Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  October 2023 
 
Subject Air Quality Action Plan 
 
Author  Scrutiny Advisor 
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Area / Role / Subject 
 

Paul Jones Strategic Director for Environment and 
Sustainability 

Silva Gonzales-Lopez Head of Public Protection and Environment  
 

Matthew Cridland 
 

Service Manager – Public Protection 

Steve Manning Senior Scientific Officer 

Cllr Yvonne Forsey Cabinet Member for Climate Change and Bio-
diversity 

 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 

 

1 Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked 

1. Whether the Air Quality Action Plan provides enough information for Committee to 
develop an understanding of the report.

2. Whether the Air Quality Action Plan highlights the ongoing commitment to achieving 
and maintaining compliance with the nitrogen dioxide air quality objective in Newport’s 
Air Quality Management Areas.

3. To consider the consultation draft and whether there is sufficient information included 
and questions asked to be effective and

4. Whether it wishes to provide comment and recommendations on the Annual Report to 
Cabinet

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 
2 Context 
 

Background  
 
2.1 The Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) has been produced as part of Newport City Councils’ 

statutory duties required by the Local Air Quality Management framework and spans the 
period 2023-28.  

 
2.3 The Council’s 5 Air Quality Management Areas centred around motorway junctions have all 

been identified for revocation in view of sustained compliance nitrogen dioxide (NO2) trends 
support this.  

 
2.4 This AQAP focuses on the 6 AQMA’s not situated at M4 junctions: Caerleon, Caerphilly Road, 

Cefn Road, Chepstow Road, George Street and Malpas Road.  
 
2.6 Air pollution in Newport City Council’s areas are undergoing transformation. Post-Covid 

lockdowns in early 2020, air quality impacts have not reverted to their 2019 levels and should 
continue their downward trends towards sustained compliance. This could be due to a 
number of factors including changes to working patterns, fuel prices and increasing modal 
change in transportation towards cleaner technologies.  

 
2.7 There is a duty to Newport’s citizens under the Wellbeing of Future Generations Act and under 

the Newport City Council Operational Climate Change Plan 2022-27 which are “inextricably 
linked with the improvement of air quality”. Compliance is highlighted as being part of the “air 
quality journey”, as it is important to pursue air quality improvements beyond compliance to the 
best achievable air quality. 

 
2.8 Measures identified in this AQAP are set against the 2022 NO2 levels and traffic counts. 

Measures have been identified by communities and the Council to have additional impacts on 
these levels where possible.  

 
2.9 This AQAP outlines the plan to address air quality issues within Newport City Council’s control. 

The AQAP will be subject to annual review/appraisal of progress and reporting to the Cabinet 
Member for Climate Change and Bio-diversity through Annual Progress Reports (ARPs) as part 
of the statutory Local Air Quality Management duties.  

 
 

 Previous Consideration of this item 
 
2.8 This item has not been brought to Committee previously. 

 
3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 Attached at Appendix 1 is the Air Quality Action Plan. 
 
3.2 This report contains:  
 

• A summary of the report and an introduction  
• A summary of the current air quality in Newport City Council 
• Newport City Council’s Air Quality Priorities 
• The development and implementation of Newport City Council’s Air Quality Action Plan including 

measures and how they will be moving forward 
• Air quality data prior to 2022 and an analysis of trends  
• Response to Consultation  

Page 12

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-air-quality-strategy-for-england/air-quality-strategy-framework-for-local-authority-delivery#:~:text=Through%20the%20Local%20Air%20Quality,and%20local%20Air%20Quality%20Strategies.


• Measures (ongoing and suggested) 
• A glossary of terms  
• References 
• Lists of tables and figures 

 
3.3 The report highlights the below measures:  
  

Measure Theme  Measure Approach in all AQMAs  
Emissions from Transport  • Promoting a cleaner vehicle fleet and 

alternatives  
• 100% eBus services  
• ECO Stars haulage accreditation scheme 

update  
• Infrastructure projects where feasible  
• Green barrier (Caerphilly Road AQMA)  

 
Emissions from new development  • Encourage EV charging as part of 

applications  
• Encourage low energy heating as part of 

applications  
• Encourage Green infrastructure as part of 

applications  
• Encourage zero emission public transport 

access as part of applications  
• Updating Planning Guidance and Policy on 

Air Quality  
 

Education & Awareness  • ECO Post air quality messaging monitors  
• Schools air quality monitoring learning 

initiative  
• Exploring walking hubs at school run times 

(Caerleon AQMA)  
• Maintaining Community Air Quality Groups  

 
Active Travel/Green Infrastructure  • Promotion of Active Travel opportunities 

• Facilitate School Travel Plans  
• Promote School streets initiative  
• Promotion of green infrastructure 

opportunities  
 

 
 
3.3 Attached at Appendix 2 is the Air Quality Action Plan Consultation Draft. 
 
3.4 This draft demonstrates to Committee the suggested information and questions that will be 

included in the public consultation.  

4. Suggested Areas of Focus 
 
4.1  

Page 13



  
 
4.2 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 

5 Ways of Working Types of Questions to consider: 

What consideration have you given to the long term 
trends that could affect your proposal or; how could 
your proposal impact these trends? 

Long-term 
The importance of balancing short-term 
needs with the need to safeguard the 
ability to also meet long-term needs. 

 
How will the needs of your service users potentially 
change in the future? 

What is the objective (or the desired outcome) of this 
proposal? 

How are you addressing these issues to prevent a 
future problem? 

Prevention  
Prevent problems occurring or getting 

worse. 

How have the decisions, so far, come about? What 
alternatives were considered? 

Are there any other organisations providing similar / 
complementary services? 

Have you consulted with the health board, third 
sector, emergency services, businesses and anyone 
else you think might be impacted? 

Integration 
Considering how public bodies’ wellbeing 
objectives may impact upon each of the 

well-being goals, on their other 
objectives, or on the objectives of other 

public bodies. 

What practical steps will you take to integrate your 
project with existing plans and strategies of other 
public organisations to help us all contribute fully to 
the seven national well-being goals? 

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:

• Consider:
o Whether there is sufficient information included for Committee to develop an 

understanding of the report 
o Whether the report demonstrates an ongoing commitment to achieving and 

maintaining compliance with the nitrogen dioxide air quality objective in 
Newport’s’ Air Quality Management Areas

o The consultation draft and whether the information included and questions 
asked are sufficient to ensure effective responses

• Determine whether the Committee wish to make any comments and 
recommendations on the Air Quality Action Plan to Cabinet.

• Conclusions:
o What was the overall conclusion on the information contained within the report?
o Is the Committee satisfied that it has had all of the relevant information to base a 

conclusion on the quality of the Air Quality Action Plan? 
o Is the Committee satisfied with the consultation draft?
o Do any areas require a more in-depth review by the Committee?
o Do the Committee wish to make any Comments / Recommendations to the 

Cabinet?

Page 14



Who have you been working with? Why? Who have 
you collaborated with in finding out more about this 
problem and potential solutions? 

How are you co-working with other sectors?  

Collaboration  
Acting in collaboration with any other 

person (or different parts of the 
organisation itself). 

How are you using the knowledge / information / 
good practice of others to inform / influence the 
Council’s work? 

How have you involved the people who are being 
impacted by this decision?  

How have you taken into account the diverse 
communities in your decision making?  

How have you used different / alternative methods to 
reach people and involve them?  

Involvement 
The importance of involving people with 
an interest in achieving the well-being 
goals, and ensuring that those people 
reflect the diversity of the area which the 
body serves. 

How will you communicate the outcome of your 
decision?  

 
 
4.3 Suggested Lines of Enquiry 
 
 The Committee may wish to consider: 
 

• How will communities be engaged with during the consultation process?  
• Will discussions with communities continue post-consultation?  
• Are there any plans to expand the particulates monitored to better address air quality? 

 
Section B – Supporting Information 
 
5  Links to Council Policies and Priorities  
 

Well-being 
Objective 

1 – Economy, 
Education and 
Skills 

2 – Newport’s 
Environment and 
Infrastructure  

3 – Preventative 
and Equitable 
Community and 
Social Care 

4 – An Inclusive, 
Fair and 
Sustainable 
Council 

Aims:  Newport is a 
thriving and 
growing city that 
offers excellent 
education and 
aspires to provide 
opportunities for 
all. 

A city that seeks 
to protect and 
enhance our 
environment 
whilst reducing 
our carbon 
footprint and 
preparing for a 
sustainable and 
digital future. 

Newport is a 
supportive city 
where 
communities and 
care are at the 
heart of what we 
do. 

Newport City 
Council is an 
inclusive 
organisation that 
places social 
value, fairness 
and sustainability 
at its core. 

 
5.1 This report has strong links to Wellbeing Objectives 2 and 4.  
 
7. Background Papers 
 

Page 15



 
• The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)  
• Corporate Plan 2022-27 
• Sustainable Travel Strategy  
• Climate Change Plan 2022-27 

 
 
Report Completed: October 2023 

Page 16

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Council-and-Democracy/About-the-council/Corporate-Plan-2022-27-FINAL.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Transport-and-Streets/Active-Travel-Survey/Sustainable-Travel-Strategy-2020.pdf
https://www.newport.gov.uk/documents/Strategies/Newport-City-Council-Organisational-Climate-Change-Plan-2022-27.pdf


Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2023   

 

 

 
 
Newport City Council 
Air Quality Action Plan 
 
In fulfilment of Part IV of the 
Environment Act 1995 
Local Air Quality Management 
 
2023-2028 
 
 

Page 17



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2023   

 

 

Local Authority 
Officer 

Steve Manning 

Department Environment & Community 

Address Civic Centre, Newport, NP20 4UR 

Telephone (01633) 656 656 

E-mail Air.Quality@newport.gov.uk 

Report Reference 
number 

AQAP_2023 

Date October 2023 

 

 

Page 18



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  i 

Summary 
This Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP) has been produced as part of Newport City 
Councils’ statutory duties required by the Local Air Quality Management framework. 
It outlines the actions we will endeavor to take to improve air quality in Newport City 
Council between 2023 and 2028. 

This action plan replaces the previous action plan which ran from 2008 and 2013. 

This update of Newport City Councils AQAP for the period 2023 to 2028 builds upon 
the gradual progress that has been made towards achieving air quality that does not 
exceed air quality objectives anywhere in NCCs area.  

Air pollution in Newport City Councils (NCCs) area is undergoing a transformation. 
The advent of COVID and associated lockdowns in early 2020 continues to show that 
that air quality impacts have not reverted to their 2019 levels and should continue 
their downward trends towards sustained compliance; perhaps due to changed 
working patterns, fuel prices and increasing modal change in transportation towards 
cleaner technologies such as electric cars, buses and even refuse vehicles. The 
councils five AQMAs centered around motorway junctions are all identified for 
revocation in view of ongoing sustained compliance and nitrogen dioxide trends 
which support this. In view of this, this AQAP is focused upon the six AQMAs that are 
not situated at M4 junctions; this being the AQMAs of Caerleon, Caerphilly Road, 
Cefn Road, Chepstow Road, George Street and Malpas Road. The Welsh Clean Air 
Advisory Panel stated in their report on the impacts of COVID-19 pandemic upon air 
quality on Wales that  

“the COVID crisis has illustrated the role of societal change and behaviour in 
reducing air pollution and emphasises the importance of social sciences (such as 
social practice theory) to the air quality management process.” 

At the end of 2022 air quality in Newport was observed to be compliant with air 
quality standards across its six non-M4 based AQMAs. Where measures continue to 
be adopted the revocation of these AQMAs may be possible as early as 2025 if 
levels are observed to continue their trend. 

Our duty towards NCC citizens through the Well Being of Future Generations Act 
links with this AQAP as does the newly adopted NCC Operational Climate Change 
Plan. Both Climate Change and LAQM work being inextricably linked with the 
improvement of air quality. The need for compliance with air quality objectives is 
envisaged as just the start of the air quality journey; as air quality improvements 
should be pursued beyond mere compliance with the best achievable air quality our 
aim in Newport wherever possible. 

The measures identified within this AQAP are set against 2022 nitrogen dioxide 
levels and traffic counts commissioned in 2022.  The ability of measures identified by 
communities and the council, to have additional impacts upon NO2 levels has been 
modelled where this is possible. Inevitably it is not possible to implement all 
measures at once due to available resources, however measures will be 
implemented wherever resources or opportunities allow between 2023-2028. 
Reassuringly there are already measures being implemented on an ongoing basis 
e.g. development of new active travel infrastructure, electrification of the Newport 
Bus fleet, electrification of the Newport City Council fleet, provision of green 
infrastructure, anti-idling actions and EV charging through the planning process, and 

Page 19



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  ii 

education and awareness projects relating to air quality with schools and 
communities. 

Measures currently being worked on within AQMAs includes school travel plans, air 
quality education and monitoring in schools, plus the promotion of air quality 
messaging in communities through indicative sensors in public spaces and enabling 
AQMA groups to develop their own project ideas for funding bids in 2024. 

Through the work of Air Quality Groups and Council Officers a range of measures 
are presented in Table 1 on the next page. Some are common to all AQMAs and 
others are bespoke for the AQMA concerned. 

The councils Senior Scientific Officer will continue to work with communities living 
within AQMAs, and provide space for communities to develop their own interventions 
beyond those in the AQAP where resources external to those of NCC may arise. It is 
hoped that bringing together the aims of the AQAP, and communities in bespoke 
working will provide an inclusive range of air quality actions within each AQMA that 
can be taken forward.  

 

Page 20



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  iii 

 

Measures that are likely to contribute to emission reductions in each of the 6 AQMAs 

between 2023 -2028: 

 

Measure Theme Measure Approach in all AQMAs 

Emissions from 

Transport 
• Promoting a cleaner vehicle fleet and alternatives 

• 100% eBus services 

• ECO Stars haulage accreditation scheme update 

• Infrastructure projects where feasible 

• Green barrier (Caerphilly Road AQMA) 

Emissions from 

new development 

 

• Encourage EV charging as part of applications 
 

• Encourage Low Carbon heating as part of applications 
 

• Encourage Green infrastructure as part of applications 
 

• Encourage zero emission public transport access as part of 
applications 

 

• Updating Planning Guidance and Policy on Air Quality 
  

Education & 

Awareness 
• ECO Post air quality messaging monitors 

• Schools air quality monitoring learning initiative 

• Exploring walking hubs at school run times (Caerleon AQMA) 

• Maintaining Community Air Quality Groups 

Active 

Travel/Green 

Infrastructure 

• Promotion of Active Travel opportunities 

• Facilitate School Travel Plans 

• Promote School streets initiative 

• Promotion of green infrastructure opportunities 

 

In addition, the development control process will be used within AQMAs and 
throughout NCCs area to seek contributions from developers toward the 
improvement of air quality whether in the form of active measures or facilitating 
measures through s.106 contributions. 

In this AQAP we outline how we plan to effectively tackle air quality issues within our 
control. However, we recognise that there are many air quality policy areas that are 
outside our influence (such as vehicle emissions standards agreed in Europe), but for 
which we may have useful evidence, and so we will continue to work with regional 
and central government on policies and issues beyond Newport City Council’s direct 
influence. 

The council will continue to work with regional and Welsh Government on air quality 
policies and issues. It will also continue work that is already being undertaken: 

Page 21



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  iv 

• Inspect all its permitted processes under Environmental Permitting (England and 
Wales) Regulations 2016, (EPR), to ensure compliance, that permits are updated as 
and when appropriate, and operation conditions are up to date with the latest 
guidance. 

• Monitor nitrogen dioxide in its district to ensure air quality within the AQMAs and 
elsewhere does not deteriorate. 

Responsibilities and Commitment 

This AQAP was prepared by the Community & Environment department of Newport 
City Council with the support and agreement of the following officers, departments 
and external consultants: 

Corporate Steering group: 

• Steven Manning (Senior Scientific Officer) 

• Matthew Cridland (Regulatory Services Manager, Environment & Community) 

• Sylvia Gonzalez Lopez (Head of Environment and Public Protection) 

• Steve Davies (Senior Strategy Manager) – Strategic Highways 

• Richard Sexty (Education Transformation Manager) - Education 

• Andrew Brooks (Highways Manager) - Highways 

• Alistair Hopkins (Service Manager Transport) – Active Travel 

• Ross Cudlipp (Climate Change Manager) – Climate Change 

• Richard Cope (Transportation Manager) – Public Transport 

• Laura Waldron (Programme Manager) – Climate Change 

• Andrew Ferguson (Planning & Development Manager) - Regeneration 

 

Community Air Quality Groups: 

• Caerleon AQMA Air Quality Group 

• Caerphilly Road and Cefn Road AQMAs Air Quality Group 

• Chepstow Road, George Street and Malpas Road AQMAs Air Quality Group 

All groups included community stakeholder reps from faith groups, schools, 
residents’ groups and environmental groups. Additionally local councilors and cabinet 
members for environment and sustainability were involved in the groups. 

 

External Consultants: 

• AECOM (AQAP scoping, source apportionment and modelling) 

• Air Quality Consultants (Annual Progress Reports) 

 

This AQAP has been approved by: 

Cllr Yvonne Forsey, Cabinet Member for Sustainability 

Page 22



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  v 

 

This AQAP will be subject to an annual review/appraisal of progress and reporting to 
the Cabinet member for Environment. Progress each year will be reported in the 
Annual Progress Reports (APRs) produced by Newport City Council, as part of our 
statutory Local Air Quality Management duties. 

If you have any comments on this AQAP please send them to Community & 
Environment at: 

Civic Centre, Newport, South Wales, NP20 4UR 

Telephone (01633) 656 656 

Air.Quality@newport.gov.uk 

Page 23



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  vi 

Table of Contents 

Summary .................................................................................................................... i 

Responsibilities and Commitment ..................................................................................... iv 

1. Introduction ...................................................................................................... 1 

2. Summary of Current Air Quality in Newport City Council ............................ 2 

3. Newport City Council’s Air Quality Priorities ................................................ 8 

3.1 Public Health Context ............................................................................................ 9 

3.2 Community context ...............................................................................................11 

3.3 Wellbeing of Future Generations context ..............................................................12 

3.4 Climate Change context .......................................................................................12 

3.5 Sustainable Travel Strategy context .....................................................................13 

3.6 Biodiversity and Ecosystems ................................................................................13 

3.7 Planning and Policy context .................................................................................14 

3.8 Pending Legislation Context .................................................................................15 

3.9 Other contexts ......................................................................................................15 

3.10 Source Apportionment ..........................................................................................16 

3.11 Required Reduction in Emissions (based upon 2019 data) ..................................21 

Caerleon AQMA ......................................................................................................................... 21 

Malpas Road AQMA .................................................................................................................. 22 

Chepstow Road/ Caerleon Road AQMA.................................................................................. 22 

Cefn Road AQMA ...................................................................................................................... 23 

Caerphilly Road AQMA ............................................................................................................. 23 

Royal Oak Hill AQMA ................................................................................................................ 24 

Glasllwch AQMA ........................................................................................................................ 24 

St Julian’s AQMA ...................................................................................................................... 24 

Shaftesbury AQMA .................................................................................................................... 25 

3.12 Dispersion Modelling ............................................................................................25 

Dispersion Modelling........................................................................................................26 

Measure Scenarios ..........................................................................................................27 

Limitations .......................................................................................................................28 

Model Results ................................................................................................................29 

Caerleon High Street AQMA ..................................................................................................... 29 

Caerphilly Road AQMA ............................................................................................................. 30 

Cefn Road .................................................................................................................................. 32 

Chepstow Road/Caerleon Road AQMA ................................................................................... 34 

George Street AQMA................................................................................................................. 35 

Malpas Road AQMA.................................................................................................................... 37 

3.13 AQMA Compliance ...............................................................................................38 

3.14 Review of ongoing reductions required .................................................................39 

Page 24



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  vii 

3.15 Key Priorities for Air Quality in Newport City Council ............................................39 

4. Development and Implementation of Newport City Council AQAP ........... 42 

4.1 Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement..........................................................42 

4.2 AQMA Groups ......................................................................................................43 

4.3 Steering Group .....................................................................................................43 

5. AQAP Measures ............................................................................................. 44 

5.1 ‒ Air Quality Action Plan Measures – Caerleon AQMA ..............................................45 

5.2 – Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in Caerleon AQMA .....................46 

5.3 ‒ Air Quality Action Plan Measures – Caerphilly Road AQMA....................................47 

5.4 – Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in Caerphilly Road AQMA ..........48 

5.5 ‒ Air Quality Action Plan Measures – Cefn Road AQMA ............................................49 

5.6 – Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in Cefn Road AQMA ..................50 

5.7- Air Quality Action Plan Measures – Chepstow Road .................................................51 

5.8 - Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in Chepstow Road AQMA.................52 

5.9 - Air Quality Action Plan Measures – George Street AQMA .......................................53 

5.10 – Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in George Street AQMA .............54 

5.11 - Air Quality Action Plan Measures – Malpas Road AQMA .......................................55 

5.12 – Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in Malpas Road AQMA ..............56 

5.13 Taking Things Forward .................................................................................. 57 

Appendix A: ............................................................................................................ 58 

Air Quality Prior to 2022 ......................................................................................... 58 

Trends in AQMAs ...........................................................................................................58 

Caerleon AQMA ......................................................................................................................... 59 

Malpas Road AQMA .................................................................................................................. 61 

Chepstow Road / Caerleon Road AQMA ................................................................................. 63 

Cefn Road AQMA....................................................................................................................... 65 

Caerphilly Road AQMA ............................................................................................................. 67 

George Street AQMA ................................................................................................................. 69 

Royal Oak Hill AQMA ................................................................................................................ 72 

Glasllwch AQMA ........................................................................................................................ 74 

St Julian’s AQMA ....................................................................................................................... 76 

High Cross AQMA ..................................................................................................................... 78 

Shaftesbury AQMA .................................................................................................................... 80 

Analysis of Trends .........................................................................................................82 

Appendix B: Response to Consultation ............................................................... 83 

Appendix C: Measures (ongoing and suggested) ............................................... 84 

Glossary of Terms .................................................................................................. 92 

References .............................................................................................................. 94 

Page 25



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  viii 

 

Page 26



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  ix 

 
List of Tables 
 
Table 1 - 2022 NO2 monitoring data and previous 4 years……………………3 
Table 2 - Air Quality Themes and Candidate Measures by AQMA………….. 9 
Table 3 - Sustainable Travel Strategy and AQAP parallels……………………14 
Table 4 - Required NOx Reduction for Caerleon AQMA……………………….22 
Table 5 - Required NOx Reduction for Malpas Road AQMA…………………..23 
Table 6 - Required NOx Reduction for Chepstow Road AQMA……………….24 
Table 7 - Required NOx Reduction for Cefn Road AQMA……………………...25 
Table 8 - Required NOx Reduction for Caerphilly Road AQMA……………….25 
Table 9 - Required NOx Reduction for George Street AQMA………………….26 
Table 10 - Measures capable of being modelled……………………………..…. 27 
Table 11 - Modelled Scenarios for each AQMA………………………………….. 28 
Table 12- Caerleon High Street AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 and 2022.29 
Table 13 - Caerleon High Street AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024…………. 29 
Table 14 - Caerphilly Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 and 2022…… 31 
Table 15 - Caerphilly Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024………………..32 
Table 16 - Cefn Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 and 2022..…………33 
Table 17 - Cefn Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024……………………….33 
Table 18 - Chepstow Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 and 2022…….34 
Table 19 - Chepstow Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024…………………35 
Table 20 - George Street AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 and 2022……….36 
Table 21 - George Street AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024……………………36 
Table 22 - Malpas Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 and 2022…………37 
Table 23 - Malpas Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024……………………..37 
Table 24 - Interpolated NO2 concentrations (μg/m3) for 2019-2024 at selected 
receptors………………………………………………………………………………..…38 
Table 25 - Recorded NO2 concentrations (μg/m3) for 2019-2024 at selected 
diffusion tube sites closest to selected modelled receptors in Table 24 ……..39 
Table 26 - Council Key Priorities and Measures…………………………………….41 
Table 27 - Consultation Undertaken…………………………………………………...42 
 
List of Figures 
 
Figure 1 – Source Apportionment Caerleon High Street………………………….17 
Figure 2 – Source Apportionment Caerphilly Road………………………………..18 
Figure 3 – Source Apportionment Cefn Road……………………………………….19 
Figure 4 – Source Apportionment Chepstow Road…………………………………19 
Figure 5 – Source Apportionment George Street………………………...…………20 
Figure 6– Source Apportionment Malpas Road…………………………………......20  
 
 

Page 27



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  1 

1. Introduction 
 

This report outlines the actions that Newport City Council will deliver between 2023 and 2028 
to continue reducing concentrations of air pollutants and exposure to air pollution; thereby 
positively impacting on the health and quality of life of residents and visitors to the Newport 
City Council area. 

It has been developed in recognition of the legal requirement on the local authority to work 
towards Air Quality Strategy (AQS) objectives under Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 and 
relevant regulations made under that part and to meet the requirements of the Local Air 
Quality Management (LAQM) statutory process. 

NCC has taken up the Welsh Government challenge of achieving compliance with the 
nitrogen dioxide Air Quality Objective (AQO) that has been breached within its six non-M4 
based AQMAs in the shortest possible time. The way in which this is taken forward will be 
dependent upon resources available to both the council, partners, and communities to 
implement air quality measures ranging from the simplest plantings to innovative engineered 
solutions where possible. Everyone’s contribution counts at all scales. 

This Plan will be reviewed every five years and progress on measures set out within this Plan 
will be reported on annually within Newport City Council’s air quality Annual Progress Report 
(APR). 

The work of Environment & Community through the Air Quality Groups serving the 
communities of the councils AQMAs will be an ongoing activity that aims to take things 
beyond sustained compliance towards the best achievable air quality for all. 

 

Leader TBC 

Councillor Yvonne Forsey, Cabinet Member for Climate Change & Biodiversity 

Yvonne Forsey 
 

 

Page 28



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  2 

2. Summary of Current Air Quality in Newport 
City Council 

Most of Newport’s 11 Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) have experienced continued 
improvement in observed NO2 levels over the last 5-7 years. 

Newport City Council’s 2020 to 2022 Annual Progress Reports (Newport City Council, 2020) 
have shown that prevailing air quality continues to show improvements year on year. 

Appendix A of this document contains air quality data for 2015 to 2020 for the 11 AQMAs 
and provides the current status of each reported at February 2022. Local monitoring data has 
been assessed to consider trends and locations of current exceedances of the air quality 
objectives. Overall, it is noted that the majority of the AQMAs have experienced some 
improvement in NO2 concentrations over the last 5-7 years, although exceedances remained 
in some AQMAs when considering 2019 data. Data is available for 2020 and 2021, and is 
presented, however, this data will have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and is 
likely not representative of long-term trends.  

As it has also been possible to obtain ratified data for diffusion tube monitoring during 2022 
over the course of producing this plan; 2022 data has been used as the base year for 
undertaking modelling of measures and used as the descriptor year for current air quality. 
Surprisingly across many local authorities in the United Kingdom in 2022, continued year on 
year reduction in NO2 emissions has been observed within AQMAs. The annual average 
concentration of nitrogen dioxide for all diffusion tubes at residential receptors in 2022 stayed 
below the air quality objective of 40 μg/m3. This is the first time this has been observed in 
Newport’s AQMAs across all monitoring locations and may represent the start of the 
sustained compliance journey which will end eventually with revocation of its AQMAs. Table 
1 overpage shows the observed nitrogen dioxide annual averages for all monitoring locations 
run between 2018 and 2022. 

The value of funding for measures that is accessible through Welsh Government LAQM 
grants remains important to NCC as achieving compliance over the shortest possible 
timescale and sustaining it is a priority. NCCs view is that sustained compliance needs to be 
demonstrated over a number of years where no greater than 90% of the AQO level of 40 
μg/m3 is being observed and trends remain downward or flat i.e. 36 μg/m3 or less.  

If the observed compliance in 2022 across all AQMAs continues for at least another 3 years 
then their revocation should be possible around 2025. 

 

 

Please also refer to the latest APR from Newport City Council at 
https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Transport-Streets/Pollution-and-noise-control/Air-quality-data-
reports.aspx 

Page 29

https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Transport-Streets/Pollution-and-noise-control/Air-quality-data-reports.aspx
https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Transport-Streets/Pollution-and-noise-control/Air-quality-data-reports.aspx


Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  3 

Table 1 – 2022 NO2 monitoring data and previous 4 years. 

 

    

Diffusion 
Tube ID 

Site Type 

Valid Data 
Capture for 
Monitoring 
Period (%)  

Valid 
Data 

Capture 
2022 (%) 

NO2 Annual Mean Concentration (µg/m3) 

    
   

 Location  AQMA 

    

              

    2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 

St Julian’s 
(AURN) 

AURN AN1 
Urban 

Background 
61.9 61.9 19.0* 20 15 15.1 15.0** 

14 High 
Street 

Caerleon 
Caerleon NCC8 Roadside 100 100 38.3 34.6 27.9 28.9 27.1 

19 High 
Street 

(Caerleon) 
Caerleon NCC25C Façade 100 100 41.6 43.8 26.9 29.2 28 

15 High 
Street, 

Caerleon 
Caerleon NCC26B Façade 91.7 91.7 50.9 48.6 35 35.4 33.4 

18 High 
Street, 

Caerleon 
Caerleon NCC27B Roadside 100 100 41.6 40.5 28.5 30.4 30.2 

6 Castle 
Street, 

Caerleon 
Caerleon NCC35A Roadside 91.7 91.7 25.6 25.9 22.7 23.2 22.3 

1 Castle 
Street, 

Caerleon 
Caerleon NCC36A Roadside 91.7 91.7 23.6 23 19.6 19.7 20 

7 Castle 
Street 

(Caerleon) 
Caerleon NCC43A Roadside 91.7 91.7 29.7 30.3 22.9 22.9 23.3 

9 Castle 
Street 

(Caerleon) 
Caerleon NCC47A Roadside 100 100 34.3 36.7 25.1 25.9 26.4 

Carlton 
House, 
Carlton 

Terr_ High 
Street, 

Caerleon 

Caerleon NCC74 Roadside 100 100 23.5 24.9 17.5 19.3 18.1 

Gwent 
Cottage 

Caerleon NCC79 Roadside 100 100 18.8 21.1 31.7 31.6 19.7 

Charles 
Williams 
Primary 
School 

Caerleon NCC83 Roadside 83.3 83.3 14 14.9 11 12.2 12.9 

5 Caerphilly 
Road 

Caerphilly 
Rd 

NCC30B Roadside 83.3 83.3 28.9 30.5 22.7 23.7 22.1 

Page 30



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  4 

    

Diffusion 
Tube ID 

Site Type 

Valid Data 
Capture for 
Monitoring 
Period (%)  

Valid 
Data 

Capture 
2022 
(%) 

NO2 Annual Mean Concentration (µg/m3) 

    
   

 Location  AQMA 

    

              

    2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 
 

85 
Caerphilly 

Road 

Caerphilly 
Rd 

NCC48D Roadside 100 100 44.9 42.5 34.9 35 33.8 

8 Caerphilly 
Road 

Caerphilly 
Rd 

NCC49C Roadside 100 100 29.7 28.3 23.9 24.7 23.3 

5 Cefn 
Road 

Cefn Rd NCC29C Façade 83.3 83.3 41 42.7 31 32.4 37.5 

69 Cefn 
Road 

Cefn Rd NCC33B Façade 100 100 32.4 32.8 23.5 27.5 33 

19 Cefn 
Road 

Cefn Rd NCC71A Façade 100 100 39.8 37.8 28.1 34.9 29.4 

69 
Chepstow 

Road 

Chepstow 
Rd 

NCC1 Roadside 100 100 29.7 30.2 24.1 24.1 23.4 

19 
Caerleon 

Road 

Chepstow 
Rd 

NCC24C Façade 100 100 31.1 35.8 26.3 27.5 28.9 

155 
Caerleon 

Road 

Chepstow 
Rd 

NCC28B Roadside 83.3 83.3 33.7 34.2 28.4 29.6 26.4 

9 Caerleon 
Road 

Chepstow 
Rd 

NCC50 Roadside 100 100 38.1 41.4 30.2 32.3 28.5 

153/155 
Chepstow 

Road 

Chepstow 
Rd 

NCC65 Roadside 91.7 91.7 44 45 31.9 33.6 30.1 

109 
Chepstow 

Road 

Chepstow 
Rd 

NCC66 Roadside 91.7 91.7 34.8 34.8 25.7 28.2 29.4 

1 
Livingstone 

Place 

Chepstow 
Rd 

NCC81 Roadside 83.3 83.3 34.5 39.5 27.8 28 29 

73 George 
Street 

George St NCC12A Façade 100 100 35.1 36.4 28.1 29.1 30.2 

81 George 
Street 

George St NCC51 Façade 100 100 37.5 41.1 32.8 31.9 32.9 

17 George 
Street 

George St NCC62 Façade 91.7 91.7 32.3 35.4 25.5 28 33.6 

6 George 
Street 

George St NCC72A Façade 91.7 91.7 33.5 33.6 27.5 28.3 28.8 

158 
Bassaleg 

Road 
Glasllwch NCC18C Façade 100 100 39.5 27.8 22.4 20.9 19.8 

Bassaleg 
Road 

(162/3) 
Glasllwch NCC41B Façade 91.7 91.7 25.4 22.4 17.8 22.8 22.1 

69 
Glasllwch 
Crescent  

High 
Cross 

NCC2C Façade 91.7 91.7 36.2 35.8 26.3 28.3 27.8 

Page 31



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  5 

    

Diffusion 
Tube ID 

Site Type 

Valid Data 
Capture for 
Monitoring 
Period (%)  

Valid 
Data 

Capture 
2022 
(%) 

NO2 Annual Mean Concentration (µg/m3) 

    
   

 Location  AQMA 

    

              

    2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 
 

 

67 
Glasllwch 
Crescent 

High 
Cross 

NCC4B Façade 100 100 34.8 33.5 25.4 25.3 25.9 

64 
Glasllwch 
Crescent 

High 
Cross 

NCC7B Façade 100 100 27.6 29.2 21.1 23.4 22.1 

Glasllwch 
Crescent 

High 
Cross 

NCC15 Roadside 100 100 22.5 23.4 24.3 22.5 20.8 

48 Malpas 
Road 

Malpas Rd NCC14A Roadside 100 100 37.6 40 25.9 28.6 28.8 

4-6 Malpas 
Road 

Malpas Rd NCC64 Roadside 83.3 83.3 39.7 41 28.8 31.8 19.2 

Buckland 
Cottage 

Royal Oak NCC31 Façade 100 100 36.7 35.6 29.9 26.6 25.7 

153 Malpas 
Road  

Shaftsbury NCC6B Roadside 100 100 34.6 31.2 25.7 24.4 22.6 

179 Malpas 
Road 

Shaftsbury NCC17A Façade 100 100 25.4 25.6 20.3 21 20.3 

40 Denbigh 
Road 

St Julians NCC16A Roadside 100 100 28.2 27.5 22.6 21.8 22.1 

40 Denbigh 
Road 

St Julians 1S1 Facade 91.7 91.7 - - - 20.6 17.1 

Denbigh 
Road Lamp 

post 
St Julians 1S2 Roadside 100 100 - - - 18.9 17.3 

Denbigh 
Road Rail 

St Julians 1S3 Roadside 100 100 - - - 20.6 19.4 

41 Denbigh 
Road 

St Julians 1S4 Facade 100 100 - - - 17.1 16.3 

M4 Old 
Barn 

WG AN2 Roadside 70.2 70.2 41 36.5 28.3 32.4 29.2** 

M4 
Groundhog 

1 (Old 
Barn) 

WG 
NCC21D, 
NCC23E 

N/A 100 100 54.6 48.5 46.7 34.7 33.8 

St. Julians 
School 

AURN 

NCC37, 
NCC38, 
NCC39 

Background 91.7 91.7 18.6 18.5 14.4 13.5 13.3 

13 Mill 
Street 

(Caerleon) 
xNone NCC3A Façade 91.7 91.7 17.6 18 12.6 15 13.6 

Page 32



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  6 

 

    

Diffusion 
Tube ID 

Site Type 

Valid Data 
Capture for 
Monitoring 
Period (%)  

Valid 
Data 

Capture 
2022 
(%) 

NO2 Annual Mean Concentration (µg/m3) 

    
   

 Location  AQMA 

    

              

    2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 
 

 

276 
Corporation 

Road 
xNone NCC5 Roadside 100 100 27.3 28.3 27 28 26.6 

182 
Corporation 

Road 
xNone NCC9D Roadside 91.7 91.7 27.5 29.3 26.8 26.1 26.5 

169 
Caerleon 

Road 
xNone NCC11A Roadside 100 100 31 32.3 25.2 26.4 25.3 

Corporation 
Road Flats 
Crossing 

xNone NCC13A Roadside 100 100 - - 26.9 29.2 26.7 

700 
Corporation 

Road 
xNone NCC19A Roadside 100 100 - - 30 29.8 26.9 

222 
Corporation 

Road 
xNone NCC20C Roadside 100 100 32.5 35.3 28.8 30.8 30.8 

21 Bridge 
Street 

xNone NCC32E Façade 91.7 91.7 28.2 28.6 21.2 22.6 22.2 

The Priory, 
Caerleon 

xNone NCC34A Façade 100 100 26.7 27.1 19.9 20.5 19.4 

23 Bridge 
Street 

xNone NCC40B Roadside 100 100 29.6 33.6 23.1 26.3 26.4 

69 Cardiff 
Road 

(Bellevue 
Stores) 

xNone NCC42 Roadside 91.7 91.7 25.4 24 18.1 24.7 25.4 

175/177 
Corporation 

Road 
xNone NCC44B Roadside 100 100 27.2 29.5 22.2 23 22.5 

201 
Corporation 

Road 
xNone NCC45B Roadside 91.7 91.7 29.2 31.2 24 24.7 24.9 

*148 
Chepstow 

Road 
xNone NCC46B Roadside 100 100 44.4 48.1 35 37.3 35.3 

9 Station 
Road 

(Caerleon) 
xNone NCC52 Roadside 91.7 91.7 21 21 18.5 18.6 18.4 

5 High 
Street 

(Caerleon) 
xNone NCC53 Roadside 100 100 19.9 22 15.6 16 15.2 

Page 33



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  7 

    

Diffusion 
Tube ID 

Site Type 

Valid Data 
Capture for 
Monitoring 
Period (%)  

Valid 
Data 

Capture 
2022 
(%) 

NO2 Annual Mean Concentration (µg/m3) 

    
   

 Location  AQMA 

    

              

    2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 
 

 

12 Eastfield 
Road 

xNone NCC54 Façade 100 100 - - - 8.9 7.7 

52 College 
Glade 

xNone NCC55 Façade 91.7 91.7 - - - 9.7 9.7 

30 Clytha 
Park Sq 
(Spar) 

xNone NCC57 Roadside 91.7 91.7 29.6 28.3 22.1 25.8 25.8 

1 Caerau 
Road 

xNone NCC58 Roadside 91.7 91.7 37.6 38.4 29.4 30.4 30.4 

99 Stow Hill  xNone NCC59 Roadside 91.7 91.7 28.2 28.4 20.4 19.8 21.6 

1 Victoria 
Place 

xNone NCC60 Roadside 100 100 34 31 22.2 23.6 24.1 

41 Pant 
Road 

xNone NCC63 
Reassigned 
to NCC84 

100 100 - - - - 27 

1-17 
Corporation 

Road 
xNone NCC67 Façade 100 100 30.3 34.6 26 25.9 23.1 

Art College, 
Clarence 

Place 
xNone NCC68 Roadside 83.3 83.3 31.5 32.1 20.4 23.5 23.5 

180 
Caerleon 

Road 
xNone NCC69 Roadside 91.7 91.7 25.2 27 21.7 22.1 21.4 

1 Queens 
Hill 

xNone NCC70 Façade 75 75 23.6 35.4 25.8 29.9 28.1 

19 
Goldcroft 
Common 

(Caerleon) 

xNone NCC75 Façade 100 100 15.4 19.2 12.8 12.9 12.2 

34 Queens 
Hill 

xNone NCC77 
Reassigned 
to NCC85 

100 100 - - - - 18.6 

708 
Corporation 

Road 
xNone NCC78 Façade 100 100 30.6 29.2 19.6 20.3 30.1 

24 Bridge 
Street 

xNone NCC80 Façade 100 100 25 41.8 29.4 33.1 33.6 

13 Queens 
Hill 

xNone NCC82 Façade 91.7 91.7 25.9 18.5 18.6 21 20.5 

41 Pant 
Road 

xNone NCC84 Roadside 100 100 28.9 29 19.9 18.9 - 

34 Queens 
Hill 

xNone NCC85 Façade 100 100   29.2 17.7 19.1 - 

 

Page 34



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  8 

3. Newport City Council’s Air Quality Priorities 
 
 

The reason Newport City Council currently needs an Air Quality Action Plan is to achieve and 
maintain compliance with Air Quality Objectives. Newport is a compact city with a motorway 
running through it and arterial trunk roads that unavoidably experience heavy trafficking and 
when motorway incidents occur diverted traffic which exacerbates an already busy network. 
Opportunities to reduce transport related air quality pressure are sough wherever possible 
either directly or through indirect routes such as development control where air quality 
beneficial measures can be embedded at the planning stage and realised in built out sites 
through things like ULEV infrastructure, anti-idling schemes and green infrastructure. 
 
Newport’s air quality lends itself to city centre based AQMAs (Chepstow Road/Caerleon 
Road, George Street and Malpas Road), suburban AQMAs (Caerphilly Road and Cefn 
Road), and an AQMA in the settlement of Caerleon. Motorway junction based AQMAs have 
also been declared in 5 locations however these have seen improvements since 50mph 
probably in conjunction with some modal change, a transition to cleaner vehicles and EV and 
of course COVID anomalies in 2020 & 2021 which have brought about more home working 
and changed patterns of office attendance both in terms of days and the time of day; all of 
which combine to take pressure off air quality at these junctions. 
 
The City is undergoing transformation from some of its industrial past to accommodate new 
communities such as the Glan Lyn development and its growth is ongoing in keeping with 
Welsh Government drivers for housing provision and the Well Being of Future Generations.  
 
As mentioned, NCC has taken up Welsh Government’s challenge of achieving compliance 
with those AQOs that are currently breached within its six non-M4 AQMAs in the shortest 
possible time. The way in which this is taken forward will be dependent upon resources 
available to both the council, its partners, and communities in order to implement air quality 
measures ranging from the simplest plantings to innovative engineered solutions where they 
can be funded. Please note that M4 based AQMAs are now identified for revocation 
chronologically in accordance with their sustained compliance measurement years. 
 
Having a Sustainable Travel Strategy (STS) makes the need for improvements that impact 
on air quality applicable across all of Newport City Council and not just its AQMAs. In 
conjunction with the AQAP the STS forms a raft of policy and practice that is aimed at 
improving air quality on an ongoing basis. 
 
The value of and engagement with communities and schools cannot be underestimated as it 
is at the root of behaviour change either through school children as future agents of change 
adopting investigation-based learning on air quality or established community groups and 
individuals feeling empowered through being given the tools to generate their own air quality-
based projects. 
 
The work of other corporate teams on themes like climate change, green infrastructure and 
active travel offer strong linkages with the priorities of this AQAP and may well lead on 
occasion or work in tandem with the AQAP. 
Air Quality principal themes have been approved based upon other AQAP practice and the 
organisation of functional areas at NCC. These are shown with associated candidate 
measures in Table 1 on the next page. 

Page 35



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  9 

Table 2 – Air Quality Themes and Candidate Measures by AQMA 

Measure Theme Measure Approach in all AQMAs 

Emissions from 

Transport 
• Promoting a cleaner vehicle fleet and alternatives 

• 100% eBus services 

• ECO Stars haulage accreditation scheme update 

• Infrastructure projects where feasible 

• Green barrier (Caerphilly Road AQMA) 

Emissions from 

new development 

 

• Encourage EV charging as part of applications 
 

• Encourage low energy heating as part of applications 
 

• Encourage Green infrastructure as part of applications 
 

• Encourage zero emission public transport access as part of 
applications 

 

• Updating Planning Guidance and Policy on Air Quality 
  

Education & 

Awareness 
• ECO Post air quality messaging monitors 

• Schools air quality monitoring learning initiative 

• Exploring walking hubs at school run times (Caerleon AQMA) 

• Maintaining Community Air Quality Groups 

Active 

Travel/Green 

Infrastructure 

• Promotion of Active Travel opportunities 

• Facilitate School Travel Plans 

• Promote School streets initiative 

• Promotion of green infrastructure opportunities 

  
 
 
 

3.1 Public Health Context 

The public health aspects of air quality have always been a concern for environmental health 
practitioners engaged in air quality work and each year new bodies of work are released 
which shed light on the health impacts of air quality and reinforce the need for ongoing 
interventions to improve air quality e.g.  The UK Air Quality Plan of 2017 which clarified and 
reinforced the mechanisms by which air quality impacts upon human health in plain 
language. 

The evidence base now includes caselaw which has cited air quality as a contributory factor 
in the death of an individual for the first time. A landmark second inquest ruled that air 
pollution contributed to the death in London of a 9-year old, stating that: 

 

Page 36



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  10 

“Air pollution was a significant contributory factor to both the induction 
and exacerbation of Ella’s asthma. During the course of her illness, 
between 2010-2013, she was exposed to levels of NO2 and PM in excess 
of WHO Guidelines. The principle source of her exposure was traffic 
emissions.”  

 

World Health Organisation (WHO) air quality guide limits are now pushing the case with 
governments for more stringent limits around the world. Public Health Wales is working with 
Welsh Government and others to inform the development of new, tougher targets on air 
pollution. Increased public awareness about air pollution is also a key priority and they are 
currently reviewing and updating current resources of air pollution to include better, more 
specific messaging for different groups such as parents and the health community.’ (Air 
Quality Wales 2020). 

Newport City Council recognises the importance of engagement with communities in respect 
of health and air quality and has formed air quality groups of local stakeholders that cover the 
six non-M4 based AQMAs of Caerleon, Caerphilly Road, Cefn Road, Chepstow 
Road/Caerleon Road, George Street and Malpas Road. 

Whatever the role, if any, air pollution is found to have in the spread of COVID-19, the 
pandemic has highlighted health and societal inequalities and inequities, including those 
relating to air quality. To address these, Public Health Wales is working with local authorities 
and academics as part of the Clean Air Advisory Panel that will make recommendations to 
Welsh Government on policies that will protect the most vulnerable from air pollution.  
Newport City Council has also been part of the ‘Air Inequalities’ project that has been hosted 
by the Environment Agency in the UK. And from this wider networks of community groups 
and air quality champions have been established that promote air quality messages and 
practice. 

Even before COVID-19, Welsh Government had recognised the need to address the harms 
that are associated with the road traffic environment and pledged to cut the default speed 
limit from 30mph to 20mph where people live, work and play. There is evidence to suggest 
that the potential public health benefits of this will be significant and wide ranging, from 
reducing the number and severity of crashes, to reducing isolation, loneliness and 
community severance. There is also evidence that by encouraging ‘smoother’ driving, with 
less acceleration and braking, this change can have positive effects on air quality. In 
addition, it is also expected to encourage more people to walk and cycle, rather than using 
the car, which will also have the effect of improving air quality. The 20mph speed limits to be  
applied across Newport are likely to contribute to the health outcomes above. 

As recently as June 2022 the National Audit Office recognised the need for governmental 
expedience in tackling air quality after the unavoidable delays that have taken place as a 
result of the COVID Pandemic throughout 2020 & 2021. The passage of revised air quality 
legislation to tackle health impacts associated with nitrogen dioxide and particulates is 
currently taking place through Welsh Government and the regulatory requirements that arise 
from this should push forward the work that is done on air quality and raise the standards 
associated with it. 

Tools are starting to be developed which could enable air quality practitioners to identify the 
potential health savings that can be made through reducing levels of nitrogen dioxide where 
they are elevated e.g. increase in life expectancy/years, reductions in occurrence of disease. 
Additionally, a health care financial saving for the NHS might be estimated where air quality 
improves which may in turn serve to validate measures taken to improve air quality at a 
variety of scales. 

 

Page 37



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  11 

 

3.2 Community context 

Newport has a diverse range of communities living within its boundary and this is also 
reflected within the AQMAs it has. Engaging with communities and understanding their lived 
experiences of air quality pressures is considered by Newport City Council to be a key part of 
good LAQM practice and the review and delivery of AQAPs. After all if you are not taking into 
consideration the views of the communities living with poor air quality who are you delivering 
LAQM for?  
 
AQMAs in Newport include the least deprived and most deprived communities in Newport; 
and as such the council’s treatment of air quality needs to be inclusive of all communities 
within AQMAs. It is recognised that air quality issues in Newport are not limited by 
geographic boundary or deprivation status; it being seen on the mapping below that AQMAs 
include people from the most deprived to least deprived groups. The implication being that 
where resources are limited there may be a case for tackling issues in the most deprived 
areas first; however, the aim of the AQAP is that all of the measures to reduce emissions that 
are currently in place and those which can be implemented have as wide an impact across 
all AQMAs as possible e.g. electric bus services. 
 

 
 
As mentioned in 3.1 above, Newport City Council has engaged in the Environment Agency 
led Air Inequalities Project during 2020 to 2022 and this has resulted in improved networks of 
people and groups that are passionate about air quality and tackling inequalities in health 
and environmental exposure. Through the production of new AQAP it has been possible to 
form local air quality groups that serve the main 6 AQMAs. These groups provide a forum for 
local engagement regarding air quality issues that matter to people and it has been possible 
to discuss peoples lived experience of air quality in their neighbourhood. The councils senior 
scientific officer works with these groups to discuss work that is currently being done by the 

Page 38



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  12 

council and takes on board the groups ideas for things that could potentially be delivered by 
the council or local communities. Annual grant applications Welsh Government have 
provided continuous real time monitoring for AQMA communities so the daily pattern of air 
quality levels can be observed and discussed with communities in terms of driver behaviours 
and ways to reduce peak time emissions and encourage alternatives to car use where 
possible. Grant aided travel plan and air quality monitoring learning for schools within 
AQMAs, is being rolled out during 23/24. This will further develop engagement and 
messaging with communities about what we all need to consider and do in relation to travel 
and air quality where we can. 
 
School communities represent some of the most vulnerable receptors to poor air quality and 
NCC is committed to developing air quality interventions under the theme of Education & 
Awareness e.g. anti-idling schemes, school streets pilots, teaching resources and school 
travel plans. This will initially be across those schools within AQMAs but does not need to be 
limited to this in the longer term.  
 
 
 

3.3 Wellbeing of Future Generations context 

The Well Being of Future Generations Act forms an umbrella under which council all council 
activities are undertaken. This is no less the case with Air Quality and as such this AQAP is 
underpinned by the principles and guidance issued by the Future Generations Commissioner 
for Wales. 
 
A good example of this being the document Inequality in a Future Wales: Areas for action in 
work, climate, and demographic change (2021) which identifies inequalities relating to 
climate change and the need for stronger transportation and active travel measures in a 
Climate Change setting which in turn as mentioned 3.4 below, is a local air quality setting as 
well. 
 
In the document the Future Generations Commissioner for Wales states in the document 
Transforming how we move around in Cardiff:  
 
“There is an opportunity to create more sustainable transport solutions for the growth of 
population and economy in Cardiff and I advise you collaborate with some 'unusual suspects' 
to understand the implications of planning this for the long term.” 
 
“...consider how you encourage your own staff to make this shift, how you 
can reduce emissions in the way goods, services and people are moved, and 
how you can plan future infrastructure and housing in a way that enables 
people to use low-carbon transport, public transport, walk or cycle.” 

Newport has similar opportunities to transform how people move around the area in emission 
reducing ways. 

3.4 Climate Change context 

Actions to address Climate Change also contribute positively to local air quality as both have 
a common aim of reducing emissions to atmosphere. Where the carbon dioxide emissions of 
transportation are being tackled in a climate change context there is an associated benefit for 
local air quality in terms of emissions of nitrogen dioxide as both are components of 
combustion engine emissions. Local emissions and global challenges are inextricably linked 

Page 39



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  13 

and as such both Climate Change and Local Air Quality agendas need to be woven together 
for maximum impact. 
 
NCC Declared Climate Emergency and have followed up with a draft Climate Change Plan 
(2022) which means that linkages can be developed between this AQAP and the Climate 
Change Plan. In doing so the measures identified by both Climate Change Plan and Local 
Air Quality work can be accounted for in terms of their climate change and local air quality 
benefits. 
 
Closer working between Climate Change/Sustainability and Air Quality practitioners within 
NCC will enable stronger integrated investigations and problem solving to be achieved that 
addresses these inextricably linked areas. 

 

3.5 Sustainable Travel Strategy context 

Newport City Council approved a Sustainable Travel Strategy in 2019 which has a lot of 
parallels with this AQAP which are summarised below: 
 

Table 3 - Sustainable Travel Strategy and AQAP parallels 

 

Sustainable Travel Strategy Topics Air Quality Action Plan Pillars 

• Public Engagement/Schools • Education & Awareness 

• Transportation • Emissions from Transportation 

• Infrastructure/Active Travel • Active Travel & Green Infrastructure 

• Planning/Construction • Emissions from New Development 

 
As part of taking forward this AQAP it may be possible to incorporate elements of the STS 
which do not at present form part of the AQAP e.g. noise. This is further reinforced in the 
revision to TAN11 Planning advice note which brings together air quality, soundscape, 
biodiversity, and ecosystems. This was exemplified through the 2022 Clean Air Day event in 
Newport which included a guided environmental walk for school children actively observing 
air quality, noise and biodiversity and writing this up as part of school projects. 

3.6 Biodiversity and Ecosystems 

As mentioned in 3.5 and below in 3.7, biodiversity and ecosystems are a crucial element of 
the air quality and environmental space. This being exemplified within the revised TAN11 
planning advice note through the integration of biodiversity and air quality in Planning policy 
for Wales. Green Spaces and Infrastructure have a valuable role to play in providing air 
quality beneficial environments and through new development it has also been possible for 
NCC to request air quality beneficial plantings and species to underpin this valuable addition 
to local environments. Existing green space and ecosystems within NCC are also valued and 
need to be managed and considered such that they are not prejudiced by any air quality 
pressures that currently exist. The aim of this AQAP to achieve compliance within AQOs may 
also be applicable to the ongoing maintenance of existing and new green 
space/infrastructure and opportunities that may arise here. In some cases, green 
infrastructure may be a measure in its own right in contributing towards the compliance that 
is being sought in our AQMAs.; something which has already featured in air quality grant bids 
and will in the future.  
 
 
 

Page 40



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  14 

3.7 Planning and Policy context 

The Local Transport Plan is due to be replaced by a regional Transport Plan and as such this 

AQAP needs to feed into regional transport messaging. 

The place of air quality in s.106 planning obligations is something that this AQAP makes a 

commitment to pursue. Updating the NCC Planning SPG on air quality should further 

facilitate this. Where relevant requests are envisaged for the updating of monitoring 

equipment and local air quality action planning/measures. This in turn will continue to 

contribute towards achieving sustained air quality objective compliance. 

The Planning SPG in respect of air quality needs updating to reflect current practice in terms 

of air quality assessment and measure requests in relation to new development. 

As part of NCCs updating of its Local Development Plan the opportunity exists to Existing 

core policy that includes Air Quality and need for development of stand alone AQ Core Policy 

as part of new LDP 

s.106 requests to be developed in line with air quality measures identified for existing 

AQMAs in AQAP; and embedded in updated SPG. 

AQ SPG in place which specifies grounds for AQA and is under review with regard to 
incorporating s.106 and baseline air quality measure contributions towards reducing 
emissions for all developments irrespective of AQMA status. 
 
Pending revision to TAN 11 brings air quality into a planning policy setting for new 
development which builds upon the approaches taken by NCC as an LPA. It also brings 
closer together the areas of climate change and air quality such that unified approach to 
planning and air quality/climate change could be developed. 

 

Page 41



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  15 

 

3.8 Pending Legislation Context 

Pending legislation in the form of The Environment (Air Quality and Soundscapes) (Wales) 

Bill 2023 has the potential to improve the air quality landscape as follows. 

It will aim-to improve air quality and reduce the impacts of air pollution on human health, 
biodiversity, the natural environment, and the economy.  

The Bill also aims to facilitate improvements in the quality of the air environment at a 
Wales-wide level, at a local and regional level and throughout society.  

It will contribute to Welsh Government’s response to the climate and nature 
emergencies, alongside efforts to reduce inequalities.  

The Bill includes changes to existing legislation which will streamline, strengthen and 
complement existing processes to make them more effective and accessible.  
 

The Bill can be summarised as doing the following: 

• provide a framework for setting national air quality targets; 

• amend existing legislation relating to: 

▪ the national air quality strategy, 

▪ local air quality management, 

▪ smoke control, 

▪ clean air zones/low emission zones; and 

▪ vehicle idling; 

• place a duty on Welsh Ministers to promote awareness of air pollution; and 

• place a duty on Welsh Ministers to publish a national soundscapes strategy. 

It is hoped that the advent of new legislation will provide opportunities to push for 

improvements in air quality in new domains e.g. vehicle idling as well as strengthening 

existing ones e.g. LAQM and Smoke Control. 

3.9 Other contexts 

There are inevitably more areas that are applicable to air quality than those above and as 
such it we have highlighted those which link with LAQM work. It is recognised that Natural 
Resources Wales have a strong interest in air quality through their work streams which 
include ecosystem protection and environmental permitting of processes. 
 

Page 42



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  16 

NRW identify in their State of Natural Resources Report (SoNaRR) for Wales 2020: “Poor air 
quality is one of the largest environmental risks to ecosystems and health in Wales. The 
majority of air pollutants have declined in Wales in recent decades; however, concentrations 
of ammonia, a form of nitrogen, and ozone are trending upwards and impacting on 
ecosystems. Legislative, technological, infrastructure, market forces and changes in society's 
behaviour will all be needed to improve air  
quality in Wales.” SoNaRR for Wales 2022.  
 
 

3.10 Source Apportionment 

The AQAP measures presented in this report are intended to be targeted at pollution from 

the predominant sources of emissions within Newport City Council’s area for LAQM 

purposes i.e. emissions from transportation. 

A source apportionment exercise was carried out by Newport City Council in 2022 by 

AECOM. This was undertaken using 2019 diffusion tube data for AQMAs and traffic counts 

for 2019 or recent traffic counts one normalised to 2019 for each AQMA.  This identified that 

within the respective AQMAs, the percentage source contributions as shown on the following 

pages. A copy of the full source apportionment study can be found at the following link  

Air quality data & reports | Newport City Council 

The figures below provide source apportionment for each of the AQMAs. 

Figure 1 – Source Apportionment Caerleon, High Street 

 

Page 43

https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Transport-Streets/Pollution-and-noise-control/Air-quality-data-reports.aspx


Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  17 

 

Figure 2 – Source Apportionment Caerphilly Road 

 

Page 44



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  18 

 

Figure 3 – Source Apportionment Cefn Road 

 

Figure 4 - Chepstow Road/Caerleon Road 

 

Page 45



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  19 

Figure 5 – Source Apportionment George Street 

 

Figure 6 – Source Apportionment Malpas Road 

 

Page 46



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  20 

 

3.10.1  Findings 
 

• Diesel cars typically account for the greatest proportion of road NOx emissions. 
Within the six AQMAs, diesel cars account for between 40.5% and 55% of road NOx 
emissions. The range of measures considered within this AQAP not only cover things 
that will contribute towards mitigating the impacts from existing diesel cars but 
consider the ongoing fleet transformation towards cleaner and zero emission 
vehicles. 

 

• Diesel LGVs are the second-largest contributor of road NOx emissions, accounting 
for between 19.7% and 33.1% of total road NOx emissions within the AQMAs.  

 

• The source apportionment for Caerphilly Road indicates a high contribution of road 
NOx due to rigid HGVs relative to the other AQMAs. This is likely to be associated 
with accessibility of Junction 28 of the M4. In relation to HGVs there is the ECO Stars 
fleet accreditation scheme that aims to reduce fuel use and provide AQMA routing 
advice. 

 

• The AQMAs at Chepstow Road/Caerleon Road, George Street and Malpas Road 
show larger contributions to total road NOx emissions from buses and coaches than 
for the other AQMAs. The transition of the local Newport bus fleet from ICE to 100% 
electric will benefit these AQMAs. 

 

• In terms of NO2 concentrations, the local road user contribution to total monitored 
NO2 concentrations within the AQMAs range between 50% and 77.3%. 

 

• Of the local road user contribution to NO2 concentrations, diesel cars and LGVs are 
the most significant sources, typically collectively accounting for more than 50% of 
the total monitored NO2. 

 

• Local background contributions vary, with the lowest being 16.7% in Caerleon, and 
up to 43.4% in the Malpas Road AQMA. This would indicate a lower contribution of 
local road sources to the ambient concentration monitored in the Malpas Road 
AQMA, which may make NO2 concentration reductions through direct intervention 
harder to achieve. 

 

Page 47



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  21 

 

3.11 Required Reduction in Emissions (based upon 
2019 data) 

 

This was looked at by AECOM during 2022 an AQAP scoping report ( Air quality data & reports 

| Newport City Council ) and determined in accordance with the methodology outlined within 

technical guidance provided (LAQM.TG(16) (Box 7.6:Calculated Reduction in Road NOx 

Emissions)) and the results are presented below for 2019 data in the absence of 2022 data 

at the time: 

Caerleon AQMA 

In the Caerleon AQMA, a reduction of 21.1 µg/m3 (26%) in road NOx was required to comply 
with the annual mean NO2 AQO (see Table). This was the NOx level which equated to 
reducing 48.6 µg/m3 N02 to 40 µg/m3 based on 2019 data. 

Table 4 : Required NOx Reduction for Caerleon AQMA 

Parameter Value 

Monitoring Site NCC26B 

Maximum NO2 Concentration in 2019 for 
AQMA (µg/m3) 

48.6 

(X,Y)  (334500,190500) 

Background NO2 Concentrations for 1km x 
1km grid square (µg/m3) 

11.0 

Monitored Road NOx (µg/m3) 81.1 

Target Road NOx (µg/m3) 60.0 

NOx Reduction Required (µg/m3) 21.1 

NOx Reduction Required (%) 26.0 

Page 48

https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Transport-Streets/Pollution-and-noise-control/Air-quality-data-reports.aspx
https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Transport-Streets/Pollution-and-noise-control/Air-quality-data-reports.aspx


Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  22 

 

Malpas Road AQMA 

In the Malpas AQMA, a reduction of 2.3 µg/m3 (5.3%) in road NOx was required to comply 
with the annual mean NO2 AQO (see table below). This was the NOx level which equated to 
reducing 41 µg/m3 N02 to 40 µg/m3 based on 2019 data. 

Table 5 : Required NOx Reduction for Malpas Road AQMA 

Parameter Value 

Monitoring Site NCC64 

Maximum NO2 Concentration in 2019 for 
AQMA (µg/m3) 

41.0 

(X,Y)  (330500,189500) 

Background NO2 Concentrations for 1km x 
1km grid square (µg/m3) 

20.5 

Monitored Road NOx (µg/m3) 42.9 

Target Road NOx (µg/m3) 40.6 

NOx Reduction Required (µg/m3) 2.3 

NOx Reduction Required (%) 5.3 

 
 

 

Chepstow Road/ Caerleon Road AQMA 

In the Chepstow Road / Clarence Place / Caerleon Road AQMA, a reduction of 19.5 µg/m3 
(28.0%) in road NOx was required to comply with the annual mean NO2 AQO, (see table 
below). This was the NOx level which equated to reducing 48.1 µg/m3 N02 to 40 µg/m3 
based on 2019 data. 

Table 6 : Required NOx Reduction for Chepstow Road /Caerleon Road AQMA 

Parameter Value 

Monitoring Site NCC46B 

Maximum NO2 Concentration in 2019 for 
AQMA (µg/m3) 

48.1 

(X,Y)  (332500,188500) 

Background NO2 Concentrations for 1km x 
1km grid square (µg/m3) 

15.8 

Monitored Road NOx (µg/m3) 69.8 

Target Road NOx (µg/m3) 50.3 

NOx Reduction Required (µg/m3) 19.5 

NOx Reduction Required (%) 28.0 

Page 49



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  23 

 

Cefn Road AQMA 

In the Cefn Road AQMA, a reduction of 6.4 µg/m3 (10.0%) in road NOx was required to 
comply with the annual mean NO2 AQO (see table below)). This was the NOx level which 
equates to reducing 42.7 µg/m3 N02 to 40 µg/m3 based on 2019 data. 

Table 7 : Required NOx Reduction for Cefn Road AQMA 

Parameter Value 

Monitoring Site NCC29C 

Maximum NO2 Concentration in 2019 for 
AQMA (µg/m3) 

42.7 

(X,Y)  (327500,188500) 

Background NO2 Concentrations for 1km x 
1km grid square (µg/m3) 

12.1 

Monitored Road NOx (µg/m3) 64.2 

Target Road NOx (µg/m3) 57.8 

NOx Reduction Required (µg/m3) 6.4 

NOx Reduction Required (%) 10.0 

  

Caerphilly Road AQMA 

In the Caerphilly Road AQMA, a reduction of 2.4 µg/m3 (8.9%) in road NOx was required to 
comply with the annual mean NO2 AQO (see table below). This was the NOx level which 
equated to reducing 42.4 µg/m3 N02 to 40 µg/m3 based on 2019 data. 

Table 8: Required NOx Reduction for Caerphilly Road AQMA 

Parameter Value 

Monitoring Site NCC48D 

Maximum NO2 Concentration in 2019 for 
AQMA (µg/m3) 

42.4 

(X,Y)  (327500,186500) 

Background NO2 Concentrations for 1km x 
1km grid square (µg/m3) 

11.7 

Monitored Road NOx (µg/m3) 64.3 

Target Road NOx (µg/m3) 58.6 

NOx Reduction Required (µg/m3) 5.7 

NOx Reduction Required (%) 8.9 

Page 50



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  24 

 

George Street AQMA 

In the George Street AQMA, a reduction of 2.6 µg/m3 (4.9%) in road NOx is required to 
comply with the annual mean NO2 AQO (see Table  below). This is the NOx level which 
equates to reducing 41.1 µg/m3 N02 to 40 µg/m3. 

Table 9 : Required NOx Reduction for George Street AQMA 

Parameter Value 

Monitoring Site NCC51 

Maximum NO2 Concentration in 2019 for 
AQMA (µg/m3) 

41.1 

(X,Y)  (331500,187500) 

Background NO2 Concentrations for 1km x 
1km grid square (µg/m3) 

15.9 

Monitored Road NOx (µg/m3) 52.6 

Target Road NOx (µg/m3) 50.0 

NOx Reduction Required (µg/m3) 2.6 

NOx Reduction Required (%) 4.9 

  

 

Royal Oak Hill AQMA 

Based on the NO2 concentrations from 2019 a NOx reduction is not required with 
concentrations less than 40 µg/m3, however concentrations will still need to achieve 10% 
below the AQO before sustained compliance and revocation can be considered. 

Glasllwch AQMA 

As previously mentioned above with the Royal Oak Hill AQMA, a NOx reduction is not 
required with concentrations less than40 µg/m3, however considering the fluctuating 
concentrations, the AQMA would still benefit from measures to reduce concentrations to an 
as part of maintaining sustained compliance where this occurs. This AQMA will be identified 
for revocation where sustained compliance is observed. 

St Julian’s AQMA 

No exceedances of the annual mean NO2 AQO were recorded in the vicinity of the AQMA, 
and as such, no required NOx reductions are required to be calculated. This AQMA was 
previously identified for revocation in view of sustained compliance. 

High Cross AQMA 

No exceedances of the annual mean NO2 AQO were recorded in the vicinity of the AQMA, 
and as such, no required NOx reductions are required to be calculated. This AQMA will be 
identified for revocation where sustained compliance is observed. 

Page 51



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  25 

Shaftesbury AQMA 

No exceedances of the annual mean NO2 AQO were recorded in the vicinity of the AQMA, 
and as such, no required NOx reductions are required to be calculated. This AQMA will be 
identified for revocation where sustained compliance is observed. 

3.12 Dispersion Modelling 

A range of measures that could be applied to roads in AQMA localities have been identified 
through officer work and the contributions of air quality groups to the measure’s discussion. 
The choice of measures is also based upon what could reasonably be modelled given other 
highways projects such as implementation of Burns Report in areas like Old Green, which is 
in continuity with the AQMAs of Malpas Road, Chepstow Road and George Street.  
 
The table below shows the range of measures available for modelling within each AQMA. 
 
Measures potentially applicable in Caerleon and modelling has looked at the impact of 
increased EV uptake upon levels experienced within the AQMA, as well as the impact of 
electric bus fleets going from 50% to 100% service provision. An engineered street canyon 
solution was looked at in the form of the RoadVent system however the physical constraints 
of the street canyon locality and a lack of research funding have meant this option is not 
currently being considered and modelling not undertaken. 
 

Table 10 – Modelled Measures in this AQAP  

 

Measure AQMA Caerleon Caerphilly 

Road 
Cefn Road Chepstow 

Road/Caerleon 

Road 

George Street Malpas Road 

Emissions from 

Transport 
+ 5% increase in 

EV composition of 

fleet 

+ 100% eBus 

services impact 

+ combined 

impact of all 

measures. 

  

+ 5% increase in 

EV composition of 

fleet 

100% eBus 

services impact 

+ 20mph impact 

+Green Barrier at 

85 Caerphilly 

Road  

+ combined 

impact of all 

measures. 

+ 5% increase in 

EV composition of 

fleet 

+ 100% eBus 

services impact 

+ 20mph impact 

+ combined 

impact of all 

measures. 
 

5% increase in EV 

composition of 

fleet 

+ 100% eBus 

services impact 

+ combined 

impact of all 

measures. 
 

+ 5% increase in 

EV composition of 

fleet 

+ 100% eBus 

services impact 

+ 20mph impact 

+ combined 

impact of all 

measures. 
 

5% increase in 

EV composition of 

fleet 

+ 100% eBus 

services impact 

+ 20mph impact 

+ combined 

impact of all 

measures. 
 

 

Modelling for the Caerphilly Road AQMA has included looking at the potential benefits of a 
green barrier on the AQO for NO2 in the 85 Caerphilly Road locality. 
 

Page 52



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  26 

 

Dispersion Modelling 

 

Modelled scenarios for each of the six AQMAs were undertaken by AECOM during July to 
October 2023. Modelling measures on their own and together should provide some indicative 
idea of the sort of level of emissions reduction that could be achieved/is currently taking 
place. Unfortunately not all measures are capable of modelling so Newport City Council is 
reliant upon research and development information that is available for other measures in 
terms of their efficacy and potential application. 
 
Cost benefit considerations for all measures including those modelled are also provided in 
section 5. 
 
Modelled measure scenarios were categorised as shown in Table 11 below. 
 

Table 11 - Measures to be modelled for each AQMA 

No. 
Caerleon 

High 
Street 

Caerphilly 
Road 

Cefn Road 
Chepstow 

Road/Caerleon 
Road 

George Street Malpas Road 

MS1 Changing flow and number of vehicles (assumed to be a 5% upgrade to EV). 

MS2 100% eBus services impact. 

MS3 - 
20mph 
impact 

20mph 
impact 

- 
20mph impact 20mph impact 

MS4 - 
Green 
barrier  

- - - - 

MS5 

Combined 
scenario 
(includes 
measures 

1&2 
above) 

Combined 
scenario 
(includes 
measures 
1,2,3 & 4 
above) 

Combined 
scenario 
(includes 
measures 

1,2 & 3 
above) 

Combined 
scenario 
(includes 

measures 1,2 
and 4 above) 

Combined scenario 
(includes measures 1,2 

& 3 above) 

Combined 
scenario 
(includes 

measures 1,2 
and 3 above) 

MS6 - 

Combined 
scenario 

(excluding 
20mph 
zones) 

Combined 
scenario 

(excluding 
20mph 
zones) 

- 
Combined scenario 
(excluding 20mph 

zones) 

Combined 
scenario 

(excluding 
20mph zones) 

 
The scope of the modelling was as follows: 
 
• Selection of potentially sensitive receptors for inclusion in the assessment. 
• Quantitative assessment of potential impacts from specified AQAP measures as a 

result of changes in road traffic emissions. 
• Interpolation of years not explicitly assessed; and 
• Calculation of road NOx reductions required to achieve compliance in each AQMA. 
 
Dispersion modelling was carried out using the ADMS-Roads 5 model to predict changes in 
nitrogen dioxide (NO2) concentrations at selected existing sensitive receptors, as all six 
AQMAs are declared for exceedances of the annual mean Air Quality Strategy (AQS) 
objective for this pollutant. Modelling was carried out for a base year 2022 and a future base 
year of 2024. 2019 was also modelled as a ‘worst case’ baseline. 

Page 53



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  27 

Dispersion modelling was then undertaken to determine the potential impact of selected 
measures to improve air quality in each AQMA. This is in keeping with paragraph 2.85 of 
LAQM.TG(22) , which states an AQAP should contain quantification of the emission impacts 
of measures as a minimum. Several implementable measures were chosen that would be 
relevant to each AQMA area. 
 
Traffic Data was sourced from Automatic Number Plate Recognition (ANPR) camera surveys 
undertaken by AECOM in 2022. Department for Transport (DfT) TEMPro factors provided by 
AECOM traffic consultants were used to factor this data to 2019, 2022 and 2024 as relevant. 
At locations for which this data was unavailable, appropriate DfT traffic count data was 
chosen.  
 
Traffic data was processed into a 24-hour Average Annual Daily Traffic (AADT) format for the 
following scenarios: 
• 2019 Baseline; 
• 2022 Baseline (used in model verification); and 
• 2024 Baseline. 
 

Measure Scenarios 

 
To model the chosen measures, the traffic data and model input parameters were altered to 
reflect the proposed changes at each AQMA based on professional judgement of feasible 
intervention levels. Table 12 summaries the changes made to the traffic data for each 
measure scenario. 
 

Table 11 – Measure Scenario Data Changes  

 

No. 
Caerleon High 

Street 
Caerphilly 

Road 
Cefn Road 

Chepstow 
Road 

George Street Malpas Road 

MS1 
Altered fleet composition for all roads in EFT input. 5% was removed proportionally from 

%Petrol Car and % Diesel Car and added to % Battery EV Cars 

MS2 

Altered fleet composition for all roads in EFT input. % Bus and Coach was removed and added 
to % FCEV Bus (Fuel Cell Electric Vehicle buses was chosen as the most appropriate proxy for 

electric buses) 

MS3 - 

Speed altered 
to 20mph 

(32.2 kph) for 
all roads 

Speed altered 
to 20mph 

(32.2 kph) for 
all roads 

- 

Speed altered 
to 20mph 

(32.2 kph) for 
all roads 

Speed altered 
to 20mph 

(32.2 kph) for 
all roads 

MS4 - 

Green barrier 
modelled at 
Caerphilly 

Road using 
an ADMS nbr 

file  

(No change 
to traffic flow) 

- - -  - 

MS5 

Combined 
Scenario 

(MS1, MS2) 

Combined 
Scenario 

(MS1, MS2, 
MS3, MS4) 

Combined 
Scenario 

(MS1, MS2, 
MS3) 

Combined 
Scenario 

(MS1, MS2) 

Combined 
Scenario 

(MS1, MS2, 
MS3) 

Combined 
Scenario 

(MS1, MS2, 
MS3) 

MS6 - 

Combined 
Scenario 

(MS1, MS2, 
MS4) 

Combined 
Scenario 

(MS1, MS2) 
- 

Combined 
Scenario 

(MS1, MS2) 

Combined 
Scenario 

(MS1, MS2) 

Page 54



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  28 

 
Measure scenario 1 (MS1) models the expected upgrade to Electric Vehicles (EV) from 
petrol and diesel cars. Measure Scenario 2 (MS2) models a change in the bus fleet to a 
100% eBus service. Measure Scenario 3 (MS3) models a proposed 20mph speed limit on all 
roads in the AQMA to which this is applicable. Measure Scenario 4 (MS4) individually models 
the construction of a green barrier at Caerphilly Road. Measure Scenario 5 (MS5) is a 
combined scenario representing all changes from scenarios MS1-MS4. Measure Scenario 6 
(MS6) is a combined scenario representing all changes from MS5 except the 20mph speed 
limit, to show maximum levels of reduction thought feasible. 
 
A street canyon was also modelled in Caerleon High Street AQMA, at Rd_31, Rd_34 and 
Rd_39, on the corner of Castle Street and High Street. Receptors that were chosen within 
each AQMA are shown in Figure 2 to Figure 8 in the full modelling report which can be found 
at the following link UPLOAD MODELLING APPENDIX TO WEBSITE. The full report also 
includes details of verification work and model performance which has not been reproduced 
here. 
 
To determine the compliance of an AQMA with air quality standards for NO2, a value of 36 
µg/m3 has been referenced, as this is the criteria that would be used when revoking an 
AQMA. The definition of compliance is set out in the technical guidance as concentrations 
below 10% of the objective. Therefore, this value was used when analysing model results.   
 

Limitations 

As with any dispersion modelling study, there are inherent limitations and assumptions of 
which the reader should be aware when interpreting the results. The key limitations that 
apply to these results are as follows: 

• The traffic data are limited to the roads surveyed, or for which there were DfT count 

points available. This meant in some cases, the full road network within an AQMA 

could not be modelled with count data. 

• The projections of traffic data are inherently limited by COVID-19, which affected 

travel behaviour during the periods assessed. 

• The 20mph scenario (MS3) would ideally be modelled with more detailed traffic 

modelling (paramics or similar) to capture the alterations in driving behaviour 

associated with this measure. The methodology applied suggests detrimental impacts 

from a reduced speed of traffic speed, where in reality it could likely lead to traffic 

calming, a smoother drive profile, and therefore less emissions. These impacts are 

notwithstanding the overriding road safety benefits of imposing 20mph limits. 

• Data for all the measures scenarios would ideally be derived from traffic modelling to 

predict impacts such as wider traffic diversions. As a model was not available for this 

study, assumptions applied have therefore been based on professional judgement of 

what could be achievable in air quality terms with maximum implementation, rather 

than what is deemed to be likely in a real world setting. 

 

Page 55



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  29 

 

Model Results  

Caerleon High Street AQMA 

The results of the Caerleon High Street model are shown in Table 13 and Table  14. 

The results indicate there are small decreases in concentrations from the 2022 and 

2024 base NO2 concentrations likely upon implementation of the measures. All 

modelled concentrations are well below the AQS objective value of 40 μg/m3 as well 

as below 36 µg/m3, which is 10% below the AQO objective. 

For 2022 decreases of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -0.8 μg/m3 are predicted at receptors 

for the MS1 scenario. Decreases of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -1.7 μg/m3 can be seen 

in MS2. The results of MS5 show decreases of between -0.2 μg/m3 and -1.8 μg/m3, 

indicating the combination of measures leads to a greater decrease.  

For 2024, decreases of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -0.7 μg/m3 are predicted at receptors 

relative to the 2024 baseline concentration in MS1. Decreases of between -0.1 μg/m3 

and -0.7 μg/m3 are also shown for MS2. The greatest decrease is also shown at R9 

for both scenarios, located on the High Street. MS5 shows decreases of -0.1 μg/m3 

and -1.5 μg/m3, indicating the combination of measures leads to greater decreases in 

predicted concentration than each individual measure. 

 

Table 13 – Caerleon High Street AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 and 2022 

Receptor 2019 Base 2022 Base  
2022 MS1 
(5% EV) 

2022 MS2 
(100% 
eBus) 

2022 MS5 
(Combined) 

R1 16.6 14.6 14.4 14.2 14.1 

R2 31.2 27.4 26.8 26.0 26.0 

R3 14.6 12.6 12.4 12.3 12.2 

R4 22.3 19.4 19.1 18.6 18.5 

R5 16.4 14.3 14.1 13.9 13.8 

R6 16.0 13.8 13.7 13.5 13.4 

R7 12.3 10.7 10.7 10.6 10.6 

R8 13.4 11.7 11.6 11.5 11.4 

R9 25.5 30.7 29.9 28.9 28.9 

R10 32.9 13.6 13.4 13.2 13.2 

R11 16.2 14.1 13.9 13.7 13.7 

R12 15.3 13.4 13.2 13.1 13.0 

R13 18.0 15.5 15.2 15.0 14.9 

R14 14.8 12.9 12.8 12.7 12.6 

R15 14.8 12.9 12.8 12.6 12.6 

R16 19.7 17.1 16.8 16.5 16.4 

Page 56



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  30 

R17 16.0 13.8 13.6 13.4 13.3 

R18 15.7 13.6 13.4 13.2 13.2 

R19 14.5 12.6 12.4 12.3 12.2 

R20 16.0 13.9 13.7 13.5 13.5 

R21 17.4 15.0 14.8 14.5 14.5 

R22 15.3 13.3 13.2 13.0 12.9 

R23 17.8 15.4 15.2 14.9 14.9 

R24 13.1 11.4 11.4 11.3 11.2 

R25 24.5 20.9 20.5 19.9 19.8 

Table 14 - Caerleon High Street AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024 

Receptor 2024 Base  
2024 MS1 
(5% EV) 

2024 MS2 
(100% Ebus) 

2024 MS5 
(Combined) 

R1 13.4 13.3 13.3 13.0 

R2 25.3 24.7 24.7 24.1 

R3 11.6 11.5 11.5 11.3 

R4 17.8 17.5 17.5 17.1 

R5 13.1 13.0 13.0 12.8 

R6 12.7 12.6 12.6 12.4 

R7 9.9 9.9 9.9 9.8 

R8 10.8 10.7 10.7 10.6 

R9 28.2 27.5 27.4 26.7 

R10 12.5 12.4 12.4 12.2 

R11 13.0 12.8 12.8 12.6 

R12 12.3 12.2 12.2 12.0 

R13 14.2 14.0 14.0 13.7 

R14 11.9 11.8 11.8 11.6 

R15 11.9 11.8 11.8 11.6 

R16 15.7 15.5 15.4 15.1 

R17 12.7 12.6 12.6 12.4 

R18 12.6 12.4 12.4 12.2 

R19 11.6 11.5 11.5 11.3 

R20 12.8 12.6 12.6 12.4 

R21 13.8 13.6 13.6 13.3 

R22 12.3 12.1 12.1 11.9 

R23 14.1 14.0 13.9 13.7 

R24 10.5 10.5 10.5 10.3 

R25 19.2 18.8 18.8 18.3 

 

Caerphilly Road AQMA 

The results of the Caerphilly Road AQMA model results are shown in Table 14 and Table 15. 

The results indicate that within the modelled scenarios there are some decreases and some 

increases in concentrations from the 2022 and 2024 base NO2 concentrations likely upon 

implementation of the measures, dependent on scenario. Concentrations above 36 µg/m3 

are modelled at two receptors in 2019, R60 and R64. R60 is located on 79 Caerphilly Road 

and R64 is located on 7 Caerphilly Road. For 2022 and 2024, all modelled concentrations 

are well below the AQS objective value of 40 μg/m3 and 36 µg/m3. 

For 2022, the results indicated a decrease of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -0.6 μg/m3 in MS1. 

Decreases of between -0.2 μg/m3 and -1.1 μg/m3 for MS2. MS3 shows small increases in 

Page 57



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  31 

concentrations, between 0.4 μg/m3 and 4.2 μg/m3. MS4 shows decreases of between -0.1 

μg/m3 and -5.2 μg/m3. For MS5, the greatest decrease is -0.9 μg/m3 (R60) and the greatest 

increase is 2.8 μg/m3 (R57). For MS6, decreases of between -0.3 μg/m3 and -1.2 μg/m3 are 

shown.  

For 2024, the results indicated a decrease of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -0.5 μg/m3 in MS1. 

Decreases of between -0.03 μg/m3 and -0.3 μg/m3 are predicted in MS2. MS3 shows small 

increases in concentrations, between 0.3 μg/m3 (R48) and 3.5 μg/m3 (R55). R55 is located on 

the A467, which is a large dual carriageway and the speed for this link was modelled at 50 

mph. This indicates that slowing the traffic to this degree on a road link of this type would 

negatively impact NO2 concentration and could lead to increases. MS4 shows decreases of 

between -0.1 μg/m3 and -4.5 μg/m3. The greatest decrease is seen at R60, the receptor that 

is placed directly behind the Green Barrier on Caerphilly Road. By contrast, R48, the 

receptor on the opposite side of the road, and without a barrier shows a smaller decrease of -

0.1 μg/m3. MS5 shows a mixture of increases and decreases. The largest increase is 2.4 

μg/m3 (R57). The largest decrease is -4.8 μg/m3 and also shown at R60, behind the green 

barrier. This is confirmed by MS6, which does not include the 20mph limit and shows 

decreases of between -0.2 μg/m3 and -0.9 μg/m3.  

Table 15 – Caerphilly Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 and 2022 

Receptor 
2019 
Base 

2022 
Base  

2022 
MS1 
(5% 
EV) 

2022 
MS2 

(100% 
Ebus) 

2022 
MS3 

(20mph 
limit) 

2022 
MS4 

(Green 
Barrier) 

2022 MS5 
(Combined) 

2022 MS6 
(Combined) 

R42 13.8 11.4 11.3 11.2 11.8 11.2 11.5 11.1 

R43 21.3 15.9 15.7 15.5 17.2 15.8 16.6 15.4 

R44 25.1 18.3 18.0 17.7 20.0 18.2 19.2 17.6 

R45 23.1 17.0 16.7 16.4 18.4 16.8 17.7 16.3 

R46 25.3 18.5 18.1 17.9 20.2 18.3 19.4 17.8 

R48 25.3 18.8 18.5 18.3 19.2 18.7 18.5 18.2 

R49 17.0 14.4 14.3 14.1 15.3 14.3 14.8 14.0 

R50 22.5 18.0 17.8 17.6 19.2 17.9 18.6 17.5 

R51 26.8 20.8 20.5 20.2 22.5 20.6 21.7 20.1 

R52 26.4 20.6 20.2 20.0 21.9 20.4 21.1 19.8 

R53 15.0 12.9 12.8 12.7 13.5 12.7 13.1 12.5 

R54 24.1 18.6 18.3 18.0 20.4 18.4 19.5 17.9 

R55 31.6 26.0 25.6 25.2 30.2 25.8 28.8 25.0 

R56 16.7 15.1 15.0 14.9 16.1 14.9 15.5 14.7 

R57 31.7 26.2 25.7 25.4 30.4 26.0 29.0 25.2 

R58 19.5 16.9 16.6 16.5 18.8 16.7 18.1 16.3 

R59 27.7 24.1 23.6 23.2 28.1 23.9 26.8 23.1 

R60 39.3 27.9 27.3 26.8 28.3 22.7 27.1 26.7 

R61 35.3 25.4 24.9 24.5 28.3 25.3 27.0 24.4 

R62 25.4 19.9 19.6 19.4 21.3 19.7 20.4 19.2 

R63 24.7 20.5 20.1 19.9 23.4 20.3 22.3 19.7 

R64 37.0 27.2 26.7 26.2 29.1 27.0 27.8 26.1 

 

Page 58



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  32 

*Note: Values in bold exceed the AQS objective value. 

*Note: Values in italic are above the compliance value of 36 μg/m3 

Table 16 – Caerphilly Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024 

Receptor 
2024 
Base  

2024 
MS1 (5% 

EV) 

2024 MS2 
(100% 
Ebus) 

2024 MS3 
(20mph 

limit) 

2024 MS4 
(Green 
Barrier) 

2024 MS5 
(Combined) 

2024 MS6 
(Combined) 

R42 10.3 10.3 10.3 10.7 10.2 10.5 10.1 

R43 14.3 14.0 14.2 15.4 14.1 14.8 13.8 

R44 16.3 16.0 16.2 17.7 16.2 17.1 15.8 

R45 15.2 14.9 15.0 16.4 15.0 15.8 14.7 

R46 16.4 16.1 16.3 17.9 16.3 17.3 15.9 

R48 16.7 16.4 16.6 17.0 16.6 16.5 16.2 

R49 13.0 12.8 12.9 13.6 12.8 13.2 12.6 

R50 16.1 15.9 16.0 17.1 16.0 16.6 15.7 

R51 18.5 18.2 18.4 20.0 18.4 19.3 18.0 

R52 18.3 18.0 18.2 19.5 18.1 18.8 17.7 

R53 11.6 11.5 11.6 12.1 11.5 11.8 11.3 

R54 16.5 16.3 16.4 18.0 16.4 17.4 16.0 

R55 23.2 22.7 23.0 26.6 22.9 25.5 22.4 

R56 13.6 13.5 13.6 14.4 13.4 14.0 13.3 

R57 23.3 22.8 23.1 26.8 23.1 25.7 22.5 

R58 15.1 14.9 15.0 16.7 14.9 16.1 14.7 

R59 21.3 20.9 21.2 24.7 21.2 23.7 20.6 

R60 24.6 24.0 24.3 24.9 20.1 19.8 23.6 

R61 22.5 22.0 22.3 24.9 22.3 23.9 21.7 

R62 17.7 17.5 17.6 18.9 17.6 18.2 17.2 

R63 18.2 17.9 18.1 20.6 18.0 19.8 17.6 

R64 24.1 23.6 23.8 25.6 23.9 24.6 23.2 

 

 

Cefn Road 

The results indicate there some decreases and some increases in concentrations from the 

2022 and 2024 base NO2 concentrations upon implementation of the measures, dependent 

on scenario. Concentrations above 36 µg/m3 are modelled at two receptors in 2019, R70 

and R71. R70 is located at 49 Cefn Road and R71 is located at 9 Cefn Road. For 2022 and 

2024, all modelled concentrations are below the AQS objective value of 40 μg/m3 and 36 

µg/m3. 

For 2022, decreases of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -2.8 μg/m3 are seen in MS1. MS2 shows 

decreases of between -0.2 μg/m3 and -4.1 μg/m3. MS3 shows increases and decreases. 

The greatest increase is 1.4 μg/m3 (R73) and the greatest decrease is -1.6 μg/m3 (R70). 

MS5 shows both increases and decreases at receptors with the greatest increase being 0.2 

μg/m3 and the greatest decrease being -4.5 µg/m3. MS6 shows decreases of between -0.6 

μg/m3 and -4.0 μg/m3. 

Page 59



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  33 

For 2024, decreases of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -2.6 μg/m3 are seen in MS1. MS2 shows 

decreases of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -2.5 μg/m3. MS3 shows increases and decreases. 

The greatest increase is 1.2 μg/m3 (R73) and the greatest decrease is - 2.6 μg/m3 (R70). 

R73 is on High Cross Road, the average speed modelled on this link in the baseline was 

30mph. R70 is located on Cefn Road. MS5 shows decreases and increases, with the 

greatest being 0.3 μg/m3. The greatest decrease is at R70   (-3.6 μg/m3). MS6 shows 

decreases of between -0.4 μg/m3 and -4.0 μg/m3. This indicates that the exclusion of the 

20mph limit removed any increases in concentrations. The results of the Cefn Road AQMA 

model results are shown in Table17 and Table 18.  

 

Table 17 – Cefn Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 and 2022 

Receptor 
2019 
Base 

2022 
Base  

2022 
MS1 

(5% EV) 

2022 MS2 
(100% 
Ebus) 

2022 
MS3 

(20mph 
limit) 

2022 MS5 
(Combined) 

2022 MS6 
(Combined 
exc. MS3) 

R65 18.9 16.1 16.0 15.9 16.6 16.0 15.7 

R66 23.0 19.6 19.4 19.2 20.5 19.6 18.9 

R67 21.9 18.7 18.5 18.2 19.6 18.8 18.0 

R68 17.9 15.7 15.5 15.2 16.6 15.8 15.1 

R69 14.0 12.2 12.2 12.1 12.3 12.0 11.9 

R70 38.0 33.3 32.5 31.2 33.8 30.8 30.5 

R71 39.4 34.5 33.7 32.4 35.1 31.9 31.5 

R73 25.3 22.1 21.6 21.0 23.5 22.1 20.9 

R74 23.8 20.4 20.2 19.8 21.6 20.6 19.6 

*Note: Values in italic are above the compliance value of 36 μg/m3 

 

Table 18 – Cefn Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024 

Receptor 
2024 
Base  

2024 MS1 
(5% EV) 

2024 MS2 
(100% 
Ebus) 

2024 MS3 
(20mph 

limit) 

2024 MS5 
(Combined) 

2024 MS6 
(Combined exc. 

MS3) 

R65 14.5 14.4 14.4 14.9 14.4 14.1 

R66 17.6 17.4 17.5 18.4 17.7 17.1 

R67 16.8 16.6 16.6 17.5 16.9 16.3 

R68 14.3 14.1 14.2 15.1 14.5 13.8 

R69 11.2 11.1 11.1 11.3 11.0 11.0 

R70 30.1 29.3 29.5 30.5 28.3 28.0 

R71 31.2 30.4 30.5 31.7 29.3 28.9 

R73 20.0 19.6 19.7 21.2 20.2 19.2 

R74 18.3 18.1 18.2 19.4 18.6 17.7 

 

Page 60



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  34 

 

Chepstow Road/Caerleon Road AQMA 

 

The results of the Chepstow Road AQMA model results are shown in 19 and 20.  

The results indicate there some decreases and some increases in concentrations from the 

2022 and 2024 base NO2 concentrations upon implementation of the measures, dependent 

on scenario. All modelled concentrations are well below the AQS objective value of 40 μg/m3 

and 36 µg/m3. 

For 2022, decreases of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -0.5 μg/m3 are shown in MS1. For MS2, 

there are decreases of between -0.2 μg/m3 to -1.6 μg/m3. MS5 shows decreases of between 

-0.4 μg/m3 and -1.9 μg/m3. 

For 2024, decreases of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -0.5 μg/m3 are shown in the MS1 scenario. 

For MS2 relative decreases of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -0.8 μg/m3 are shown. MS5 shows 

decreases of between -0.4 μg/m3 and -1.6 μg/m3 (R31). This indicates that the measures in 

combination result in a greater decrease in concentration than any single measure.  

Table 19 – Chepstow Road/Caerleon Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 

and 2022 

Receptor 2019 Base 2022 Base  
2022 MS1 
(5% EV) 

2022 MS2 
(100% Ebus) 

2022 MS5 
(Combined) 

R26 25.1 23.9 23.6 22.7 22.5 

R27 26.7 25.0 24.6 23.6 23.4 

R28 26.0 24.3 24.0 23.1 22.9 

R29 18.3 17.3 17.2 17.1 16.7 

R30 25.0 23.4 23.1 22.4 22.1 

R31 29.9 28.4 27.9 26.8 26.5 

R32 18.6 17.6 17.5 17.3 17.1 

R33 23.2 22.1 21.9 21.3 21.1 

R34 25.9 24.5 24.2 23.4 23.2 

R35 25.9 24.2 23.9 23.2 23.0 

R36 22.6 21.6 21.4 20.8 20.6 

R37 24.7 21.6 21.4 20.8 20.6 

R38 26.9 23.6 23.3 22.5 22.3 

R39 25.6 24.0 23.7 22.9 22.6 

R40 23.9 22.9 22.6 21.8 21.6 

R41 26.1 24.5 24.1 23.2 22.9 

 

Page 61



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  35 

 

Table 20 – Chepstow Road/Caerleon Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024 

Receptor 2024 Base  
2024 MS1 (5% 

EV) 
2024 MS2 (100% 

Ebus) 
2024 MS5 

(Combined) 

R26 22.8 22.4 22.0 21.5 

R27 23.9 23.5 23.1 22.5 

R28 23.2 22.9 22.5 22.0 

R29 16.0 16.0 15.9 15.5 

R30 22.3 22.0 21.8 21.1 

R31 27.4 26.9 26.6 25.8 

R32 16.3 16.2 16.2 15.9 

R33 21.0 20.7 20.6 20.1 

R34 23.5 23.1 22.9 22.4 

R35 23.2 22.8 22.6 22.1 

R36 20.5 20.2 20.1 19.6 

R37 20.2 20.0 19.7 19.4 

R38 22.3 21.9 21.6 21.2 

R39 22.9 22.6 22.3 21.7 

R40 21.7 21.4 21.0 20.41 

R41 23.3 23.0 22.6 22.0 

 

 

George Street AQMA 

The results of the George Street AQMA model results are shown in Table 21 and Table 22.  

The results indicate there are some decreases and some increases in concentrations from 

the 2022 and 2024 base NO2 concentrations upon implementation of the measures, 

dependent on scenario.  

All modelled concentrations are well below the AQS objective value of 40 μg/m3. Modelled 

concentrations are above 36 µg/m3 at R79, in the 2019 baseline, and in scenario MS3 in 

2022 and MS3 in 2024. This is also the case at R81 for MS3 in 2022. R79 is located at 64 

George Street and R81 is located at 51 George Street. 

For 2022, there are predicted decreases of between -0.2 μg/m3 and -0.8 μg/m3 in MS1. For 

MS2, decreases are shown between -0.6 μg/m3 to -3.0 μg/m3. In MS3, increases of between 

0.7 μg/m3 and 3.9 μg/m3 are predicted. For MS5, only small decreases are predicted, 

between -0.3 μg/m3 and -0.7 μg/m3. For MS6, decreases at receptors are predicted between 

-0.9 μg/m3 and -3.4 μg/m3. 

For 2024, decreases of between -0.2 μg/m3 and -0.8 μg/m3 are shown in MS1. For MS2, 

decreases between -0.3 μg/m3 and -1.6 μg/m3 are predicted. Increases are shown at 

receptors for the MS3 scenario, between 0.7 μg/m3 to 3.9 μg/m3 which would be attributed to 

the prevailing 30mph/40mph speeds being reduced on what is a very busy section of arterial 

Page 62



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  36 

road. Like previous AQMAs, MS5 results show both increases and decreases. The largest 

increase is 0.3 μg/m3 (R79) and the largest decrease is -0.5 μg/m3 (R82 and R83). 

Decreases are predicted at receptors for MS6, between -0.8 μg/m3 (R85) and -4.6 μg/m3 

(R79). The greatest decreases are shown for MS6, the combination of measures excluding 

the 20mph impacts.  

 

Table 21 – George Street AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 and 2022 

Receptor 
2019 
Base 

2022 
Base  

2022 
MS1 (5% 

EV) 

2022 
MS2 

(100% 
Ebus) 

2022 
MS3 

(20mph 
limit) 

2022 MS5 
(Combined) 

2022 MS6 
(Combined 
excl. MS3) 

R75 28.4 26.4 25.9 24.6 28.8 26.1 24.3 

R76 22.8 21.3 21.0 20.2 22.7 21.0 20.0 

R77 20.0 18.6 18.4 17.9 19.5 18.2 17.6 

R78 30.6 28.6 28.0 26.4 31.3 28.2 26.1 

R79 37.7 35.2 34.4 32.2 39.2 34.9 31.9 

R81 35.1 32.6 31.9 30.0 36.1 32.3 29.6 

R82 24.6 23.2 22.8 21.8 24.9 22.5 21.2 

R83 23.1 20.9 20.6 19.7 22.5 20.2 19.1 

R84 30.9 29.3 28.7 27.0 32.1 28.8 26.7 

R85 19.1 17.7 17.5 17.1 18.4 17.2 16.8 

 

*Note: Values in italic are above the compliance value of 36 μg/m3 

Table 22 – George Street AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024 

Receptor 2024 Base  
2024 MS1 
(5% EV) 

2024 MS2 
(100% 
Ebus) 

2024 MS3 
(20mph 

limit) 

2024 MS5 
(Combined) 

2024 MS6 
(Combined 
excl. MS3) 

R75 25.7 25.2 24.7 28.1 25.8 24.0 

R76 20.6 20.2 19.9 21.9 20.4 19.4 

R77 17.7 17.5 17.3 18.6 17.5 16.9 

R78 28.0 27.4 26.8 30.7 28.0 25.3 

R79 34.7 33.9 33.1 38.6 35.0 30.1 

R81 32.1 31.4 30.6 35.5 32.3 28.5 

R82 22.4 22.1 21.7 24.1 22.0 20.7 

R83 20.3 20.0 19.6 21.9 19.9 18.7 

R84 28.7 28.0 27.4 31.5 28.7 25.6 

R85 16.8 16.6 16.5 17.5 16.5 16.0 

 

*Note: Values in italic are above the compliance value of 36 μg/m3 

Page 63



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  37 

Malpas Road AQMA 

 

The results of the Malpas Road AQMA model results are shown in Table 23 and Table 24.  

The results indicate there are some decreases and some increases in concentrations from 

the 2022 and 2024 base NO2 concentrations upon implementation of the measures, 

dependent on scenario. All modelled concentrations are well below the AQS objective value 

of 40 μg/m3 and 36 µg/m3 

For 2022, there are decreases in concentration between -0.1 μg/m3 and -0.5 μg/m3 in MS1. 

For MS2, decreases are shown between -0.2 μg/m3 to -1.9 μg/m3. In MS3, increases of 

between 0.4 μg/m3 and 2.5 μg/m3 are predicted. For MS5, both increases and decreases are 

estimated. The largest increase is 0.4 μg/m3 (R97) and the largest decrease is -0.3 μg/m3 

(R86). For MS6, decreases at receptors are predicted between -0.4 μg/m3 and -2.2 μg/m3. 

For 2024, decreases of between -0.1 μg/m3 and -0.5 μg/m3 are shown in MS1. For MS2, 

decreases between -0.1 μg/m3 and -1.0 μg/m3 are predicted at receptors. As in other 

AQMAs, predicted concentrations at receptors increase relative to the baseline as a result of 

the MS3 scenario. Increases of between 0.4 μg/m3 (R87) and 2.5 μg/m3 (R86) are shown. 

The average speed modelled for this road link is 30mph in the baseline. The MS5 combined 

scenario resulted in both decreases and increases predicted at receptors. The greatest 

increase shown is 0.5 μg/m3 and the greatest decrease predicted is -0.1 μg/m3. For MS6, 

decreases of between -0.3 μg/m3 and -1.8 μg/m3 are shown at receptors. This indicates that 

the combined scenario without the lowered speed limit results in greater predicted decreases 

in concentrations, as with previous AQMAs.  

 

Table 23 – Malpas Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2019 and 2022 

Receptor 
2019 
Base 

2022 
Base  

2022 
MS1 (5% 

EV) 

2022 
MS2 

(100% 
Ebus) 

2022 
MS3 

(20mph 
limit) 

2022 MS5 
(Combined) 

2022 MS6 
(Combined 
exc. MS3) 

R86 28.8 27.0 26.5 25.1 29.5 26.7 24.8 

R87 16.8 14.7 14.6 14.5 15.1 14.5 14.2 

R88 19.6 18.3 18.2 18.0 19.0 18.2 17.7 

R89 20.1 17.8 17.7 17.4 18.6 17.8 17.3 

R90 19.3 17.2 17.1 16.9 17.8 17.2 16.8 

R91 26.0 23.8 23.6 23.0 25.4 24.1 22.9 

R92 33.1 30.0 29.5 28.4 32.5 30.3 28.3 

R93 32.0 28.7 28.2 27.2 30.9 28.9 27.1 

R94 28.3 25.7 25.4 24.6 27.3 25.8 24.5 

R95 28.0 25.3 25.0 24.2 26.8 25.4 24.1 

R96 22.0 20.4 20.3 20.0 21.2 20.5 19.9 

R97 27.0 24.5 24.3 23.6 26.4 25.0 23.5 

Page 64



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  38 

Table 24 – Malpas Road AQMA Results (NO2, μg/m3), 2024 

Receptor 2024 Base  2024 MS1  
2024 MS2 

(100% 
Ebus) 

2024 MS3 
(20mph 

limit) 

2024 MS5 
(Combined) 

2024 MS6 
(Combined 
exc. MS3) 

R86 26.3 25.8 25.3 28.8 26.4 24.5 

R87 13.5 13.5 13.5 13.9 13.4 13.1 

R88 16.8 16.7 16.6 17.4 16.8 16.3 

R89 16.2 16.1 16.0 16.8 16.2 15.7 

R90 15.6 15.5 15.5 16.1 15.7 15.3 

R91 21.5 21.2 21.1 22.9 21.9 20.7 

R92 27.1 26.7 26.4 29.4 27.6 25.8 

R93 25.9 25.5 25.2 27.9 26.3 24.7 

R94 23.2 22.9 22.7 24.6 23.5 22.3 

R95 22.8 22.5 22.3 24.2 23.0 21.9 

R96 18.3 18.2 18.1 19.0 18.5 18.0 

R97 22.2 21.9 21.7 23.8 22.7 21.4 

 
 
 

3.13 AQMA Compliance 

Baseline modelled concentrations for 2019, 2022 and 2024 were compliant with the AQS 
objective value (40 μg/m3). As sustained compliance is sought, the figure of 36 ug/m3 is also 
applicable which is 10% below the AQS objective; modelled concentrations are also 
compliant with this value. 

Three values above the compliance value of 36 µg/m3 were modelled at R60 in Caerphilly 
Road, R71 in Cefn Road AQMA and R79 in George Street AQMA in 2019. Table 23 shows 
the interpolated NO2 base concentrations (between 2019 and 2024) from the receptor within 
each AQMA that has the highest predicted concentration for the 2022 base. This indicates 
an overall decreasing trend in concentrations, and that compliance is reached in all 
AQMAs by 2022. 

Table 25 – Interpolated NO2 concentrations (μg/m3) for 2019-2024 at selected 
receptors 

AQMA Receptor 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 

Caerleon High 

Street 
R9 35.1 33.6 32.2 30.7 29.4 28.2 

Caerphilly Road R60 39.3 35.5 31.7 27.9 26.3 24.6 

Cefn Road R71 39.7 38.2 36.8 35.3 33.6 31.9 

Chepstow/Caerleon 

Road 
R31 29.9 29.4 28.9 28.4 27.9 27.4 

George Street R79 37.7 36.9 36.0 35.2 35.0 34.7 

Malpas Road R92 33.2 32.1 31.0 30.0 28.5 27.1 

 
*Note: Concentrations above the AQS objective value (40 μg/m3) are shown in bold. 2019, 2022 and 2024 data 
are as modelled, 2020, 2021 and 2023 interpolated. 
*Note: Values in italic are above the compliance value of 36 μg/m3 

Page 65



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  39 

Table 26 shows the actual measured levels for each AQMA diffusion tube in the vicinity of 
modelled receptors in Table 24 for comparison of modelled and actual results, with the 
exception of 2023 & 2024. 
 

Table 26 – Recorded NO2 concentrations (μg/m3) for 2019-2024 at selected 
diffusion tube sites closest to selected modelled receptors in Table 24 

AQMA 
Tube 

location 
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 

Caerleon High 
Street 

9 Castle 
Street 

36.7 25.1 25.9 26.4   

Caerphilly 
Road 

85 
Caerphilly 

Road 
42.5 34.9 35.0 33.8   

Cefn Road 
69 Cefn 
Road 

32.8 23.5 27.5 33.0   

Chepstow 
Road/Caerleon 

Road 

9 Caerleon 
Road 

41.4 30.2 32.3 28.5   

George Street 
73 George 

Street 
36.4 28.1 29.1 30.2   

Malpas Road 
4-6 Malpas 

Road 
41 28.8 31.8 19.2   

*Note: Concentrations above the AQS objective value (40 μg/m3) are shown in bold.  
*Note: Values in italic are above the compliance value of 36 μg/m3 

 
 

3.14 Review of ongoing reductions required 

Based upon a review of 2019 data in section 3.11 it was established what reductions in 

emissions were theoretically required. With the advent of 2022 data (judged to be the first 

year of post COVID data that can be relied upon as representative of a return to ‘normality’) 

the required reductions appear to be of less relevance given the fact that levels across all 

AQMAs have shown compliance during 2022. It might appear that the urgency with which air 

quality needs to be improved has slowed down. This is not considered to be the case as 

demonstrating sustained compliance in subsequent years requires similar results or lower. 

All measure types will be considered where they are feasible to implement as part of an 

ongoing effort to reduce emissions.  

 

3.15 Key Priorities for Air Quality in Newport City 
Council 

Newport City Council’s priorities for air quality are driven by the range of interventions that 

can be applied in different settings in order to provide air quality solutions that are acceptable 

to communities. Through consultation with Air quality Groups and Corporate Departments 

within NCC it is has been possible to identify measures which can potentially be applied and 

are relevant to local communities. These broadly fall into categories shown below which are 

expanded upon: 

 

Page 66



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  40 

3.16 Emissions from Transport 

Measures which directly impact upon traffic emissions such as traffic schemes and 

engineered solutions and fleet transition to cleaner technology are covered within this area 

and expanded upon within section 5 AQAP Measures. Measures which encourage travel 

alternatives to those which cause emissions are included here e.g. Active Travel routes and 

schemes, cycle schemes, electric car share schemes are covered within this area and 

expanded upon within section 5 AQAP Measures. 

3.17 Emissions from new Development 

Measures which can be applied to new development such as EV charging, ASHP and 

photovoltaics are covered within this area and expanded upon within section 5 AQAP 

Measures. This is principally achieved through the planning consultation process and 

imposition of requirements upon developers through planning conditions and informatives.  

3.18 Education & Awareness 

This area includes awareness campaigns that encourage reduced usage or smarter usage of 

vehicles which cause emissions. It is also focuses upon the importance of air quality 

messaging in the educational setting of schools. Initiatives such as Clean Air Day also fall 

within this area. 

3.19 Active Travel & Green Infrastructure 

Green infrastructure not only enhances well-being within urban areas but provides a tangible 

contribution towards improving air quality where air quality beneficial species are used in 

plantings. Its combined effects for communities cannot be underestimated and as such GI is 

seen as an integral part of the range of measures that should be applied across AQMAs. 

Opportunities to include air quality beneficial species within new development will be sought 

by NCC and in existing areas where GI is being considered, the use of air quality beneficial 

species will be expected. 

 

Table 27 on the next page draws together the key priorities and expresses them for 

each AQMA as a set of measures that can be considered. 

Page 67



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  41 

Table 27 – Council Key Priorities and Measures 

 

Measure Theme Measure Approach in all AQMAs 

Emissions from 

Transport 
• Promoting a cleaner vehicle fleet and alternatives 

• 100% eBus services 

• ECO Stars haulage accreditation scheme update 

• Infrastructure projects where feasible 

• Green barrier (Caerphilly Road AQMA) 

Emissions from 

new development 

 

• Encourage EV charging as part of applications 
 

• Encourage Low Carbon heating as part of applications 
 

• Encourage Green infrastructure as part of applications 
 

• Encourage zero emission public transport access as part of 
applications 

 

• Updating Planning Guidance and Policy on Air Quality 
  

Education & 

Awareness 
• ECO Post air quality messaging monitors 

• Schools air quality monitoring learning initiative 

• Exploring walking hubs at school run times (Caerleon AQMA) 

• Maintaining Community Air Quality Groups 

Active 

Travel/Green 

Infrastructure 

• Promotion of Active Travel opportunities 

• Facilitate School Travel Plans 

• Promote School streets initiative 

• Promotion of green infrastructure opportunities 

 

Page 68



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  42 

 

4. Development and Implementation of 
Newport City Council AQAP 

4.1 Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement 

In developing/updating this AQAP, we have worked with other local authorities, agencies, 
businesses and the local community to improve local air quality. Schedule 11 of the 
Environment Act 1995 requires local authorities to consult the bodies listed in Table . In 
addition, we have undertaken the following stakeholder engagement: 

• 6 Community AQ Groups consultations serving non M4 AQMAs. 

• Public Services Board Consultation Meeting 

• NCC Website based consultation across Newport  

The response to our consultation stakeholder engagement is given in Appendix B. 

Table 28 ‒ Consultations Undertaken 
 

Yes/No Consultee 

Yes Welsh Government 

Yes Natural Resources Wales 

Yes Newport City Council Infrastructure 

Yes Newport City Council Planning & Regeneration 

Yes Newport City Council Education 

Yes 
Cardiff City Council, Caerphilly County Borough Council, 
Monmouthshire County Council, Torfaen Council 

Yes Public Health Wales 

Yes Public Services Board Sustainable Travel Group 

Yes Newport City Council Air Quality Groups 

Yes Newport Citizens Panel  

Yes Newport City Council Website Consultation 

 

Page 69



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan -2022  43 

 

4.2 AQMA Groups 

The formation of quarterly meeting air quality groups with local stakeholders from each 
associated AQMA, was a key part of developing this AQAP.  Air Quality Groups were formed 
early in the AQAP process and each stage of the process presented and 
discussed/consulted upon at relevant times wherever possible e.g., source apportionment, 
measures ideas and modelling of measures. Engaging with and local people for whom the 
AQMA and local air quality is part of their lived experience is essential in obtaining 
representative views and ideas on the sort of measures that can be reasonably considered 
for a given AQMA.  
 
Currently there are three Air Quality Groups comprising stakeholders from the following 
AQMAs: 
 
• Caerleon 
• Chepstow Road, George Street & Malpas Road 
• Caerphilly Road & Cefn Road 
 
Members of the air quality groups include residents, civic groups, environmental groups, 
local charities, ward councillors, faith groups, retail & commerce and schools. New members 
from within the AQMAs the groups serve are always welcome and can contact Environment 
& Community at : 
 
air.quality@newport.gov.uk  
 

4.3 Steering Group  

The composition of the NCC AQAP steering group was as follows: 

• Steven Manning (Senior Scientific Officer) 

• Matthew Cridland (Regulatory Services Manager, Environment & Community) 

• Sylvia Gonzalez Lopez (Head of Environment and Public Protection) 

• Steve Davies (Senior Strategy Manager) – Strategic Highways 

• Richard Sexty (Education Transformation Manager) - Education 

• Andrew Brooks (Highways Manager) - Highways 

• Alistair Hopkins (Service Manager Transport) – Active Travel 

• Ross Cudlipp (Climate Change Manager) – Climate Change 

• Richard Cope (Transportation Manager) – Public Transport 

• Laura Waldron (Programme Manager) – Climate Change 

• Andrew Ferguson (Planning & Development Manager) – Regeneration 

 

Members of the group served to provide input and a source of internal consultation to stages 
of the action planning process wherever possible e.g., source apportionment, measures 
ideas and modelling of measures. 

 

Page 70

mailto:air.quality@newport.gov.uk


Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        44 

5. AQAP Measures 
 

Tables 5.1 to 5.12 shows the Newport City Council AQAP measures by AQMA. It contains: 

• a list of the actions that are or could, where adopted, contribute to emissions reductions as part of the plan 

• the AQMAs to which they apply 

• the responsible individual and departments/organisations who could deliver this action subject to wider consideration/feasibility 

• notional cost of implementing each action  

• expected benefit in terms of pollutant emission and/or concentration reduction 

• the potential timescale for implementation 

• how progress will be monitored 

• Measures listed in subsequent sections are drawn from Table 26 (Council Key Priorities & Measures) and due to the nature of the AQAP being a living 

document, may be subject to review at any time where council consideration of new information dictates this should happen. 

 

NB: Please see future APRs for regular annual updates on implementation of these measures where they are taken forward. These can be found at the 

following link: 

https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Transport-Streets/Pollution-and-noise-control/Air-quality-data-reports.aspx 

 

Table 5.1 to 5.11 measures have been selected from a number of sources for each of the AQMAs and are based upon a range or criteria depending upon 
whether they are ongoing measures which are starting to have an impact or ideas for future measures for which their feasibility will need to be assessed in 
detail where considered. The indicative rankings for measures which are shown are intended for use in future discussions regarding their potential 
implementation. All of the measures identified in this AQAP have arisen from Air Quality Groups or Council Officers. 

Any proposed measures which are not already funded or being implemented will require funding streams to be identified and as such would need to be the 
subject of bids to funding organisations. In view of the requirement for varying levels of funding there will inevitably be some uncertainty over how soon some 
measures can be brought forward where they are feasible. Lower cost measures will be attractive in terms of their accessibility however this needs to be 
considered against the level of emission reduction achieved which sometimes can be lower.  Newport City Council is conscious of this and will endeavor to 
implement as many of the top priority measures as possible within each of the AQMAs wherever it can be shown to be feasible to do so. 

 

P
age 71

https://www.newport.gov.uk/en/Transport-Streets/Pollution-and-noise-control/Air-quality-data-reports.aspx


Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        45 

 

 5.1 ‒ Air Quality Action Plan Measures – Caerleon AQMA 
 

Measure 
No. 

Measure 
 

AQMA  
EU 

Category 

EU 
Classificatio

n 

Lead 
Authority 

Planning 
Phase 

Implementation 
Phase 

Key 
Performance 

Indicator 

Target Pollution 
Reduction in the 

AQMA 

Progress 
to Date 

Estimated 
Completion 

Date 
Comments 

1 
100% eBus 

services 

 
Caerleon 

Promoting 
low 

emission 
transport 

Other 
Newport 
Bus/NCC 

TBC Ongoing 

Public 
awareness 
confirmed 

through panel 
and 

questionnaire 
responses 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location  
Modelled 

reductions of 
-0.1 to -1.7 

μg/m3  

Ongoing 
expansion of 

fleet 
2024/25  

2 

ECO Stars 
accreditation 

scheme 
including 
AQMA 
routing 

awareness 

 
 

Caerleon 
Freight & 
Delivery 

Managem
ent 

Route 
Management 

Plans/ 
Strategic 
routing 

strategy for 
HGV's 

NCC/AQG Current 
 

Spring 2024 

ECO Stars: 
Update view on 

fuel savings 
compared with 
previous years. 

36 μg/m3 or 
better at AQO 

breach location 

Funding 
obtained 

Spring 2024 
LAQM Grant funded, 

and work being 
commissioned 

3 

Community 
walking hubs 

for school 
runs 

 
Caerleon 

Promoting 
Travel 

alternative
s 

Promotion of 
walking 

Local 
Schools 

New year 
2023 

None currently 

Percentage 
walking change 
on school run 

travel 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 

Initial contact 
with NCC 
Highways 

n/a 
Idea currently being 

explored by AQ Group 

4 

Schools Air 
Quality 

Monitoring 
Learning 

Caerleon 
Public 

Informatio
n 

Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 

2023 

Support officer to go 
into Schools 

September 2023 

 Tying air quality 
into curriculum 

activities 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Funding 
obtained 

January 2024 
LAQM Grant funded, 

and work being 
commissioned 

6 
AQMA 

Schools 
Travel Plans 

Caerleon Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 
Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 2023 

 September 2023 – 
end March 2024 

School travel plan 
participation 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location Funding 

obtained 
January 2024 

LAQM Grant for school 
Traffic surveys where 

STP being done 

7 

Emission 
reduction 
from new 

development 

 
Caerleon, 

 
Promoting 

Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Other 
Local 

Planning 
Authority 

Ongoing 
Ongoing on a 

development-by-
development basis 

Adoption of 
measures e.g. 
anti idling, EV 
charging, low 

emission boilers 
etc. 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 

Ongoing 
requests 

Ongoing  

8 

Infrastructure 
projects 
where 

feasible 

 
Caerleon 

Traffic 
Managem

ent 
Other NCC Undertaken n/a 

AQO compliance 
at location of 

breach 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Feasibility  n/a None currently feasible 

 

P
age 72



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        46 

5.2  – Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in Caerleon AQMA 

 
 
Measure No. 
 

 

 
Cost benefit (cost x [pollution reduction + exposure reduction] = score) 

 
Measure 

Cost 
1 = >£1m 
2 = £250k-1m 
3 = £50k - 250k 
4 = £10k - £50k 
5 = <£10k 

Air pollution 
reduction 
10 = greatest air 
quality gain 
1 = least air quality 
gain 

 
Exposure reduction 
10 = greatest exposure 
reduction 1 = least 
exposure reduction 

 
Score 
= cost x 
benefit 

 
Rank 
1 = most cost 
benefit effective 

1 100% eBus services 
1 7 7 14 6 

2 
ECO Stars accreditation 
scheme including AQMA 
routing awareness 

5 
 

4 
 

4 
 

40  
4 

3 Community walking hub for 
school runs 

5 7 7 
 

70 
 

1 

4 Schools Air Quality Monitoring 
Learning 

 
5 
 

 
5 
 

 
5 
 

 
50 

 

 
3 
 

5 AQMA Schools Travel Plans 
5 6 6 60 2 

6 Emission reduction from new 
development 

3 4 4 24  
5 

7 
Infrastructure projects where 
feasible 

1 7 7 14 6 

 

 

P
age 73



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        47 

 5.3 ‒ Air Quality Action Plan Measures – Caerphilly Road AQMA  
 
 
 

Measure 
No. 

Measure 
 

AQMA  
EU 

Category 

EU 
Classificatio

n 

Lead 
Authority 

Planning 
Phase 

Implementation 
Phase 

Key 
Performance 

Indicator 

Target Pollution 
Reduction in the 

AQMA 

Progress 
to Date 

Estimated 
Completion 

Date 
Comments 

1 
100% eBus 

services 

 
Caerphilly Road 

Promoting 
low 

emission 
transport 

Other 
Newport 
Bus/NCC 

TBC Ongoing 

Public awareness 
confirmed through 
panel and 
questionnaire 
responses 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location  
Modelled reductions 

of 
-0.1 to -1.7 μg/m3  

Ongoing 
expansion of 

fleet 
2024/25   

2 

ECO Stars 
accreditation 

scheme 
including 

AQMA routing 
awareness 

 
Caerphilly Road Freight & 

Delivery 
Manageme

nt 

Route 
Management 

Plans/ Strategic 
routing strategy 

for HGV's 

NCC/AQG Current 
 

Spring 2024 

ECO Stars: Update 
view on fuel 

savings compared 
with previous 

years. 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 

Funding 
obtained 

Spring 2024 
LAQM Grant funded, and 
work being commissioned 

3 
20mph speed 

limit 

 
Caerphilly Road 

Traffic 
manageme

nt 

Reduction of 
speed limits 

WG/NCC Ongoing September 2023 
Pedestrian safety 
and potential air 

quality reductions 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 

Implementatio
n by Welsh 

Gov. 
September 2023 

Welsh Government 
20mph initiative. 

4 

Emission 
reduction from 

new 
development 

 
Caerphilly Road 

Promoting 
Low 

Emission 
Transport 

Other 
Local 

Planning 
Authority 

Ongoing 
Ongoing on a 

development-by-
development basis 

Adoption of 
measures e.g. anti 
idling, EV charging, 

low emission 
boilers etc. 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 

Ongoing 
requests 

Ongoing  

5 

Schools Air 
Quality 

Monitoring 
Learning 

 
Caerphilly Road Public 

Information 
Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 2023 

Support officer to go 
into Schools 

September 2023 

 Tying air quality 
into curriculum 
activities 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location Funding 

obtained 
January 2024 

LAQM Grant funded, and 
work being commissioned 

6 
AQMA Schools 

Travel Plans 

Caerphilly Road Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 
Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 2023 

 September 2023 – 
end March 2024 

School travel plan 
participation 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 

Funding 
obtained 

January 2024 
LAQM Grant for school 
Traffic surveys where 

STP being done 

7 
Green 

wall/emission 
barrier 

 
Caerphilly Road 

Traffic 
Manageme

nt 
Other WG/NCC Spring 23’ n/a 

Expedited 
reduction in N02 at 
85 Caerphilly Road 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 

n/a n/a 
Potential subject of future 

LAQM grant subject to 
Highways constraints 

8 
Infrastructure 

projects where 
feasible 

 
Caerphilly Road 

Traffic 
Manageme

nt 
Other NCC Undertaken n/a 

AQO compliance at 
location of breach 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 

Feasibility  n/a None currently identified 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 74



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        48 

5.4 – Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in Caerphilly Road AQMA 

 
 
Measure No. 
 

 

 
Cost benefit (cost x [pollution reduction + exposure reduction] = score) 

 
Measure 

Cost 
1 = >£1m 
2 = £250k-1m 
3 = £50k - 250k 
4 = £10k - £50k 
5 = <£10k 

Air pollution 
reduction 
10 = greatest air 
quality gain 
1 = least air quality 
gain 

 
Exposure reduction 
10 = greatest exposure 
reduction 1 = least 
exposure reduction 

 
Score 
= cost x 
benefit 

 
Rank 
1 = most cost 
benefit effective 

1 
 100% eBus services 

1 7 7 14 6 

2 
ECO Stars accreditation 
scheme including AQMA 

routing awareness 

5 
 

4 
 

4 
 

40 4 

3 20mph speed limit 
1 5 

 

5 
 

10 
 

7 

4 
Emission reduction from new 

development 

 
3 
 

 
4 
 

 
4 
 

 
24 

 

5 

5 
Schools Air Quality Monitoring 

Learning 
5 5 5 50 3 

6 AQMA Schools Travel Plans 
5 6 6 60 2 

7 Green wall/emission barrier 
4 8 8 64 1 

8 
Infrastructure projects where 

feasible 

1 7 7 14 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 75



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        49 

5.5 ‒ Air Quality Action Plan Measures – Cefn Road AQMA   
 

Measure 
No. 

Measure 
 

AQMA  
EU 

Category 

EU 
Classificatio

n 

Lead 
Authority 

Planning 
Phase 

Implementation 
Phase 

Key 
Performanc
e Indicator 

Target Pollution 
Reduction in the 

AQMA 

Progress 
to Date 

Estimated 
Completion 

Date 
Comments 

1 
100% eBus 

services 

 
Cefn Road 

Promoting 
low 

emission 
transport 

Other 
Newport 
Bus/WG 

TBC Ongoing 

Public 
awareness 
confirmed 

through panel 
and 

questionnaire 
responses 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location  
Modelled reductions 

of 
-0.1 to -1.7 μg/m3  

Ongoing 
expansion of 

fleet 
2024/25   

2 

ECO Stars 
accreditation 

scheme 
including 
AQMA 
routing 

awareness 

 
Cefn Road 

Freight & 
Delivery 

Managem
ent 

Route 
Management 

Plans/ 
Strategic 
routing 

strategy for 
HGV's 

NCC/AQG Current 
 

Spring 2024 

ECO Stars: 
Update view on 

fuel savings 
compared with 
previous years. 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 

Funding 
obtained 

Spring 2024 
LAQM Grant funded, 

and work being 
commissioned 

3 
20mph 

speed limit 

Cefn Road 
 Traffic 

managem
ent 

Reduction of 
speed limits 

WG/NCC Ongoing September 2023 

Pedestrian 
safety and 

potential air 
quality 

reductions 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Implementati
on by Welsh 

Gov. 

September 
2023 

Welsh Government 
20mph initiative. 

4 

Emission 
reduction 
from new 

development 

Cefn Road 
Promoting 

Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Other 
Local 

Planning 
Authority 

Ongoing 
Ongoing on a 

development-by-
development basis 

Adoption of 
measures e.g. 
anti idling, EV 
charging, low 

emission 
boilers etc. 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 

Ongoing 
requests 

Ongoing  

5 

Schools Air 
Quality 

Monitoring 
Learning 

Cefn Road 
Public 

Informatio
n 

Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 

2023 

Support officer to go 
into Schools 

September 2023 

 Tying air 
quality into 
curriculum 
activities 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Funding 
obtained 

January 2024 
LAQM Grant funded, 

and work being 
commissioned 

6 
AQMA Schools 

Travel Plans 

Malpas Road Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 
Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 2023 

 September 2023 – 
end March 2024 

School travel 
plan participation 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 

Funding 
obtained 

January 2024 
LAQM Grant for school 
Traffic surveys where 

STP being done 

7 

Infrastructure 
projects 
where 

feasible 

 
Cefn Road 

Traffic 
Managem

ent 
Other NCC Undertaken n/a 

AQO 
compliance at 

location of 
breach 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Feasibility  n/a  

 
 

P
age 76



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        50 

5.6 – Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in Cefn Road AQMA 

 
 
Measure No. 
 

 

 
Cost benefit (cost x [pollution reduction + exposure reduction] = score) 

 
Measure 

Cost 
1 = >£1m 
2 = £250k-1m 
3 = £50k - 250k 
4 = £10k - £50k 
5 = <£10k 

Air pollution 
reduction 
10 = greatest air 
quality gain 
1 = least air quality 
gain 

 
Exposure reduction 
10 = greatest exposure 
reduction 1 = least 
exposure reduction 

 
Score 
= cost x 
benefit 

 
Rank 
1 = most cost 
benefit effective 

 
1 

 
100% eBus services 

1 7 7 14 5 

2 
ECO Stars accreditation 
scheme including AQMA 

routing awareness 

5 
 

4 
 

4 
 

40 3 

3 20mph speed limit 
1 5 

 
5 
 

10 
 

6 

4 Emission reduction from new 
development 

 
3 
 

 
4 
 

 
4 
 

 
24 

 

 
4 

5 
Schools Air Quality Monitoring 

Learning 
5 5 5 50 2 

6 AQMA Schools Travel Plans 
5 6 6 60 1 

7 
Infrastructure projects where 

feasible 

1 7 7 14 5 

 

P
age 77



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        51 

 

5.7- Air Quality Action Plan Measures – Chepstow Road AQMA 
  
 

Measure 
No. 

Measure 
 

AQMA  
EU 

Category 

EU 
Classificatio

n 

Lead 
Authority 

Planning 
Phase 

Implementation 
Phase 

Key 
Performance 

Indicator 

Target Pollution 
Reduction in the 

AQMA 

Progress 
to Date 

Estimated 
Completion 

Date 
Comments 

1 
100% eBus 

services 

 
 

Chepstow 
Road 

Promoting 
low 

emission 
transport 

Other 
Newport 
Bus/WG 

TBC Ongoing 

Public 
awareness 
confirmed 

through panel 
and 

questionnaire 
responses 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location  
Modelled 

reductions of 
-0.1 to -1.7 μg/m3  

Ongoing 
expansion of 

fleet 
2024/25   

2 

ECO Stars 
accreditation 

scheme 
including 
AQMA 
routing 

awareness 

Chepstow 
Road 

Freight & 
Delivery 

Managem
ent 

Route 
Management 

Plans/ 
Strategic 
routing 

strategy for 
HGV's 

NCC/AQG Current 
 

Spring 2024 

ECO Stars: 
Update view on 

fuel savings 
compared with 
previous years. 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 

Funding 
obtained 

Spring 2024 
LAQM Grant funded, 

and work being 
commissioned 

3 
20mph 

speed limit 

Chepstow 
Road Traffic 

managem
ent 

Reduction of 
speed limits 

WG/NCC Ongoing September 2023 

Pedestrian 
safety and 
potential air 

quality 
reductions 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Implementati
on by Welsh 

Gov. 

September 
2023 

Welsh Government 
20mph initiative. 

4 

Emission 
reduction 
from new 

development 

Chepstow 
Road Promoting 

Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Other 
Local 

Planning 
Authority 

Ongoing 
Ongoing on a 

development-by-
development basis 

Adoption of 
measures e.g. 
anti idling, EV 
charging, low 

emission boilers 
etc. 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 

Ongoing 
requests 

Ongoing  

5 

Schools air 
quality 

monitoring 
learning 

Chepstow 
Road 

Public 
Informatio

n 
Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 

2023 

Support officer to go 
into Schools 

September 2023 

 Tying air quality 
into curriculum 

activities 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Funding 
obtained 

January 2024 
LAQM Grant funded, 

and work being 
commissioned 

6 
AQMA Schools 

Travel Plans 

Malpas Road Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 
Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 2023 

 September 2023 – 
end March 2024 

School travel plan 
participation 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 

Funding 
obtained 

January 2024 
LAQM Grant for school 
Traffic surveys where 

STP being done 

7 

Infrastructure 
projects 
where 

feasible 

Chepstow 
Road 

Traffic 
Managem

ent 
Other NCC Undertaken n/a 

AQO compliance 
at location of 

breach 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Feasibility  n/a  

 
 
 

P
age 78



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        52 

5.8 - Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in Chepstow Road AQMA 

 
 

 
Measure No. 
 

 

 
Cost benefit (cost x [pollution reduction + exposure reduction] = score) 

 
Measure 

Cost 
1 = >£1m 
2 = £250k-1m 
3 = £50k - 250k 
4 = £10k - £50k 
5 = <£10k 

Air pollution 
reduction 
10 = greatest air 
quality gain 
1 = least air quality 
gain 

 
Exposure reduction 
10 = greatest exposure 
reduction 1 = least 
exposure reduction 

 
Score 
= cost x 
benefit 

 
Rank 
1 = most cost 
benefit effective 

1 

 
100% eBus services 

1 7 7 14 
5 

2 
ECO Stars accreditation 
scheme including AQMA 
routing awareness 

5 
 

4 
 

4 
 

40 
3 

3 20mph speed limit 
1 5 

 
5 
 

10 
 

6 

4 
Emission reduction from 
new development 

 
3 
 

 
4 
 

 
4 
 

 
24 

 
4 

5 Schools Air Quality 
Monitoring Learning 

5 5 5 50 
2 

6 
AQMA Schools Travel 
Plans 

5 6 6 60 
1 

7 Infrastructure projects 
where feasible 

1 7 7 14 
5 

 

P
age 79



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        53 

 

5.9 - Air Quality Action Plan Measures – George Street AQMA 
 
 

Measure 
No. 

Measure 
 

AQMA  
EU 

Category 

EU 
Classificatio

n 

Lead 
Authority 

Planning 
Phase 

Implementation 
Phase 

Key 
Performance 

Indicator 

Target Pollution 
Reduction in the 

AQMA 

Progress 
to Date 

Estimated 
Completion 

Date 
Comments 

1 
100% eBus 

services 

 
 
 

George Street 

Promoting 
low 

emission 
transport 

Other 
Newport 
Bus/WG 

TBC Ongoing 

Public 
awareness 
confirmed 

through panel 
and 

questionnaire 
responses 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location  
Modelled 

reductions of 
-0.1 to -1.7 μg/m3  

Ongoing 
expansion of 

fleet 
2024/25   

2 

ECO Stars 
accreditation 

scheme 
including 
AQMA 
routing 

awareness 

 
 

George Street 
Freight & 
Delivery 

Managem
ent 

Route 
Management 

Plans/ 
Strategic 
routing 

strategy for 
HGV's 

NCC/AQG Current 
 

Spring 2024 

ECO Stars: 
Update view on 

fuel savings 
compared with 
previous years. 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 

Funding 
obtained 

Spring 2024 
LAQM Grant funded, 

and work being 
commissioned 

3 
20mph 

speed limit 

 
George Street Traffic 

managem
ent 

Reduction of 
speed limits WG/NCC Ongoing September 2023 

Pedestrian 
safety and 
potential air 

quality 
reductions 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Implementati
on by Welsh 

Gov. 

September 
2023 

Welsh Government 
20mph initiative. 

4 

Emission 
reduction 
from new 

development 

 
George Street Promoting 

Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Other 
Local 

Planning 
Authority 

Ongoing 
Ongoing on a 

development-by-
development basis 

Adoption of 
measures e.g. 
anti idling, EV 
charging, low 

emission boilers 
etc. 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 

Ongoing 
requests 

Ongoing  

5 

Schools air 
quality 

monitoring 
learning 

 
George Street 

Public 
Informatio

n 
Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 

2023 

Support officer to go 
into Schools 

September 2023 

 Tying air quality 
into curriculum 

activities 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Funding 
obtained 

January 2024 
LAQM Grant funded, 

and work being 
commissioned 

6 
AQMA 

Schools 
Travel Plans 

George Street Promoting 
Travel 

Alternative
s 

Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 

2023 

 September 2023 – 
end March 2024 

School travel 
plan participation 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Funding 
obtained 

January 2024 
LAQM Grant for school 
Traffic surveys where 

STP being done 

7 

Infrastructure 
projects 
where 

feasible 

George Street 
Traffic 

Managem
ent 

Other NCC Undertaken n/a 
AQO compliance 

at location of 
breach 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 
Feasibility  n/a  

 
 

P
age 80



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        54 

 

5.10 – Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in George Street AQMA 

 
 

 
Measure No. 
 

 

 
Cost benefit (cost x [pollution reduction + exposure reduction] = score) 

 
Measure 

Cost 
1 = >£1m 
2 = £250k-1m 
3 = £50k - 250k 
4 = £10k - £50k 
5 = <£10k 

Air pollution 
reduction 
10 = greatest air 
quality gain 
1 = least air quality 
gain 

 
Exposure reduction 
10 = greatest exposure 
reduction 1 = least 
exposure reduction 

 
Score 
= cost x 
benefit 

 
Rank 
1 = most cost 
benefit effective 

1 100% eBus services 
1 7 7 14 5 

2 
ECO Stars accreditation 
scheme including AQMA 
routing awareness 

5 
 

4 
 

4 
 

40 3 

3 20mph speed limit 
1 5 

 
5 
 

10 
 

6 

4 
Emission reduction from 
new development 

 
3 
 

 
4 
 

 
4 
 

 
24 

 

4 

5 
Schools air quality 
monitoring learning 

5 5 5 50 2 

6 
AQMA Schools Travel 
Plans 

5 6 6 60 1 

7 
Infrastructure projects 
where feasible 

1 7 7 14 5 

 

P
age 81



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        55 

 

5.11 - Air Quality Action Plan Measures – Malpas Road AQMA  
 

Measure 
No. 

Measure 
 

AQMA  
EU 

Category 

EU 
Classificatio

n 

Lead 
Authority 

Planning 
Phase 

Implementation 
Phase 

Key 
Performance 

Indicator 

Target Pollution 
Reduction in the 

AQMA 

Progress 
to Date 

Estimated 
Completion 

Date 
Comments 

1 
100% eBus 

services 

Malpas Road 
Promoting 

low 
emission 
transport 

Other 
Newport 
Bus/WG 

TBC Ongoing 

Public awareness 
confirmed through 

panel and 
questionnaire 

responses 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 
Modelled reductions 

of 
-0.1 to -1.7 μg/m3 

Ongoing 
expansion of 

fleet 
2024/25  

2 

ECO Stars 
accreditation 

scheme 
including 

AQMA routing 
awareness 

Malpas Road 
Freight & 
Delivery 

Manageme
nt 

Route 
Management 

Plans/ 
Strategic 

routing strategy 
for HGV's 

NCC/AQG Current 
 

Spring 2024 

ECO Stars: Update 
view on fuel 

savings compared 
with previous 

years. 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 

Funding 
obtained 

Spring 2024 
LAQM Grant funded, 

and work being 
commissioned 

3 
20mph speed 

limit 

Malpas Road Traffic 
manageme

nt 

Reduction of 
speed limits 

WG/NCC Ongoing September 2023 
Pedestrian safety 
and potential air 

quality reductions 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 

Implementatio
n by Welsh 

Gov. 
September 2023 

Welsh Government 
20mph initiative. 

4 

Emission 
reduction from 

new 
development 

Malpas Road 
Promoting 

Low 
Emission 
Transport 

Other 
Local 

Planning 
Authority 

Ongoing 
Ongoing on a 

development-by-
development basis 

Adoption of 
measures e.g. anti 
idling, EV charging, 

low emission 
boilers etc. 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 

Ongoing 
requests 

Ongoing  

5 

Schools air 
quality 

monitoring 
learning 

Malpas Road 
Public 

Information 
Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 2023 

Support officer to go 
into Schools 

September 2023 

Tying air quality 
into curriculum 

activities 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location Funding 

obtained 
January 2024 

LAQM Grant funded, and 
work being commissioned 

6 
AQMA Schools 

Travel Plans 

Malpas Road Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 
Other NCC 

Scoping 
January 2023 

 September 2023 – 
end March 2024 

School travel plan 
participation 

36 μg/m3 or better at 
AQO breach location 

Funding 
obtained 

January 2024 
LAQM Grant for school 
Traffic surveys where 

STP being done 

7 

Infrastructure 
projects 
where 

feasible 

Malpas Road 
Traffic 

Managem
ent 

Other NCC Undertaken n/a 

AQO compliance 
at location of 

breach 

36 μg/m3 or better 
at AQO breach 

location 

Feasibility  n/a  

 

P
age 82



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        56 

 

5.12 – Cost benefit Analysis for Measures Proposed in Malpas Road AQMA  

 
 

 
Measure No. 
 

 

 
Cost benefit (cost x [pollution reduction + exposure reduction] = score) 

 
Measure 

Cost 
1 = >£1m 
2 = £250k-1m 
3 = £50k - 250k 
4 = £10k - £50k 
5 = <£10k 

Air pollution 
reduction 
10 = greatest air 
quality gain 
1 = least air quality 
gain 

 
Exposure reduction 
10 = greatest exposure 
reduction 1 = least 
exposure reduction 

 
Score 
= cost x 
benefit 

 
Rank 
1 = most cost 
benefit effective 

1 100% eBus services 
1 7 7 14 5 

2 
ECO Stars accreditation 
scheme including AQMA 
routing awareness 

5 
 

4 
 

4 
 

40 3 

3 20mph speed limit 
1 5 

 
5 
 

10 
 

6 

4 
Emission reduction from 
new development 

 
3 
 

 
4 
 

 
4 
 

 
24 

 

4 

5 
Schools air quality 
monitoring learning 

5 5 5 50 2 

6 
AQMA Schools Travel 
Plans 

5 6 6 60 1 

7 
Infrastructure projects 
where feasible 

1 7 7 14 5 

 
 
 

P
age 83



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        57 

5.13 Taking Things Forward 
 
Moving forward the AQAP measures identified for each AQMA will form the framework for working 
with communities and local air quality with a view to delivering bespoke measures in each AQMA. 
Extending the aims and practice of the AQAP beyond AQMAs and across Newport is an aspiration 
that can be hopefully realised as well in the future through an Air Quality Strategy for Newport City 
Council. 
 
Many of the measures identified in this AQAP are already works in progress and their contribution 
towards reducing emissions is reasonably certain. Those which have yet to be considered will be 
looked at on a priority basis within each AQMA and where they can be initiated in tandem with other 
measures they will be subject to resources (staff and financial) and prevailing air quality data. 
 
Once compliance has been achieved with the prevailing nitrogen dioxide AQO this does not need to 
mean a cessation of the drive to improve nitrogen dioxide levels to a point which could be as low as 
reasonably practicable (ALARP). Best achievable air quality should be an aim in Newport wherever 
possible. 
 
Another piece of work which could stem from this AQAP is the estimation of the health benefits 
associated with the implementation of measures which bring about reductions in emissions and 
service cost savings this equates to. Such an exercise could provide a health context which is linked 
to the implementation of measures. Such a piece of work would need to be led by Newport City 
Council and Public Health Wales. New air quality project ideas are constantly being proposed and will 
hopefully add to the diversity of work that can be done with AQMA communities. 
 
This AQAP will be reviewed no later than 2028; however, should there be any significant legislative 
changes or guidance in respect of standards to be achieved for air quality in Wales prior to 2028, it 
will be necessary to update this AQAP or produce an amending document to support it. 
 

Page 84



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        58 

Appendix A:  

Air Quality Prior to 2022 
 

From an AQAP scoping report conducted in February 2022 the following was observed. 
To understand the range and extent of the air quality problem in Newport, the current status 
of all eleven AQMAs has been reviewed. Local monitoring data has been assessed to 
consider trends and locations of current exceedances of the air quality objectives.  

Overall it is noted that the majority of the AQMAs have experienced a slight improvement in 
NO2 concentrations over the last 5-7 years, although exceedances remain in some AQMAs 
when considering 2019 data. Data is available for 2020 and 2021, and is presented below, 
however, these data will have been impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and is likely not 
representative of long-term trends.  

It is noted in NCC’s latest APR (Newport City Council, 2020) that background air quality 
continues to show a marginal improvement.  

Trends in AQMAs 
For each respective AQMA, a review of Newport’s APRs (Newport City Council, 2015 – 
2019) has been conducted to consider trends in annual mean NO2 concentrations and to 
describe the current AQMA contexts. 2019 was chosen for this work as the baseline year for 
modelling purposes and calculation of pollutant reductions required hence in AQMA trends it 
is 2019 values that have been highlighted. It is recognised that higher values have been 
observed in years prior to 2019. The highest values observed in 2019 are discussed in the 
following sections. 

Ambient air quality concentration data has also been reviewed from Defra’s national 
Pollution Climate Mapping modelling as provided on the UK Ambient Air Quality Interactive 
Map1. Roadside concentrations along the A4042, A4051, A468 and M4 have been modelled 
by Defra, which includes estimates of roadside NO2 (2018-2020) concentrations. Modelled 
roadside concentrations are included for each AQMA where applicable. These modelled 
values have been combined with monitoring data to form an overall air quality assessment of 
these roads. The modelled 2020 levels therefore reflect the reductions in monitored levels 
due to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1 https://uk-air.defra.gov.uk/data/gis-mapping/ 

Page 85



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        59 

Caerleon AQMA 

The Caerleon AQMA covers a number of properties along either side of the High Street in Caerleon, with a one-

way system in place through the narrow streets. 

Table 0-1: Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations between 2015 and 2021 within and around the 

Caerleon AQMA 

Site ID Type (X,Y) 
Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

NCC8 Roadside (334105,190478) - 34.1 29.9 38.3 34.6 27.9 29.6 

NCC10D Façade (334208,190186) 40.3 38.2 37.0 30.6 - 19.6 20.8 

NCC25C Façade (334182,190422) 31.3 27.7 28.7 41.6 43.8 26.9 29.9 

NCC26B Roadside (334136,190458) 39.6 34.5 37.4 50.9 48.6 35.0 36.4 

NCC27B Roadside (334143,190454) - 21.2 21.5 41.6 41.7 28.5 28.9 

NCC35A Roadside (334232,190463) 38.9 41.1 37.5 25.6 25.9 22.7 23.8 

NCC36A Roadside (334260,190479) - 39.8 41.0 23.6 23.0 19.6 20.2 

NCC43A Roadside (334212,190446) 20.1 21.8 20.3 29.7 30.3 22.9 23.5 

NCC47A Roadside (334199,190431) 30.9 32.7 25.5 34.3 36.7 25.1 26.6 

NCC73A Roadside (334123,190374) - 26.1 27.7 25.9 18.5 - - 

NCC74 Façade (334140,190392) - 26.7 37.3 23.5 24.9 17.5 19.8 

NCC77A Roadside (334195,190186) - 25.6 25.7 15.8 29.2 - - 

NCC3A* Façade (334092,190822) - 39.0 32.6 17.6 18.0 12.6 15.4 

NCC34A* Façade (334010,190532) 48.0 49.3 42.3 26.7 27.1 19.9 21.0 

NCC52* Roadside (333880,190970) - 50.8 50.1 21.0 21.0 18.5 19.1 

NCC53* Roadside (333598,190556) - 32.8 31.6 19.9 22.0 15.6 16.4 

NCC54A* Roadside (334279,190593) 39.1 42.2 39.3 16.2 16.5 - 9.2 

NCC76B* Roadside (334279,190593) - - - - - 11.0 - 

NCC76C* Roadside (334085,190587) - - - - - - 12.5 

          

Notes: * Not located in AQMA but locations are in close proximity of the AQMA 

Exceedances of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μg/m3 are shown in bold. 

 

Annual mean NO2 concentrations in this AQMA have remained above the AQO for a number of years, with most 

of the exceedances found along Caerleon High Street. As shown in Table 0-1 and Figure 0-1, the 2019 

concentrations were exceeded at three locations along the High Street and Castle Street (NCC25C, NCC26B & 

NCC27B). These locations experienced either a small increase or remained at the 2018 levels. The highest NO2 

concentration recorded in this AQMA was 48.6 µg/m3 in 2019, with a similar figure also recorded in 2018 (50.9 

µg/m3). The concentrations to the southern side of the High Street were found to be close to the AQO at NCC47A 

(36.7 µg/m3). Concentrations at monitoring locations outside of the AQMA have been well below the AQO since 

2018. 

Page 86



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        60 

Figure 0-1: Caerleon High Street AQMA Designation and Monitoring Locations 

 

P
age 87



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        61 

Malpas Road AQMA 

The Malpas Road AQMA covers a number of residential properties along both sides of Malpas Road in the 

vicinity of the junction with Redland Street. This AQMA has traffic fed from the M4 from the north and is located 

about 350m away from the Shaftesbury AQMA, which is directly influenced by the M4. 

Table 0-2: Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations between 2015 and 2021 within and around the 

Malpas Road AQMA 

Site ID Type (X,Y) 
Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

NCC14A Roadside (330834,189310) 41.1 38.0 37.3 37.6 40.0 25.9 29.4 

NCC64 Roadside (330891,189199) - 37.7 32.3 39.7 41.0 28.8 32.6 

NCC63* Roadside (330743,189444) - 25.8 28.7 28.9 29.0 19.9 19.4 

Notes: * Not located in AQMA but locations are in close proximity of the AQMA 

Exceedance of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μg/m3 are shown in bold. 

As shown in Table 0-2, annual mean NO2 concentrations in the Malpas Road AQMA have fluctuated around the 

AQO between 2015 and 2019. The highest recorded concentration in 2019 was 41.0 µg/m3 (NCC64), with the 

other site in the AQMA (NCC14A) also at the AQO value. As shown in Figure 0-2, NCC63 is located outside of 

the current AQMA boundary along Malpas Road towards the M4. This site displays consistent concentrations that 

are below the AQO for NO2.  

Vehicle emissions from the two A-roads are likely to contribute to the NO2 concentrations recorded in the AQMA 

with A4051 Malpas Road, and A4042, which runs along the AQMA to the east. Modelled roadside concentrations 

of NO2 are presented in Table 0-3. The modelled roadside concentrations for these A-roads are approximately in 

the range of 33 µg/m3 to 35 µg/m3 for 2018 and 2019. Monitoring site NCC63 displays similar measured 

concentrations of NO2 to those modelled concentrations on the A4051 Malpas Road, which is outside of the 

AQMA. This highlights the specific issues resulting from the canyon effect leading to higher emissions in the 

AQMA. 

Table 0-3: Annual Mean Modelled Roadside Concentrations 

Road Located within/near 

AQMA 

Annual Mean Roadside Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2018 2019 2020 

A4042 Malpas Road AQMA - 33.3 19.1 

A4051 Shaftesbury AQMA 

Malpas Road AQMA 

34.4 34.6 24.2 

  

Page 88



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        62 

Figure 0-2: Malpas Road AQMA Designation and Monitoring Locations  

 

P
age 89



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        63 

Chepstow Road / Caerleon Road AQMA 

This AQMA covers a number of houses to the east of Clarence Place to Caerleon Road and to the north-east of 

Clarence Place to Chepstow Road. 

Table 0-4: Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations between 2015 and 2021 within and 
around the Chepstow Road / Clarence Place / Caerleon Road AQMA 

Site ID Type (X,Y) 
Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

NCC1 Roadside (331995,188415) 34.4 36.0 32.2 29.7 30.2 24.1 24.7 

NCC11A Roadside (332018,188987) 19.5 20.7 19.5 31.0 32.3 25.2 27.1 

NCC22B Roadside (332091,188382) 40.5 43.8 40.4 34.5 39.5 27.8 28.7 

NCC28B Roadside (332047,189070) 32.3 39.7 36.0 33.7 34.2 28.4 30.3 

NCC46B Roadside (332290,188339) - - - 44.4 48.1 35.0 38.2 

NCC50 Roadside (331531,188536) 48.9 44.4 50.5 38.1 43.5 30.2 33.1 

NCC66 Roadside (332204,188374) - 24.4 33.8 34.8 34.8 25.7 28.9 

NCC67 Façade (331529,188476) - 34.2 32.0 30.3 34.6 26.0 26.6 

NCC68 Roadside (331386,188461) - 46.1 43.2 31.5 32.1 20.4 24.1 

NCC69* Roadside (332089,189160) - 47.4 49.2 25.2 27.0 21.7 22.6 

Notes: * Not located in AQMA but locations are in close proximity of the AQMA 

Exceedance of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μg/m3 are shown in bold. 

As shown in Table 0-4 and Figure 0-3, the annual mean NO2 concentrations around the centre and east of the 

AQMA towards the branch of Chepstow Road from Caerleon Road exceeded the AQO in 2019. Concentrations at 

monitoring sites NCC22B, NCC46B and NCC50 are all either close to or above the AQO, with the highest 

concentration found at NCC46B (48.1 µg/m3). Concentrations in the previous five years have displayed a general 

decrease at most locations, with the exception of the three sites mentioned above. 

Page 90



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        64 

Figure 0-3: Chepstow Road / Clarence Place / Caerleon Road AQMA Designation and Monitoring Locations  

 

P
age 91



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        65 

Cefn Road AQMA 

The Cefn Road AQMA covers a small area including a stretch of residential properties between Cefn 

Road/Ruskin Avenue junction up to and including 116 Cefn Road.  

Table 0-5: Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations between 2015 and 2021 within and 
around the Cefn Road AQMA 

Site ID Type (X,Y) 
Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

NCC29C Roadside 
(Façade) 

(327600,188468) 61.8 56.6 55.8 41.0 42.7 31.0 33.2 

NCC33B Roadside 
(Façade) 

(327390,188551) 56.3 54.1 51.1 32.4 32.8 23.5 28.2 

NCC71A Roadside 
(Façade) 

(327524,188485) - 39.8 39.5 39.8 37.8 28.1 35.8 

Notes: Exceedance of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μg/m3 are shown in bold. 

NO2 annual means in excess of 60 μg/m3, indicating a potential exceedance of the NO2 hourly mean AQS objective are shown 

in bold and underlined. 

 

In Table 0-5 and Figure 0-4, the annual mean NO2 concentrations have declined considerably from 2015 to 2019, 

from levels around 60 µg/m3 to levels around or below the AQO at two monitoring locations. Concentrations at 

the façade location (NCC33B) have dropped below the AQO, while levels at site NCC29C located on a façade 

have remained above the AQO until 2019. The 2019 annual mean concentration was 42.7 µg/m3, showing a 

slight increase from 41.0 µg/m3 recorded in 2018. Concentrations measured at the other location (NCC71A) in 

the centre of the AQMA have remained consistently just below the AQO and has shown little change between 

2016 and 2019. It should be noted despite the impacts of COVID-19 during 2020, the NO2 concentration in 2021 

(35.8 µg/m3) at this site is more in line with 2019 levels.  

 

Page 92



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        66 

Figure 0-4: Cefn Road AQMA Designation and Monitoring Locations  

 

P
age 93



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        67 

Caerphilly Road AQMA 

The Caerphilly Road AQMA encompasses an area extending either side of the M4 including residential properties 

from Forge Road Roundabout to 93 Caerphilly Road.  

Table 0-6: Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations between 2015 and 2021 within and around the 

Caerphilly Road AQMA 

Site ID Type (X,Y) 
Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

NCC48D Roadside (327053,186943) - - - 44.9 42.4 34.9 35.9 

NCC49C Roadside (327631,187043) 33.6 32.3 30.7 29.7 28.3 23.9 25.4 

NCC56A* Roadside (328015,186383) 23.7 25.5 22.5 18.8 21.1 - - 

Notes: * Not located in AQMA but locations are in close proximity of the AQMA 

Exceedance of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μg/m3 are shown in bold. 

 

As shown in Table 0-6 and Figure 0-5, the annual mean NO2 concentrations from 2015 to 2019 at NCC49C have 

complied with the AQO. Monitoring at site NCC48D commenced in 2018 and levels were above the AQO during 

2018 and 2019. The concentration measured here was 42.4 µg/m3 in 2019, showing a small decrease from 44.9 

µg/m3 in 2018. The other monitoring location closest to the AQMA at site NCC56A has remained well below the 

AQO and the site was removed in 2019. 

The modelled roadside NO2 concentrations along the A468 which runs through the AQMA are low, as shown in 

Table 0-7. These coincide with the concentrations seen at site NCC56A, however NCC48D is located on part of 

the road with a significant gradient that may explain why the concentrations seen are higher.  

Table 0-7: Annual Mean Modelled Roadside Concentrations 

Road Located within/near 

AQMA 

Annual Mean Roadside Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2018 2019 2020 

A468 Caerphilly Road 
AQMA 

20.8 20.3 15.2 

 

Page 94



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        68 

Figure 0-5: Caerphilly Road AQMA Designation and Monitoring Locations  

 

P
age 95



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        69 

George Street AQMA 

The George Street AQMA encompasses George Street between George Street / Commercial Road Junction to 

the George Street / Lower Dock Street Junction. 

Table 0-8: Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations between 2015 and 2021 within and around the 

George Street AQMA 

Site ID Type (X,Y) 
Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

NCC12A Façade (331428,187498) - 36.9 36.7 35.1 36.4 28.1 29.9 

NCC51 Façade (331395,187472) 38.5 37.0 36.4 37.5 41.1 32.8 32.7 

NCC62 Façade (331454,187540) - 35.6 37.2 32.3 35.4 25.5 28.7 

NCC72A   Façade (331405,187518) - 29.4 28.5 33.5 33.6 27.5 29.0 

Notes: * Not located in AQMA but locations are in close proximity of the AQMA 

Exceedance of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μg/m3 are shown in bold. 

 

As shown in Table 0-8 and Figure 0-6, the annual mean NO2 concentrations from 2015 at these four monitoring 

sites within the AQMA are below but close to the AQO until 2019 when concentrations at site NCC51was 41.1 

µg/m3. Concentrations at sites NCC12A and NCC62 in the AQMA have fluctuated around 36 µg/m3, which is 

within 10% of the AQO, while levels at NCC72A have increased between 2015 and 2019.  

Page 96



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        70 

Figure 0-6: George Street AQMA Designation and Monitoring Locations  

P
age 97



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        71 

 

P
age 98



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        72 

Royal Oak Hill AQMA 

The Royal Oak Hill AQMA includes a single property which located adjacently to the M4 motorway just west of 

where Royal Oak Hill crosses the motorway. 

Table 0-9: Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations between 2015 and 2021 within and around the 

Royal Oak Hill AQMA 

Site ID Type (X,Y) 
Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

NCC31 Façade (334943,189238) - 44.4 32.6 36.7 35.6 29.9 27.2 

Notes: Exceedance of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μg/m3 are shown in bold. 

 

As shown in Table 0-9 and Figure 0-7, annual mean NO2 concentrations in this AQMA have remained below 

the AQO since 2016 when the concentrations were 44.4 µg/m3. In recent years, the NO2 concentrations have 

remained around 35 – 36 µg/m3
, within 10% of the AQO. Road traffic emissions on the M4 is considered to be the 

main source of the high concentrations. This is reinforced by the modelled roadside concentrations, displayed in 

Table 0-10, on the M4 in 2019 of 37.8 µg/m3, which is approximately located 15m away from the residential 

property. 

Table 0-10: Annual Mean Modelled Roadside Concentrations 

Road Located within/near 

AQMA 

Annual Mean Roadside Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2018 2019 2020 

M4 Royal Oak Hill AQMA - 37.8 24.8 

 

 

Page 99



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        73 

Figure 0-7: Royal Oak Hill AQMA Designation and Monitoring Locations 

  

P
age 100



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        74 

Glasllwch AQMA 

The Glasllwch AQMA covers an area extending either side of the M4, which includes two residential properties, 

located south of the Junction 27 off Bassaleg Road. 

Table 0-11: Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations between 2015 and 2021 within and around the 

Glasllwch AQMA 

Site ID Type (X,Y) 
Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

NCC18C Façade (328586,187008) - 35.7 28.4 39.5 27.8 22.4 21.5 

NCC41B Façade (328537,187005) 29.5 27.8 27.3 25.4 22.4 17.8 23.4 

 

The monitored annual mean NO2 concentrations within the Glasllwch AQMA are shown in Table 0-11 and Figure 

0-8. NCC18C and NCC41B, located on the façade of two residential properties on opposite sides of the M4, have 

displayed generally low annual mean NO2 concentrations for monitoring with the AQMA (<30 µg/m3), with the 

exception of NCC18C in 2016 and 2018 when the measured concentrations were close to the AQO. This 

fluctuation of NO2 concentrations at NCC18C indicates there still may be some hotspots present within the 

AQMA. The roadside concentrations on the M4 modelled in 2018 and 2019 are relatively high as shown in Table 

0-12.  

Table 0-12 Annual Mean Modelled Roadside Concentrations 

Road Located within/near 

AQMA? 

Annual Mean Roadside Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2018 2019 2020 

M4 High Cross 

Glasllwch 

35.2 33.9 24.1 

Page 101



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        75 

Figure 0-8: Glasllwch AQMA Designation and Monitoring Locations  

P
age 102



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        76 

St Julian’s AQMA 

The St Julian’s AQMA covers an area at the north end of Denbigh Street immediately adjacent to the slip road at 

Junction 25 of the M4. There are several residential properties within this AQMA to the south of the M4. 

Table 0-13: Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations between 2015 and 2021 within and around the St 

Julian’s AQMA 

Site ID Type (X,Y) 
Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

St Julian’s * UB (CM) 
(332418, 
189603) 

21.0 22.0 20.0 19.0 20.0 15.0 15.0 

M4 (Old Barn) * 
Roadside 

(CM) 
(332685, 
189613) 

54.0 46.0 43.0 41.0 36.0 28.0 32.0 

NCC16A Roadside 
(332320, 
189703) 

43.1 42.1 41.3 28.2 27.5 22.6 22.3 

NCC21D (Co-located 
with M4)* 

 N/A 
(332690, 
189615) 

- 24.7 23.2 48.2 44.0 35.2 36.0 

NCC23E (Co-located 
with M4)* 

N/A 
(332690, 
189615) 

28.5 27.0 24.2 48.7 49.4 37.3 35.2 

NCC37 (Co-located 
with St Julian’s 

monitor)* 
UB 

(332499, 
189569) 

- 28.3 32.9 18.7 19.4 14.4 14.2 

NCC38 (Co-located 
with St Julian’s 

monitor)* 
UB 

(332499, 
189569) 

45.6 44.3 36.8 18.4 18.9 14.7 13.4 

NCC39 (Co-located 
with St Julian’s 

monitor)* 
UB 

(332499, 
189569) 

- 34.4 32.8 18.6 17.3 14.1 13.9 

Notes: * Not located in AQMA but locations are in close proximity of the AQMA 

Exceedance of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μg/m3 are shown in bold. 

UB and CM denotes Urban Background and Continuous Monitor respectively 

Table 0-13 and Figure 0-9 show annual mean NO2 concentrations at sites within the AQMA. Site NCC16A has 

recorded decreases in the annual mean NO2 concentrations over the last five years, with 2015 – 2017 being the 

only years the AQOs were exceeded. Since 2018, concentrations have remained below 30 µg/m3. 

Concentrations in and around the AQMA have also shown a general decline over this time period It should be 

noted that the continuous monitors provide a greater level of accuracy when measuring NO2 concentrations than 

diffusion tubes, thus these results are used to assess the AQMA at co-located sites (St Julian’s and M4 - Old 

Barn). As NO2 concentrations at these continuous sites are consistently below the AQO, the AQMA is currently 

being reviewed for revocation due to the improvements in air quality. 

The modelled roadside NO2 concentrations on the M4 estimated in 2018 and 2019 are relatively high but below 

the AQO as shown in Table 0-14. The concentrations measured by the continuous monitor located at the 

roadside Old Barn (M4) site are noted to be very similar to the modelled roadside concentrations. 

Table 0-14: Annual Mean Modelled Roadside Concentrations 

Road Located within/near 

AQMA? 

Annual Mean Roadside Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2018 2019 2020 

M4 St Julian’s 37.3 35.6 23.9 

Page 103



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        77 

Figure 0-9: St Julian’s AQMA Designation and Monitoring Locations  

 

P
age 104



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        78 

High Cross AQMA 

The High Cross AQMA includes two residential properties; 67 and 69 Glasllwch Crescent, located on either side 

of the M4 (Junction 27). 

Table 0-15: Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations between 2015 and 2021 within and around the 

High Cross AQMA 

Site ID Type (X,Y) 
Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

NCC2C Façade (328333,187869) 41.2 40.2 41.8 36.2 35.8 26.3 29.1 

NCC7B Façade (328421,187778) - 18.4 18.7 27.6 29.2 21.1 24.0 

NCC4B* Façade (328363,187895) - 33.6 30.0 34.8 33.5 25.4 25.9 

NCC15* Roadside (328443,187809) - 30.0 29.3 22.5 23.4 24.3 23.0 

Notes: * Not located in AQMA but locations are in close proximity of the AQMA 

Exceedance of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μg/m3 are shown in bold. 

Annual mean NO2 concentrations vary across the High Cross AQMA as shown in Figure 0-10 and Table 0-15. 

The concentrations on the north-west side of the AQMA were 33.5 µg/m3 and 35.8 µg/m3 for NCC4B and NCC2C 

respectively in 2019. This differs to the lower concentrations on the south-east side of the AQMA, where 

concentrations were 23.4 µg/m3 and 29.2 µg/m3 for NCC15 and NCC7B respectively.  

The modelled roadside NO2 concentrations on the M4 modelled in 2018 and 2019 are similar to monitored levels 

on the north side and are below the AQO as shown in Table 0-16. 

Table 0-16: Annual Mean Modelled Roadside Concentrations 

Road Located within/near 

AQMA 

Annual Mean Roadside Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2018 2019 2020 

M4 High Cross 

Glasllwch AQMA 

35.2 33.9 24.1 

Page 105



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        79 

Figure 0-10: High Cross AQMA Designation and Monitoring Locations  

 

P
age 106



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        80 

Shaftesbury AQMA 

The Shaftesbury AQMA covers an area around Junction 26 of the M4 including part of Malpas Road with 

residential properties. 

Table 0-17: Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations between 2015 and 2021 within and around the 

Shaftesbury AQMA 

Site ID Type (X,Y) 
Annual Mean NO2 Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 

NCC6B Roadside (330565,189618) - 37.4 35.6 34.6 31.2 25.7 25.1 

NCC17A Façade (330507,189664) 31.5 20.7 29.1 25.4 25.6 20.3 21.5 

 

The monitoring site and data in this AQMA are shown in Figure 0-11 and Table 0-17. Annual mean NO2 

concentrations in the Shaftesbury AQMA have seen gradual improvements between 2015 and 2019, decreasing 

from 37.4 µg/m3 to 32.1 µg/m3 and from 31.5 µg/m3 to 25.6 µg/m3 for the sites NCC6B and NCC17A respectively. 

Table 0-18 shows that modelled roadside concentrations on the M4 exceeded the AQO in 2018 and 2019, and 

are considerably higher than monitored concentrations within the AQMA.  

Table 0-18: Annual Mean Modelled Roadside Concentrations 

Road Located within/near 

AQMA? 

Annual Mean Roadside Concentrations (µg/m3) 

2018 2019 2020 

M4 Shaftesbury AQMA 

 

47.2 44.6 30.7 

Notes: Exceedance of the NO2 annual mean AQO of 40 μg/m3 are shown in bold. 

 

Page 107



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        81 

Figure 0-11: Shaftesbury AQMA Designation and Monitoring Locations 

 

P
age 108



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        82 

Analysis of Trends 
 
In the Councils 2020 APR trend graphs are shown for each of the AQMAs. It is noted that the majority of AQMAs have decreasing NO2 

concentrations in recent years.   

Caerleon, Caerphilly Road have shown improvements in air quality, although exceedances remain. It is anticipated that local measures will need 
to be developed in the AQAP and, following source apportionment exercises measures, could be tailored to tackle particular sources, for example 
the high proportion of heavy goods vehicles (HGVs) using Caerphilly Road.  

Cefn Road had limited monitoring before the COVID-19 pandemic, and therefore the long-term trend is unclear. The route is frequented by traffic 
leaving the M4, and it is anticipated that road traffic measures will be needed to achieve compliance. Malpas Road equally has concentrations that 
have fluctuated, with no clear long-term trend. 

Chepstow Road shows no sustained reduction at the locations in breach of the AQO, although some reductions are noted at nearby monitoring 
locations.  

Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic the George Street AQMA showed increasing NO2 concentrations.  

AQMAs with decreasing trends could achieve compliance with current measures in place, although the timescale is difficult to predict and could be 
shortened by the introduction of new measures. AQMAs with undefined trends or increasing trends will require focused measures to help bring 
compliance to these areas.  

For the 5 AQMAs adjacent to the M4, currently no exceedances of the AQO are noted. Most sites have shown decreasing trends (High Cross, 
Royal Oak Hill, Shaftsbury, St Julian’s), whilst Glasllwch has shown no clear trend. Whilst there are no current exceedances, these AQMAs are yet 
to be revoked.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 109



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        83 

Appendix B: Response to Consultation 
 

Table A.1 ‒ Summary of Responses to Consultation and Stakeholder Engagement on the AQAP 

Consultee Category Responses 

e.g. Chamber of Commerce Business E.g. Disagree with plan to remove parking on High Street in favour of 
buses and cycles; consider it will harm business of members. 

AQ GROUP CAERLEON AQMA COMMUNITY  

AQ GROUP CAERPHILLY AQMA COMMUNITY  

AQ GROUP CEFN AQMA COMMUNITY  

AQ GROUP CHEPSTOW AQMA COMMUNITY  

AQ GROUP GEORGE AQMA COMMUNITY  

AQ GROUP MALPAS AQMA COMMUNITY  

NCC ONLINE 
CONSULTATION 

ALL GROUPS  

AQAP Steering Group Newport City Council  

 

 

 

P
age 110



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        84 

Appendix C: Measures (ongoing and suggested)  
SYNCH MEASURE NAMES WITH AQMA TABLES 

Measu
re No. 

Measure 
EU 

Category 

EU 
Classificati

on 

Lead 
Authorit

y 

Planni
ng 

Phase 

Implementati
on Phase 

Key 
Performan

ce 
Indicator 

Target 
% 

Pollutio
n 

Reducti
on in 
the 

AQMA 

Progres
s to Date 

Estimate
d 

Completi
on Date 

Comments 

AQMA 
to 

which 
measur

e 
applies 
(All or 

named) 

Cost 
(High,Med,L
ow) or est. 

amount 

Time to 
impleme

nt 
(Months, 
Years) 

1 
100% 

electric 
buses 

Promoting 
low 

emission 
transport 

Other 
Newport 
Bus/WG 

TBC Ongoing 

Public 
awareness 
confirmed 
through 

panel and 
questionnai

re 
responses 

36 μg/m3 
or better at 

AQO 
breach 
location  

  

Ongoing 
expansio
n of fleet 

2024/25?  
Aim to be 

100%  
All High Ongoing 

2 

Old Green 
Improveme
nts Active 

Travel, 
Green 

Infrastructur
e 

Traffic 
Managem

ent 

Strategic 
Highways 

Improveme
nt 

NCC 2020 Not known 

AQO 
compliance 
in AQMA 
served 

36 μg/m3 
or better at 

AQO 
breach 
location  

  

Ongoing  
Not 

known  
  

Chepsto
w, 

George 
Street & 
Malpas 

High 
Not 

known 

3 

GWENT 
Healthy 
Travel 
Charter 

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternative
s 

Intensive 
active travel 
campaign & 
infrastructur

e 

NCC 2020 2021 

Adoption of 
charter and 
message 
transfer  

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

 Complet
ed 

2021    All Low Ongoing 

4 

ECO Stars 
Scheme - 
savings 

audit 

Freight & 
Delivery 

Managem
ent 

Route 
Manageme
nt Plans/ 
Strategic 
routing 

strategy for 
HGV's 

NCC/AQ
G 

Current 
 

Spring 2024 

ECO Stars: 
Update 
view on 

fuel 
savings 

compared 
with 

previous 
years. 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

Funding 
obtained 

Spring 
2024 

 LAQM 
Grant 

funded, and 
work being 
commission

ed 

All Low Ongoing 

P
age 111



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        85 

 

Measur
e No. 

Measure 
EU 

Category 

EU 
Classificati

on 

Lead 
Authority 

Planning 
Phase 

Implementati
on Phase 

Key 
Performan

ce 
Indicator 

Target % 
Pollutio

n 
Reducti
on in the 
AQMA 

Progress 
to Date 

Estimated 
Completi
on Date 

Commen
ts 

AQMA 
to 

which 
measur

e 
applies 
(All or 

named) 

Cost 
(High,Med,Lo

w) or est. 
amount 

Time to 
impleme

nt 
(Months, 
Years) 

5 

Air 
Inequaliti

es 
Project 

Public 
Information 

 
 Via other 

mechanisms 
  

EA/NRW  2020 ongoing 

Stakeholde
r 

engagemen
t  

36 μg/m3 
or better 
at AQO 
breach 
location 

Ongoing  n/a  
Largely 
EA led 
work.  

All Low    

6 

Active 
Travel 

Network 
Map 

Review 

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternative
s 

 
Promotion 

of Cycling & 
Walking 

 
  

NCC 
Complete

d  
Completed  

 Active 
travel 

uptake and 
use 

36 μg/m3 
or better 
at AQO 
breach 
location 

 Complet
ed 

 Complete
d 

Updates 
as 

required  
All Low  

 Complet
ed 

7 

Target 
active 

travel for 
the 

school 
run and 

anti-idling 
campaign
s outside 
school 
gates. 

Public 
Information 

Promotion 
of Cycling & 

Walking  

NCC & 
PSB 

Sustainab
le Travel 
Group 

Not 
known  

Not known  

Uptake of 
active 

travel over 
convention
al travel  

 36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

      All  Low Months  

8 

Tackle 
illegal 

parking 
througho
ut the city 

to 
prioritise 
walking, 
cycling 

and 
public 

transport 

Traffic 
Manageme

nt 

Parking 
Enforcemen

t on 
Highway 

NCC Ongoing     

36 μg/m3 
or better 
at AQO 
breach 

location  

      All Medium  Months  

P
age 112



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        86 

 

Measu
re No. 

Measure EU Category 
EU 

Classificat
ion 

Lead 
Authorit

y 

Plannin
g Phase 

Implementat
ion Phase 

Key 
Performan

ce 
Indicator 

Target 
% 

Pollutio
n 

Reducti
on in 
the 

AQMA 

Progress to 
Date 

Estimate
d 

Completi
on Date 

Comme
nts 

AQMA 
to 

which 
measur

e 
applies 
(All or 

named) 

Cost 
(High,Med,L
ow) or est. 

amount 

Time to 
impleme

nt 
(Months
, Years) 

9 
On Street 
Bike Hire 

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 
  

NCC / 
PSB 

Sustaina
ble 

Travel 
Group 

      

36 
μg/m3 

or better 
at AQO 
breach 

location  

      All Medium  Months  

10 
eRCV roll 

out 

Promoting 
Low Emission 

Transport 

Public 
Vehicle 

Procureme
nt -

Prioritising 
uptake of 

low 
emission 
vehicles 

NCC 
Complet

ed  
Ongoing  

Equivalent 
fuel 

emissions 
saved  

36 
μg/m3 

or better 
at AQO 
breach 

location  

 7 eRCVs to 
date 

 2024   All High   Years 

11 
NCC EV 
roll out 

Promoting 
Low Emission 

Transport 

Public 
Vehicle 

Procureme
nt -

Prioritising 
uptake of 

low 
emission 
vehicles 

NCC Ongoing  Ongoing  

 Equivalent 
fuel 

emissions 
saved  

36 
μg/m3 

or better 
at AQO 
breach 
location 

 Fleet 
transformati
on ongoing 

    All 
Medium to 

High  
Years  

12 
Air Quality 

Groups 

Public 
Information/Po

licy & 
Guidance 

Local 
Groups 

NCC 2020 2021 
AQO 

compliance 

36 
μg/m3 

or better 
at AQO 
breach 
location 

All Groups 
set up and 

active  
n/a  

Groups 
central to 
local Aire 
Quality 

projects  

All Low  
Complet

ed  

13 

Maintainin
g and 

adding to 
open 

space tree 
cover in 
public 
realm 

  

Transport 
Planning & 

Infrastructure 
Other NCC 

Not 
known  

Not known  

 
Percentag
e increase 
in cover  

36 
μg/m3 

or better 
at AQO 
breach 
location 

Not known      All 
Low to 

Medium 
 

P
age 113



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        87 

Measu
re No. 

Measure EU Category 
EU 

Classificat
ion 

Lead 
Authorit

y 

Plannin
g Phase 

Implementat
ion Phase 

Key 
Performan
ce 
Indicator 

Target 
% 

Pollutio
n 

Reducti
on in 
the 

AQMA 

Progress to 
Date 

Estimate
d 

Completi
on Date 

Comme
nts 

AQMA 
to 

which 
measur

e 
applies 
(All or 

named) 

Cost 
(High,Med,L
ow) or est. 

amount 

Time to 
impleme

nt 
(Months
, Years) 

14 

Real Time 
Sensor 
AQMA 
coverage 

Public 
Information/Tr

affic 
Management 

Other 
NCC - 

SM 
2022 Ongoing  

Full 
coverage 

for 
AQMAs  

36 
μg/m3 

or better 
at AQO 
breach 
location 

All AQMAs 
with 

coverage.  
2022  

Ongoing 
measure  

All Medium  Years  

15 

Green 
City 

Centre 
Infrastruct

ure 
Project 

Transport 
Planning & 

Infrastructure 
Other NCC  2023   

Introductio
n of further 

GI  

36 
μg/m3 

or better 
at AQO 
breach 
location 

Ongoing  
Not 

known  
  

Chepst
ow 

Road  
& 

George 
Street 

Medium to 
High  

Years  

16 
ECO 
Stars 

refresh 

Public 
Information/ 

Traffic 
Management 

Other NCC 2023/24 Completed  

New 
uptake of 
scheme 
and fuel 
savings  

36 
μg/m3 

or better 
at AQO 
breach 
location 

Commission
ed  

2024    All  Low  Months  

17 

HGV 
AQMA 
Routing 

Guidance 

Public 
Information/ 

Traffic 
Management 

Other NCC 2023/24 Completed  
Haulier 

awareness 
of AQMAs  

36 
μg/m3 

or better 
at AQO 
breach 
location 

Commission
ed  

2024    All  Low  Months  

18 

Potential 
creation of 

2 lanes 
carriagew

ay + 
active 
travel 
where 

previously 
4 lanes 

Traffic 
Management  

Reprioritisi
ng road 
space 

NCC     

 Improvem
ent of air 
quality 

adjacent to 
highway 

36 
μg/m3 

or better 
at AQO 
breach 
location 

      
George 
Street  

High  Years  

 
19 

 
Maindee 
Project 

Greening and 
reprioritising 
local centre 

traffic 

 
 

Other 

 
 

Maindee 
Unlimited 

 
 

Ongoing 

 
 

Subject to 
funding of 
Maindee 
Unlimited 

 
Traffic 

calming 
and green 
infrastructu

re 

36 
μg/m3 

or better 
at AQO 
breach 
location 

 
 

Design 
concept 

 
 

Not 
known 

 
 

Not 
known 

 
 

Chepst
ow 

Road 

 
 

High 

 
 

Years 

P
age 114



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        88 

improveme
nts 

P
age 115



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        89 

 

Measu
re No. 

Measure 
EU 

Category 

EU 
Classificati

on 

Lead 
Authority 

Planni
ng 

Phase 

Implementati
on Phase 

Key 
Performan

ce 
Indicator 

Target 
% 

Pollutio
n 

Reducti
on in 
the 

AQMA 

Progress 
to Date 

Estimate
d 

Completi
on Date 

Commen
ts 

AQMA 
to 

which 
measur

e 
applies 
(All or 

named) 

Cost 
(High,Med,L
ow) or est. 

amount 

Time to 
impleme

nt 
(Months, 
Years) 

 
20 

Roadvent 
system 

research & 
trialling 

 
Traffic 

emission 
manageme

nt 

 
Other 

 
NCC 

 

 
Ongoin

g 

 
Feasibility 
considered 

 
Air Quality 
Objective 

compliance 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

 
Research 
Funding 

bid 
unsuccess

ful 

  
n/a 

 
n/a 

Caerleo
n 

 
High 

 
Years 

 
21 

Green 
Barrier 

Caerphilly 
Road 

 
Traffic 

emission 
manageme

nt 

 
Other 

 
NCC 

 
 

 
 

 
Air Quality 
Objective 

compliance 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

 
Initial 

grant bid 
unsuccess

ful 

 
Not 

known 

 
Design 

acceptabl
e to NCC 
and WG 
needs to 

be 
sought 

 
Caerphil
ly Road 

 
Medium to 

High 

 
Years 

 
22 

Wall 
reduction 
opposite 5 
Cefn Road 
at Canal 

 
Traffic 

emission 
manageme

nt 

 
Other 

    36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

   Cefn 
Road 

  

 
23 

 
20mph 
contributio
ns to Air 
Quality 

 
Traffic 

Manageme
nt 

 
20mph 
Zones 

 
Welsh 

Governm
ent 

 
Ongoin

g 

 
Ongoing 

 
Safety and 
air quality 

figures 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

 
Pending 

for 
Septembe

r 2023 

 
2023 

 ALL 
(except 
Caerleo

n) 

 
Not known 

 
Years 

 
24 

5% EV 
increase 
in overall 

fleet 

 
Fleet 

transformati
on 

 
Other 

 
Everyone 

 
Ongoin

g 

 
Ongoing 

 
Percentage 

fleet 
compositio

n 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

 
Ongoing  

 
Not 

known 

 All   

 
 

25 

Planning 
requests 
in respect 

of air 
quality 

measures 

 
Policy 

Guidance 
and 

Developme
nt Control 

 
Air Quality 
Planning 

and Policy 
Guidance 

 
NCC 

 
Ongoin

g 

 
Ongoing 

 
Developme
nt with air 

quality 
measures 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

 
Ongoing 

 
Ongoing 

 
Planning 
condition

s are 
living 

documen
ts 

 
ALL 

 
Low, Medium, 

High 

 
Years 

P
age 116



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        90 

 

Measu
re No. 

Measure EU Category 
EU 

Classificati
on 

Lead 
Authori

ty 

Planni
ng 

Phase 

Implementati
on Phase 

Key 
Performan

ce 
Indicator 

Target 
% 

Pollutio
n 

Reducti
on in 
the 

AQMA 

Progres
s to 
Date 

Estimate
d 

Completi
on Date 

Commen
ts 

AQMA 
to 

which 
measu

re 
applies 
(All or 
named

) 

Cost 
(High,Med,L
ow) or est. 

amount 

Time to 
implement 
(Months, 
Years) 

 
26 

School 
Streets 

opportuniti
es 

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

Intensive 
active travel 
campaign & 
infrastructur

e 

Sustran
s 

Ongoin
g 

Ongoing Uptake of 
active 
travel 

alternative 
and 

scheme 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

Ongoing Ongoing   
ALL 

 
Low 

 
Months 

 
27 

School-
run 

walking 
train hub 

opportuniti
es 

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

Intensive 
active travel 
campaign & 
infrastructur

e 

NCC & 
others 

Initiated   36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

    
ALL 

 
Low 

 
Months 

 
28 

Schools 
air quality 
education 
resources 

Public 
Information 

 
Other 

 
NCC 

 
Initiated 

 
 

Embedding 
of air 
quality 
learning 
withing 
school 
community 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

 
Initial 

scoping 

   
ALL 

 
Low 

 
Months 

 
29 

 
Anti idling 
schemes 

 
Public 

Information/Tr
affic 

Management 

 
Information 

and 
enforcemen

t 

 
NCC 

 
Ongoin

g 

 
Mixed 

 
Reduction 
in idling 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

 
Mixture 
of sites 
proactiv
ely doing 

anti 
idling 

 
Not 

known 

  
ALL 

 
Low/Medium 

 
Years/Mont

hs 

 
30 

Embeddin
g GI in 

new 
projects 

 
Infrastructure 

 
Other 

 
NCC 

 
Ongoin

g 

 
Mixed 

 
Increase in 
GI across 
Newport 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

 
Mixture 
of sites 
proactiv

ely 

 
Not 
known 

 
Site by 

site basis 
through 

proactive 
and 

reactive 
means 

 
ALL 

 
Low/Medium 

 
Years/Mont

hs 

 
31 

School air 
quality 

monitoring 
initiative 

Public 
Information 

 
Other 

 
NCC 

 
Initiated 

 
Ongoing 

Embedding 
of air 

quality 
learning 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 

LAQM 
grant 

obtained 
for 

 
2024 

 
School 
visits 
from 

 
ALL 

 
Low 

 
Months 

P
age 117



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022        91 

withing 
school 

community 

breach 
location 

project 
across 

all 
Newport 
Schools 

project 
officer 
pending 

 
32 

School 
travel 

plans for 
all AQMA 
schools 

Promoting 
Travel 

Alternatives 

School 
Travel 
Plans 

 
NCC 

 
Initiated 

 
Ongoing 

 
Uptake and 
delivery of 
travel plans 

36 
μg/m3 or 
better at 

AQO 
breach 
location 

LAQM 
grant 

obtained 
for 

project 
across 

all 
Newport 
Schools 

 
2024 

 
School 
visits 
from 

project 
officer 

pending 

 
ALL 

 
Low 

 
Months 

 
 
 

P
age 118



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022  92 

Glossary of Terms 
 

Abbreviation Description 

Active Travel Clean / healthy alternatives to using transportation which produces 
emissions e.g., walking, cycling, electric buses. 

Air Quality 
Action Plan 

A plan produced where an AQMA has been declared. This 
explains what measures can be adopted within AQMAs to reduce 
prevailing emissions to compliance with an air quality objective. 

Air Quality 
Objective 

The limit level for an atmospheric pollutant set by Government for 
which compliance is sought e.g. 40 μg/m3 for NO2 annually. 

Annual 
Progress 
Report 

A report which is produced annually which describes the air quality 
observed over the previous 12 month calendar period of 
monitoring; any trends observed and any action/measures which 
contributed to reducing emissions. 

AQAP Air Quality Action Plan - A detailed description of measures, 
outcomes, achievement dates and implementation methods, 
showing how the local authority intends to achieve air quality limit 
values’ 

AQMA Air Quality Management Area – An area where air pollutant 
concentrations exceed / are likely to exceed the relevant air quality 
objectives. AQMAs are declared for specific pollutants and 
objectives 

AQS Air Quality Strategy 

ASR Air quality Annual Status Report 

Defra Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs 

Dispersion 
Modelling 

Computer modelled assessment of what future pollutant levels 
may be at receptor locations based upon a base year’s data e.g. 
2019 and 2022. 

Emissions from 
new 
development 

Emissions from traffic and plant during construction and 
operational phases of new development. This can include boiler 
systems and backup generators. 

EU European Union 

Green 
Infrastructure 

Plantings and park areas within urban and sub urban areas. Some 
may be specifically provided for air quality benefits. 

LAQM Local Air Quality Management 

Page 119



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022  93 

NO2 Nitrogen Dioxide 

NOx Nitrogen Oxides 

PM10 Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 10µm 
(micrometers or microns) or less 

PM2.5 Airborne particulate matter with an aerodynamic diameter of 2.5µm 
or less 

Source 
Apportionment 

Identifying the contribution each vehicle type makes to the overall 
pollution levels observed for a given traffic survey area 

Street Canyon Regions where continuous buildings on each side of a road form a 
canyon within which pollutants are able to build up before being to 
disperse 

Transport 
Emissions 

Emissions from road traffic. Railway and Air transport is not 
included. 

μg/m3 Microgrammes per meter cubed is the unit which used for each air 
quality objective and is how many microgrammes of pollutant a 
cubic meter of air would contain. 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 120



Newport City Council 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan - 2022  94 

References 
 
Sustainable travel strategy 2019 
 
Climate Change Plan 2022 
 
Newport City Council ANPR Report, AECOM 2022 V1 
 
Newport City Council Source Apportionment Report, AECOM 2022 V2 
 
LAQM.TGN 16 
 
LAQM.TGN 22 
 
Caerleon Option and Sensitivity Report, AECOM 2017 
 
Chepstow Road AQMA Source Apportionment and Transport Intervention Study, AECOM  
2015 
 
Annual Progress Reports 2019, 2020, 2021 & 2022. 
 
Updated Environment Act 2021. 

 
 
 
 

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Newport City Council Air Quality Action Plan 
2023-2028 Consultation 
  

 

 

Newport City Council is responsible for monitoring air quality within its 
area. Where the council has identified air quality breaching air quality 
objectives (AQOs), which are the standard for different pollutants in 
Wales, it has set up Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs). AQMAs 
have been set up in 11 locations across Newport for breaches of the 
nitrogen AQO and are shown geographically on the map below: 
 

 

Page 123



The 5 AQMAs based around M4 junctions (Glasllwch, High Cross, 

Shaftsbury, St Julians & Royal Oak Hill) have been below the AQO for 

over four years typically and will soon be revoked as a result of their 

improved air quality. These improvements appear to be due to a variety 

of reasons which may include the 50mph speed limit on the M4, an 

increase in home working post COVID, increased energy prices and a 

gradual change in the fleet composition towards cleaner, less polluting 

vehicles. 

 

The remaining 6 AQMAs based around the localities of Caerleon, 

Caerphilly Road, Cefn Road, Chepstow Road, George Street and 

Malpas Road remain in place. All AQMAs in Wales must have an Air 

Quality Action Plan (AQAP) which provides guidance on how compliance 

with AQOs (which for these AQMAs is also nitrogen dioxide) could be 

achieved. 

 

The Council's latest AQAP is now in draft form and contains a range of 

potential measures for each AQMA. These measures have been 

proposed as a result of discussions with local air quality action groups, 

which the council has set up in each of the six AQMAs. The groups bring 

together local residents and interested stakeholders to help improve air 

quality in the AQMA. 

 

At the end of 2022, air quality in Newport was observed to be compliant 

with air quality standards across its remaining six AQMAs. Where 

measures continue to be adopted the revocation of these AQMAs may 

be possible as early as 2025 if levels continue their trend. 

 

The following table is annotated to provide examples of the measures 

that can and are being employed: 

  

Page 124



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 125



Glossary of Terms 

 

Abbreviation Description 

Active Travel 
(AT) 

Clean / healthy alternatives to using transportation which 
produces emissions e.g., walking, cycling, electric buses. 

Air Quality 
Action Plan 

A plan produced where an AQMA has been declared. 
This explains what measures can be adopted within 
AQMAs to reduce prevailing emissions to compliance 
with an air quality objective. 

Air Quality 
Objective 

The limit level for an atmospheric pollutant set by 
Government for which compliance is sought e.g. 
40ug/m3 for NO2 annually. 

AQAP Air Quality Action Plan - A detailed description of 
measures, outcomes, achievement dates and 
implementation methods, showing how the local authority 
intends to achieve air quality limit values’ 

AQMA Air Quality Management Area – An area where air 
pollutant concentrations exceed / are likely to exceed the 
relevant air quality objectives. AQMAs are declared for 
specific pollutants and objectives 

EV Electric vehicle. 

Green walls/ 
Infrastructure 

Plantings and park areas within urban and sub urban 
areas. Some may be specifically provided for air quality 
benefits. 

Street 
Canyon 

Regions where continuous buildings on each side of a 
road form a canyon within which pollutants can build up 
before being dispersed. 

Transport 
Emissions 

Emissions from road traffic. Railway and Air transport is 
not included. 

ULEV Ultra low emissions vehicle. 

 

 

Page 126



Q1. Are you supportive of the proposed measures for AQMAs which 

could potentially be applied in Newport? 

Fully supportive 

Mainly supportive 

Not supportive  

Not sure 

Please explain your answer: 

 

 

 

 

Q2. Do you live in one of the AQMAs shown on the map? 

Yes 

No 

If yes, please tell us which one: 

 

 

 

 

Q3. Do you regularly travel through any of the AQMAs shown on the 

map? 

Never 

Almost every day 

A couple of times a week 

A couple of times a month 

Less than monthly 

If yes, please tell us which one: 

 

 

 

 

Page 127



Q4. Were you aware of Newport City Council's work on air quality before 

this survey? 

Fully aware 

Partly aware 

Not aware at all 

 

Q5. Do you have any suggestions for measures that could be included in 

future? 

 

 

Thank you for completing the survey 

 

 

 

Equalities Monitoring 

This is to gather more comprehensive equalities information for those 

completing the survey. 

6. What is your gender? 

☐ Male  ☐ Non-binary  ☐ Prefer not to say 

☐ Female  ☐ Self-identify 

If you ticked ‘Self-identify’, please state: 

  
 

7. Age? 

☐ Under 18  ☐ 35-44  ☐ 65-74 

☐ 18-24  ☐ 45-54  ☐ 75+ 

☐ 25-34  ☐ 55-64  ☐ Prefer not to say 

 

 

Page 128



8. Do you consider yourself to be disabled? 

☐ Yes  ☐ No  ☐ Prefer not to say 

 

9. Do you consider yourself a Welsh speaker? 

☐ Yes – Fluent  ☐ No 

☐ 
Yes – able to understand 

some Welsh 

 
☐ Prefer not to say 

 

10. What area of Newport do you live in? 

☐ Allt-Yr-Yn  ☐ Pillgwenlly 

☐ Alway  ☐ Ringland 

☐ Beechwood  ☐ Rogerstone East 

☐ Bettws  ☐ Rogerstone North 

☐ Bishton and Langstone  ☐ Rogerstone West 

☐ Caerleon  ☐ Shaftesbury 

☐ Gaer  ☐ St Julians 

☐ Graig  ☐ Stow Hill 

☐ Llanwern  ☐ Tredegar Park and Marshfield 

☐ Lliswerry  ☐ Victoria 

☐ Malpas  ☐ I do not live in Newport 

 

11. What is your current sexual orientation? 

☐ Heterosexual / Straight  ☐ Pansexual 

Page 129



☐ Gay man / Homosexual  ☐ Asexual / ACE 

☐ Gay woman / Lesbian 
 
☐ 

Other sexual orientation 

(please state) 

☐ Bisexual  ☐ Prefer not to say 

Other sexual orientation (please state): 

 

 

12. What is your ethnic group? 

☐ White – Welsh / English / Scottish / Northern Irish / British 

☐ White Irish  ☐ Gypsy or Irish Traveller 

☐ Roma  ☐ 
Any other White background (please 
state): 

☐ White & Black Caribbean  ☐ White & Asian 

☐ White & Black African 

☐ Any other mixed or multiple ethnic background (please state): 

☐ Indian  ☐ Pakistani 

☐ Bangladeshi  ☐ Chinese 

☐ Any other Asian, Asian Welsh or Asian British (please state): 

☐ Black African  ☐ Black Caribbean 

☐ 
Any other Black, Black Welsh or Black British background (please 
state): 

Page 130



☐ Arab 

☐ Any other ethnic group or background (please state): 

☐ Prefer not to say 

 

13. Are you married or in a civil partnership? 

☐ Yes  ☐ No  ☐ Prefer not to say 

 

14. Religion / Belief? 

☐ Buddhist  ☐ Muslim  ☐ No religion 

☐ Christian (all denominations)  ☐ Sikh  ☐ Agnostic 

☐ Hindu  ☐ Any Other  ☐ Humanist 

☐ Jewish  ☐ Atheist  ☐ Prefer not to say 

 

15. What is your sex?  

☐ Female  ☐ Male  ☐ Prefer not to say 

 

16. Is your gender identity the same as the sex assigned to you at 

birth? 

Gender identity is a way to describe how you feel about your gender.  

Some people know/feel that their gender identity is the same as the sex 

that they were assigned at birth – for example, a person whose original 

birth certificate says ‘male’ and they identify as a man (‘yes’ to this 

question).  Some people know/feel that their gender identity is not the 

same as the sex they were assigned at birth – for example, a person 

whose original birth certificate says ‘male’ and they identify as a woman 

(‘no’ to this question). 

Page 131



☐ Yes 

 

☐ 

No (please 

state, gender 

identity) 

 

☐ Prefer not to say 

Please state, gender identity: 

 

 

17. Caring Responsibilities 

A: Do you care for children of school age? 

☐ Yes  ☐ No  ☐ Prefer not to say 

B: Do you care for children of pre-school age? 

☐ Yes  ☐ No  ☐ Prefer not to say 

C: Do you care for a dependent adult or child above school age? 

☐ Yes  ☐ No  ☐ Prefer not to say 

 

 

Thank you for taking the time to complete this survey. 

 

If you live in one of the AQMA areas above then you are welcome to 

attend the regular Air Quality Group meetings that take place for your 

AQMA. The meetings allow communities living in AQMAs to discuss 

projects that can make a contribution to reducing air pollution. More 

information can be obtained by contacting  

air.quality@newport.gov.uk  

 
 

Page 132

mailto:air.quality@newport.gov.uk


 
Information Report  
Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 
 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  19 October 2023 
 
Subject Update on Budget Consultation arrangements 
 
Purpose To inform OSMC of the arrangements for the 2024/25 budget consultation 

and to review last year’s consultation and the lessons learned. 
 
Author  Head of People, Policy and Transformation 
 
Ward All wards 
 
Summary The most recent round of budget consultation received almost 1,900 

responses from a range of stakeholders. This compares well with 
neighbouring Gwent local authorities and other Welsh cities. However, to 
contribute to continuous improvement, ‘lessons learned’ are set out in this 
report, with the intention of making future budget consultation more 
accessible, engaging, and informative.   

 
Proposal To outline the arrangements for the 2024/25 budget consultation and invite 

feedback from OSMC. 
 
Action by    Head of People, Policy and Transformation 
  Head of Finance 
 
Timetable Immediate 
 

This report was prepared after consultation with: 
 
  Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee 

Head of Finance 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 133

Agenda Item 5



1 Background 
 
The aim of budget consultation is to create opportunities to participate in the budget setting 
process and to allow citizens potentially affected by decisions to “have their say”.  However, 
there is also an important secondary consideration of minimising the costs of consultation 
against a context of significant financial pressure. This has meant we have looked to maximise 
the use of our existing knowledge, resources, and expertise, for instance using the Wi-Fi 
technology in local buses, whilst avoiding spend on consultation activities that might not be 
cost effective. 
 
Finance and People, Policy and Transformation have supported budget consultation work for 
several years and have developed insight and intelligence on the opinions and concerns of 
residents on a range of public service issues.  We also want to support the growing number 
of citizens who are taking part in new, active forms of public engagement in Newport. This 
includes, the 1,200+ people who have taken part in local participatory budgeting events in the 
past 4 years, allocating £800k of public funds to community projects. 
 
It is also important to emphasise that budget consultation runs alongside other forms of public 
engagement undertaken by the Council which amounted to over 40 activities last year with 
more than 10,000 respondents, which, in turn, contributes to our intelligence and customer 
insight. 
  
2 Building on last year’s Budget Consultation 
 
During the 2023/24 budget consultation just under 1,900 responses were received. This was 
a significant increase over the previous year, which was affected by the restrictions 
surrounding the Covid-19 pandemic. We were again able to make wider use of Bus Wi-Fi 
consultation technology as passenger numbers increased. The availability of bus Wi-Fi 
consultation also enabled us to undertake pre-budget engagement on the prioritisation of 
council services.  
 
Responses were as follows: 
 

1. An online survey via the public Wi-Fi on Newport buses that received 653 responses. 
 

2. An in-depth online survey, which received 820 responses. 
 

3. In addition to completed surveys, around 400 representations received from 
organisations were considered by Cabinet Members and Officers as part of the 
budget consultation 

 
4. Of note, 865 responses to the pre-budget engagement exercise were received in 

September 2022.  This takes total budget engagement for 2023/24 to 2,738. 
 
The following table compares the response rate achieved in Newport with neighbouring local 
authorities. 
 
Local authority 
area 

Number of responses to the 2023/24 Budget consultation  

Newport 1,873 completed surveys 
 
In addition, 865 pre-budget responses were received  
 

Page 134



Total 2,738 

Caerphilly 
 
 

278 completed surveys  

Monmouthshire 244 completed surveys  

Torfaen Not available 

Blaenau Gwent 3,736 completed surveys (note – Blaenau Gwent count responses 
differently to Newport, recording attendance at events as participation. 
In previous years their responses have not exceeded 600) 

Cardiff A total of 5,932 responses were received for the main survey, with 115 
responses to the Youth survey.  

Swansea 440 people completed surveys 

  
 
3 Lessons learned 
 
Whilst it was generally thought that the 2023/24 budget was effective in terms of responses 
and cost effectiveness, the following points are being considered: 
 
Pre-budget engagement was undertaken to gain a better understanding of the relative 
importance of Council services, to give people a chance to comment on this and to raise 
awareness of the challenging financial context and forthcoming consultation. A total of 865 
responses were received in September 2022.  Pre-budget engagement has already been 
undertaken for 2024/25 and was integrated with other consultation work.  This received 
almost 300 responses and indicated the relatively high level of importance that residents 
attach to community safety and community cohesion in terms of spending (further analysis is 
underway and will be reported alongside the final budget consultation findings).  
 
Consultation Format – in line with the ambitions of the digital strategy and the Corporate 
Plan the budget consultation is still primarily online, however in order to ensure fair access 
responses in all forms are accepted e.g. hard copy.  For instance, we received picture 
responses from people with learning disabilities. Around 400 letters/e-mails were received in 
addition to the online survey, these often focus on one or two proposals that directly affect 
the respondent/their family.  We will look to encourage other formats for responses in the 
future to make the consultation as accessible and appealing as possible. 
 
The new question approach (allowing respondents to suggest a smaller saving) worked well 
and the smaller saving option was used extensively.  This richer question format will be used 
in future budget consultation rounds. 
 
Face to face consultation e.g. at Warm Welcome centres, will be used more extensively and 
be better advertised. 
 
Earlier promotion of the consultation - in response to the OSMC recommendation the 
budget consultation will be advertised and promoted in advance of its launch using NCC 
communications channels, so that citizens are aware of it and can prepare to respond. 

Page 135



 
Schools - in previous years Scrutiny had suggested that schools could play a greater part in 
promoting the budget consultation. For 2023/24 consultation messages were sent to all 
Newport schools in a format they could easily use to disseminate to parents.  This will be 
continued in this year’s budget consultation.   
 
Equalities - the Senior Equalities Officer is involved in budget consultation planning and 
shared details of the consultation through relevant networks, along with the Community 
Cohesion Manager and the Welsh Language Policy Officer. Bus Wi-Fi surveys are used to 
reach younger and more diverse communities. ‘One Newport’ partner organisation contacts 
are used to disseminate the consultation across a wide range of community groups. We plan 
to use city centre and public-building Wi-Fi networks to engage with a more diverse 
audience in the next round of budget consultation.  This will also contribute to the OSMC 
recommendation of expanding engagement to people who have limited interaction with the 
Council.  
 
The Policy and Partnership Team will be meeting with the Lead Officer for the Young 
Interpreter Scheme to see if this can be used to make the budget consultation more 
accessible in households where English is a barrier to responding.  
 
Fairness & Equalities Impact Assessments - The Policy and Partnership Team will be 
running FEIA drop-in sessions to support service management. FEIAs are critical to 
informing decision making and also to minimising the impacts of budget savings on 
protected equalities groups. They are also important in directing engagement with affected 
groups.  Steps are being taken for 2024/25 to better integrate FEIAs with the process of 
developing savings proposals, through a package of new digital documents. 
 
Newport Fairness Commission –  
The Fairness Commission has previously written a report on the budget proposals being 
consulted upon. This is a narrow window through which to look at the parameters of fairness. 
Therefore, the Commission is developing a model by which they look at the following: 
 

• Vulnerable groups 
• Relative and competing priorities  
• Risks, mitigation, and emerging issues 
• Decision making frameworks in place e.g. the Housing Register 
• The evidence base 
• Statutory constraints, funding, and partnerships 
• The strategic context and transformation- e.g. long-term aspirations for housing, the 

Local Development Plan etc. 
 

Budget Engagement programme for 2024/25  
 
The 2024/25 budget consultation and communications programme will consist of a range of 
methods and types of promotion, including: 
 

• Pre-budget engagement – consultation on relative spending priorities has already 
been undertaken, which contributes making budget engagement an ongoing process. 
 

• Online Survey – this will include questions on all budget proposals. A new question 
format was used last year, which allowed respondents to choose between supporting 
the full saving / a smaller saving / no saving, rather than having to simply 

Page 136



agree/disagree with the proposal.  This provided richer data with the ‘smaller saving’ 
option being used extensively.  The proposed questions are given in appendix 1. 

  
• Have Your Say – NCC Webpage – the full set of proposals, survey, links to FEIAs 

and background information will be included on the Have Your Say webpage on the 
Council website. 
 

• Bus Wi-Fi survey – a complementary budget consultation survey will run on bus Wi-
Fi. This will focus on the proposed increase to Council Tax and will encourage 
respondents to complete the wider budget survey. 

 
• Social Media promotion - the consultation will be regularly promoted on Council 

social media, which has previously generated a high proportion of the responses.  
Partner organisations will also be encouraged to promote the budget consultation in 
One Newport social media posts. 

 
• Newport Matters – the January edition will carry a lead article on the budget, 

including the context, the proposals, the budget setting process and links to the 
consultation webpages and the freepost reply address. 

 
• School parents & teachers – all schools will be provided with budget consultation 

text to share with parents and teachers to promote participation.   
 

• Council staff – employee communications will promote participation amongst staff. 
 

• Attendance at community events – Council representatives will attend community 
events e.g. last year these included Warm Welcome Centres across Newport 
including Ringland, Maesglas, Bettws and Gaer.   
 

• Service Area engagement - Service Areas will be supported to identify where direct 
engagement with service users and their families is needed.  For example, last year, 
this was undertaken by Adult Services and Children’s services, based on the 
relatively high impact on vulnerable people.  This took the form of face-to-face 
meetings. 
 

• Trade Unions – HR and Finance will liaise with the Trade Unions so they can make 
representations.  
 

• Newport Youth Council – The Fairness Commission will be working with the Youth 
Council to help facilitate their budget response.   

 
Background Papers 
OSMC considered the budget consultation arrangements in their meeting on February 23rd 
2023 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 137



Appendix 1 – example survey questions (taken from last year’s budget consultation) 

Partnership x 
To reduce the financial contribution that the council makes to its strategic partnership with [the 
partnership].  This would be followed by a restructuring and remodelling of the partnership, to focus 
available resources on the families in greatest need of intensive support.  

Currently the partnership delivers a range of specialist elements of support for the benefit of 
families and children in Newport. 

The main areas impacted would be: 

• The main areas would be outlined here.  
 

Other services that would be reduced are: 

• Any impacts on other services would be outlined here. 
 

Proposed Savings: £xxxk (2023-24) 

What do you think the council should do with this saving proposal? 
(Please note, that if the council does not go ahead with this particular saving proposal, or makes a 
smaller saving, it will have to find other savings elsewhere, or increase its income e.g. through 
council tax) 

☐ A:  Make the full budget saving 

☐ B:  Make a smaller budget saving. 

☐ C:  Avoid making any budget savings for this service. 

☐ D:  Not sure 

B:  Make a smaller budget saving.  If so, what do you think we should do? 

 

 

 

1a. 

C:  Avoid making any budget savings for this service.  If so, can you suggest where savings could be 
made as an alternative? 

 

 

 
 

How important is protecting funding for this service compared to other services in the council’s 
budget savings proposals for 2023/24? 

1b. 

1 of most importance 5 of least importance 

Page 138



☐ 1  ☐ 2  ☐ 3  ☐ 4  ☐ 5 
 

Do you have any other comments about this proposal? 1c. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Report 
Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Committee 
 
Part 1  
 
Date:  October 2023 
 
Subject Scrutiny Adviser Report 
 
Author  Scrutiny Adviser 
 
The following people have been invited to attend for this item: 
 

Invitee: Role 
 

Samantha Schanzer (Scrutiny 
Adviser) 

Present the Committee with the Scrutiny Adviser Report for 
discussion and update the Committee on any changes. 

Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations 
 

 

Recommendations to the Committee

The Committee is asked to:

1. Action Plan
Consider the Actions from previous meetings (Appendix 1):

• Note the responses for the actions;
• Determine if any further information / action is required;
• Agree to receive an update on outstanding issues at the next meeting.

2. Committee’s Work Programme:
Consider the Committee’s Forward Work Programme Update (Appendix 2):

• Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the next 
Committee meeting?

• Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider the topics?
• Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

3.      Scrutiny Topic Referral
         Consider referrals forwarded to committee (Appendix 3)

• Does the referral meet the criteria as set out within the referral form? 
• Does the referral fit with the priorities within the work programme?
• If so, which Scrutiny committee is best placed to deal with this referral e.g. Performance 

Scrutiny Committee for Place, People or Partnerships or Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Committee? 

• How should this piece of work be undertaken?

Page 141

Agenda Item 7



 
2 Context 
 

Background  
 
Action Sheet 
 
2.1 Attached at Appendix 1 is the Action Sheet from the Committee meetings.  The updated 

completed actions are included in the table.   
 
2.2 Any actions that do not have a response will be included on the Action Sheet at the next meeting 

to ensure that the Committee can keep track of outstanding actions.  
 
Forward Work Programme 
 
2.3 Attached at Appendix 2 is the Draft Forward Work Programme for the year 2023-24.  
 
2.4 The purpose of a Forward Work Programme is to help ensure Councillors achieve organisation 

and focus in the undertaking of enquiries through the Overview and Scrutiny function.  Effective 
work programming is essential to ensure that the work of Overview and Scrutiny makes a positive 
impact upon the Council’s delivery of services. 

 
2.4 Further information about the work programming process, including the procedures for referring 

new business to the programme, can be found in our Scrutiny Handbook on the Council’s 
Scrutiny webpages (www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny). 

 
2.5 The Centre for Public Scrutiny’s Good Scrutiny Guide recognises the importance of the forward 

work programme.  In order to ‘lead and own the process’, it states that Councillors should have 
ownership of their Committee’s work programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and 
evaluating it.  The Good Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny 
workload should be co-ordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken in a timely 
and well-planned manner. 

 
Scrutiny Topic Referral  
 
2.6 Appendix 3 is regarding a Scrutiny Topic Referral. The Scrutiny Topic Referral form has been 

sent to Committee separately of this agenda and will not be discussed in the live meeting due to 
its confidential nature.  

 
2.7 As per the procedure, all Scrutiny Topic Referrals in the first instance are considered by the 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee to determine whether they meet the criteria: 
 

• Public Interest: The concerns of the people should influence the issues chosen for 
Scrutiny. 

• Ability to Change: Priority should be given to issues that the Committee can 
realistically influence, and which will result in a Cabinet decision being taken.  

• Performance: Priority should be given to the areas in which the Council, and other 
agencies, are not performing well. 

• Extent: Priority should be given to issues that are relevant to all or large parts of the 
city. 

• Replication: Work programmes must take account of what else is happening in the 
areas being considered to avoid duplication or wasted effort.  

 
2.8 There are several reasons to reject a Scrutiny Topic Referral, including:  

Page 142

http://www.newport.gov.uk/scrutiny


 
• Scrutiny involvement would have limited/no impact upon outcomes. 
• The issue is already being addressed/examined elsewhere and change is imminent.  
• The topic would be better addressed elsewhere and will be referred there.   
• New legislation or guidance relating to the topic is expected within the next year. 
• The topic may be sub-judice or prejudicial to the Council’s interest.  
• The topic is too broad to make a review realistic.  
• The topic area is currently subject to inspection or has recently undergone substantial 

change.  
 

2.9 For every item on the work programme, including referrals, it should be clear:  
 

• What is the issue/activity/project under consideration?  
• What is Scrutiny being asked to do?  
• What are the reasons for/expected benefits of involving Scrutiny in this matter?  
• Is there a specific deadline for this piece of work?  

 
3 Information Submitted to the Committee 
 
3.1 The following information is attached: 
 
 Appendix 1: Action Sheet from Previous Meetings; 
  Appendix 2: Draft Forward Work Programme 
 Appendix 3: Scrutiny Topic Referral  
 
4. Suggested Areas of Focus 
 
 Role of the Committee 
  

Page 143



 
 
 
Section B – Supporting Information 
5 Supporting Information 
 
5.1 The Corporate Assessment, and the subsequent follow up assessment provide background 

information on the importance of good work programming. Specific reference is made to the need 
to align the Cabinet and Scrutiny work programmes to ensure the value of the Scrutiny Function 
is maximised. 

 
5.2 The latest Cabinet work programme was approved by the Cabinet on a monthly basis for the next 

12 months and includes the list of reports scheduled for consideration.  Effective forward planning 
by both Cabinet and Scrutiny needs to be coordinated and integrated in relation to certain reports 
to ensure proper consultation takes place before a decision is taken.  A link to the Cabinet work 
programme is provided here to the Committee as part of this report, to enable the Committee to 
ensure that the work programmes continue to reflect key decisions being made by the Cabinet.   

6. Links to Council Policies and Priorities  
 
  6.1 Having proper work programming procedures in place ensures that the work of Overview and 

Scrutiny makes a positive impact upon the Council’s delivery of services, contributes to the delivery 
of corporate objectives, and ensures that work can be undertaken in a timely and well-planned 
manner.   

 

The role of the Committee in considering the report is to:

• Action Sheet from Previous Meetings - Appendix 1
o Consider the responses to the actions from the meeting;
o Are you satisfied that you have received the necessary information?
o Are there any further issues arising from the responses that you would like to 

raise?
o For the actions that do not have responses – these actions will be rolled over 

to the next meeting and reported back to the Committee. 

• Draft Forward Work Programme - Appendix 2
Consider:

o Are there any amendments to the topics scheduled to be considered at the 
next Committee meeting?

o Are there any additional invitees that the Committee requires to fully consider 
the topics?

o Is there any additional information that the Committee would like to request?

• Scrutiny Topic Referral - Appendix 3
Consider:

o Does the referral meet the criteria as set out within the referral form? 
o Does the referral fit with the priorities within the work programme?
o Should this referral be accepted or rejected based on the criteria and other 

information?
o If accepted, which Scrutiny committee is best placed to deal with this referral 

e.g. Performance Scrutiny Committee for Place, People or Partnerships or 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee? 

o How should this piece of work be undertaken?

Page 144

https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s6711/06%20Corporate%20Aassessment%20appendix.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s21700/2022-23%20CABINET%20WORK%20PROGRAMME.pdf?LLL=0


6.2    This report relates to the Actions from Committee’s which support the achievement of the 
Scrutiny Committee, in accordance with the Law and Regulation Service Plan, Objectives, Actions 
and Measures and the Wellbeing objectives:  
 

 
Well-being 
Objective 

1 – Economy, 
Education and 
Skills 

2 – Newport’s 
Environment and 
Infrastructure  

3 – Preventative 
and Equitable 
Community and 
Social Care 

4 – An Inclusive, 
Fair and 
Sustainable 
Council 

Aims:  Newport is a 
thriving and 
growing city that 
offers excellent 
education and 
aspires to provide 
opportunities for 
all. 

A city that seeks 
to protect and 
enhance our 
environment 
whilst reducing 
our carbon 
footprint and 
preparing for a 
sustainable and 
digital future. 

Newport is a 
supportive city 
where 
communities and 
care are at the 
heart of what we 
do. 

Newport City 
Council is an 
inclusive 
organisation that 
places social 
value, fairness 
and sustainability 
at its core. 

 
 
7 Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act  
 
7.1 The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 which came into force in April 2016 sets the 

context for the move towards long term planning of services.   
 

7.2 General questions 
• How is this area / policy affected by the new legislation?   
• How will this decision / policy / proposal impact upon future generations?  What is the long 

term impact?   
• What evidence is provided to demonstrate WFGA has been / is being considered?   
• Evidence from Community Profiles / other data?  
• Evidence of links to Wellbeing Assessment / Objectives / Plan? 

 
7.3 Wellbeing Goals 

• How are the Wellbeing goals reflected in the policy / proposal / action? 
o A prosperous Wales 
o A resilient Wales 
o A healthier Wales 
o A more equal Wales 
o A Wales of cohesive communities 
o A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
o A globally responsible Wales 

 
7.4 Sustainable Development Principles 

• Does the report / proposal demonstrate how as an authority we are working in accordance 
with the sustainable development principles from the act when planning services? 
o Long Term 

The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need to safeguard the ability to 
also meet long-term needs 

o Prevention 
How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse may help public bodies meet 
their objectives 

o Integration 

Page 145



Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may impact upon each of the 
well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on the objectives of other public bodies 

o Collaboration 
Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different parts of the body itself) that 
could help the body to meet its well-being objectives 

o Involvement 
The importance of involving people with an interest in achieving the well-being goals, 
and ensuring that those people reflect the diversity of the area which the body serves. 

 
8 Background Papers 
 

• The Essentials - Wellbeing of Future Generation Act (Wales)  
• Corporate Plan 2022-2027 
• The Corporate Assessment and follow up assessment.  

 
 
Report Completed: October 2023 

Page 146

http://gov.wales/docs/dsjlg/publications/150623-guide-to-the-fg-act-en.pdf
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s23056/08ii%20Draft%20-%20Corporate%20Plan%202022-27%20v1.4.pdf?LLL=0
https://democracy.newport.gov.uk/documents/s6711/06%20Corporate%20Aassessment%20appendix.pdf


  

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
ACTION SHEET  

 

 Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome 

1 Conclusion of 
Committee 
reports 

 

 

Send comments and 
recommendations to 
officers 

Samantha 
Schanzer 

COMPLETE 

2 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide more information 
regarding the increase of 
both homeworking figures 
and commuting figures  

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

Lopez/ Ross 
Cudlipp 

COMPLETE 

3 Climate Change 
Report 

Complete an exercise 
wherein the new changes to 
the measurement of 
supplier emissions be 
applied to previous years’ 
data to better understand 
trends and changes. 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

Lopez/ Ross 
Cudlipp 

COMPLETE 

4 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide more information 
on the threshold of Green 
actions, especially in 
regards to illegal parking. 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

Lopez/ Ross 
Cudlipp 

COMPLETE 

5 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide the date on which 
the city wide bike scheme 
would be rolled out 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

Lopez/Ross 
Cudlipp 

COMPLETE 

6 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide the percentage of 
new taxi licenced drivers 
with ULEV cars 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

Lopez/ Ross 
Cudlipp 

COMPLETE 

7 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide further explanation 
regarding the improvement 
in public transport and why 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 

COMPLETE  

Page 147



  

 
 

that action was marked as 
green 

Lopez/Ross 
Cudlipp 

8 Climate Change 
Report 

Provide a response on how 
the Council is ensuring that 
work is being carried out to 
encourage ethical 
investments by the staff 
pension fund 

Paul 
Jones/Silvia 
Gonzales 
Lopez/Ross 
Cudlipp 

COMPLETE 

9 Corporate Plan 
Self-Assessment 
Report 22-23 

Clarify how the number of 
visitors to Newport is 
calculated. 

Tracy 
McKim/Rhys 

Cornwall 

 

10 Strategic 
Equalities Plan 
Annual Report 
22-23 

Provide the number of 
people who contact the City 
Contact Centre via phone 
when they are unable to 
use the online services.  
 

Tracy 
McKim/Rhys 

Cornwall 

 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 148



Scrutiny 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee  
Draft Work Programme: June 2023 to May 2024 
Meeting  Agenda Items 
02/06/2023 • Corporate Safeguarding Annual Report 

 
• EV Charging Strategy 

 
• Consultation Update (Information only) 

 
 

23/06/2023 • Welsh Language Annual Report 
 

28/07/2023 • Information Risk Report 
 
 

 
• Climate Change Annual Report 
 

08/09/2023  
• Annual Digital Strategy Report 

09/10/2023  
1pm  

▪ Annual Corporate Wellbeing Self Assessment  
▪ Strategic Equalities Plan Annual Report 

 
27/10/2023 ▪ Transformation Plan / Budget Consultation Plans / 

Development of MTFP 
▪ Air Quality Action Plan 

 

01/12/2023 • Scrutiny Annual Report  
• People and Culture Plan 

 
19/01/2024 
 

• MTFP and Revenue Budget – Consultee Meeting  

08/03/2024 • Asset Plan 
26/04/2024 • TBD 

 

Page 149



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Air Quality Action Plan
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Subject	Air Quality Action Plan

	Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
	2	Context
	3	Information Submitted to the Committee
	4.	Suggested Areas of Focus
	5		Links to Council Policies and Priorities
	7.	Background Papers

	Item 4.1 - AQAP
	Item 4.2 - Draft AQAP Consultation

	5 Budget and Engagement Update
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Subject	Update on Budget Consultation arrangements
	Partnership x


	7 Scrutiny Adviser Reports
	Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee
	Subject	Scrutiny Adviser Report

	Section A – Committee Guidance and Recommendations
	3	Information Submitted to the Committee
	5	Supporting Information
	6.	Links to Council Policies and Priorities
	7	Wellbeing of Future Generation (Wales) Act
	8	Background Papers

	Item 7.1 - Action Sheet
	Item 7.2 - FWP


